SES”

Société Anonyme
RCS Luxembourg B 81267

La Société, SES, société anonyme, convoque par le présent avis a son
Assemblée Générale Ordinaire

qui se tiendra

le jeudi 7 avril 2022 a 10h30, heure de Luxembourg

au siége social de SES, société anonyme, (la « Société ») Chateau de Betzdorf, 6815 Betzdorf,
Luxembourg.

ORDRE DU JOUR

1. Liste de présences, quorum et adoption de I'ordre du jour

2. Désignation d'un secrétaire et de deux scrutateurs

3 Présentation par le Président du Conseil d’administration du rapport de gestion du Conseil pour
I'année 2021

4 Présentation des principaux développements de la Société pendant 'année 2021 et perspectives

5. Présentation des résultats financiers pour I'exercice 2021

6. Présentation du rapport du réviseur d'entreprises

7 Approbation du bilan au 31 décembre 2021 et du compte de profits et pertes pour I'exercice 2021

8 Affectation du résultat net de I'exercice 2021 et transferts entre comptes de réserves

9. Décharge a donner aux administrateurs

10. Fixation du nombre d’administrateurs

11. Confirmation de la co-optation d’un administrateur et fixation de la durée du mandat

12. Nomination de deux administrateurs pour une durée de deux ans et de trois administrateurs pour
une durée de trois ans

13. Approbation de la Politique de Rémunération

14. Fixation de la rémunération des membres du Conseil d’administration

15. Approbation du Rapport de Rémunération

16. Election statutaire du réviseur d'entreprises pour 'année 2022 et fixation de sa rémunération

17. Résolution permettant a la société I'acquisition de ses propres FDRs et/ou actions de la catégorie
AouB

18. Divers

Assister a ’'assemblée

Les droits d’'un actionnaire de participer a 'assemblée générale ordinaire et d’exercer le vote attaché a
ses actions sont déterminés en fonction des actions détenues par cet actionnaire le quatorzieme jour qui
préceéde I'assemblée générale ordinaire, a savoir le 24 mars 2022 a minuit (la date d’enregistrement). Si
un détenteur de Fiduciary Depositary Receipts (FDRs) souhaite assister a 'assemblée, il devra se faire
inscrire comme actionnaire dans le registre des actionnaires de la Société avant la date d’enregistrement.
Une personne qui n'est pas actionnaire a la date d’enregistrement ne peut pas assister a 'assemblée
générale ordinaire.

Conformément aux mesures sanitaires en place, il n'y aura pas de participation physique des

actionnaires a l'assemblée générale de cette année. Les actionnaires peuvent assister a
I'assemblée générale a distance.

Conversion en actions de la catégorie A

Le détenteur de FDRs qui souhaite convertir ses FDRs en actions A doit faire cette demande
conformément aux clauses 12 et 16 des Terms and Conditions du Amended and Restated Fiduciary
Deposit Agreement du 26 septembre 2001. Ce document est disponible auprés de la Banque et Caisse
d’Epargne de I'Etat, Luxembourg. Aucune commission de conversion ne sera exigée des personnes
physiques qui ne sont pas déja actionnaires de la catégorie A et qui procédent a la conversion d’'un
maximum de 10.000 FDRs en actions A, leur permettant de participer a 'assemblée générale ordinaire
du 7 avril 2022.



Pour assister a 'assemblée, la conversion de FDRs en actions de la catégorie A devra étre effectuée le
24 mars 2022 & 16 heures 30, heure de Luxembourg au plus tard. Les actionnaires qui ont converti leurs
FDRs en actions A avant cette date recevront une copie des documents de I'assemblée générale, y
compris le certificat de vote ainsi que tous les autres détails nécessaires pour assister a distance a
I'assemblée générale de cette année. Pour plus d’information a ce sujet, merci de bien vouloir contacter
la Banque et Caisse dEpargne de [I'Etat, Luxembourg & ladresse suivante
corporateactions.sec@spuerkeess.lu

Instructions de vote

Le détenteur de FDRs est en droit, sous réserve des dispositions applicables (la loi luxembourgeoise,
statuts de la Société, seuils de participation et contrat de concession) d’instruire le Fiduciaire via sa
banque en vue d’exercer son droit de vote au moyen d’un certificat de vote disponible sur demande a la
banque auprés de laquelle les FDRs sont détenus.

Pour que les instructions de vote soient valables, le certificat de vote devra étre complété et diment signé
par le détenteur de FDRs ou le cas échéant par le bénéficiaire économique. Pour plus d’informations a
ce sujet, merci de bien vouloir contacter la Banque et Caisse d’Epargne de I'Etat, Luxembourg a 'adresse
suivante : corporateactions.sec@spuerkeess.lu

A la réception du certificat de vote comportant les déclarations et documents requis par le Fiduciaire ou
la Société, avant ou a la date déterminée par le Fiduciaire (a savoir le 4 avril 2022 a 17 heures, heure de
Luxembourg), celui-ci devra transmettre a la Société ledit certificat de vote accompagné des déclarations
et documents requis pour vérifier si les détenteurs de FDRs ou les bénéficiaires économiques peuvent
acqueérir la qualité d’actionnaires de la catégorie A de la Société si a la place des FDRs ils détenaient un
nombre correspondant d’actions A.

Si dans un délai de huit jours ouvrables au Luxembourg a partir de la réception du certificat de vote avec
les déclarations et documents requis, la Société n’a pas notifié au Fiduciaire son rejet de la demande du
détenteur de FDRs, elle est présumée I'avoir acceptée.

Aprés réception de I'accord écrit de la Société quant aux instructions de vote, le Fiduciaire votera ou fera
en sorte qu'il soit voté conformément a ces instructions. Le Fiduciaire pourra désigner et nommer des
représentants diment autorisés afin que ceux-ci assistent a 'assemblée et votent au nom et pour compte
des détenteurs de FDRs.

Les instructions de vote sont considérées comme étant irrévocables et définitives 48 heures avant I'heure
d’ouverture de I'assemblée, a savoir le 5 avril 2022 a 10 heures 30 au plus tard, heure de Luxembourg.

Dans le cas ou le Fiduciaire n’aurait pas regu des instructions de vote des détenteurs de FDRs, le
Fiduciaire sera supposé avoir été instruit de voter conformément aux propositions de vote du Conseil
d’administration définies lors de sa réunion y afférente.

Aucune résolution ne sera soumise au vote sous le point 18. Divers.

Modifications de I’ordre du jour

Un ou plusieurs actionnaires disposant ensemble d’au moins 5% du capital social de SES, ont le droit
d’inscrire des points a l'ordre du jour de I'assemblée générale ordinaire et de déposer des projets de
résolution concernant des points inscrits ou a inscrire a I'ordre du jour de 'assemblée générale ordinaire.
Cette demande devra étre formulée par écrit et adressée par voie postale (a SES, attn. Mme Sarah Gavin,
Chateau de Betzdorf, L-6815 Betzdorf, Luxembourg) ou par voie électronique (shareholders@ses.com)
et doit parvenir a la Société au plus tard le vingt-deuxieme jour qui précede I'assemblée générale ordinaire
(a savoir le 16 mars 2022). Cette demande doit inclure une justification ou un projet de résolution a adopter
lors de 'assemblée générale ordinaire, ainsi qu’une adresse postale ou électronique a laquelle la Société
peut transmettre I'accusé de réception de cette demande endéans 48 heures.

La Société publiera alors un ordre de jour révisé au plus tard le quinziéme jour qui précéde la date de
I'assemblée générale ordinaire (le 23 mars 2022).

Documents mis a disposition par SES

Les documents mis a disposition par la Société pour les besoins de la présente assemblée (y inclus les
propositions du Conseil d’administration) peuvent étre consultés par les détenteurs de FDRs auprés du
Fiduciaire - Banque et Caisse d’Epargne de I'Etat, Securities Department, 1, rue Zithe, L-2954
Luxembourg, BGL BNP Paribas Luxembourg S.A., 50, avenue J. F. Kennedy, L-2951 Luxembourg et
Société Générale, GSSI/GIS/CMO/AGL, 32, rue du Champ de Tir, F-44312 Nantes Cedex 3, pendant les
heures douverture et sont disponibles sur les sites internet suivants www.ses.com et


http://www.ses.com/

www.spuerkeess.IU/SES. N’hésitez pas a contacter SES pour de plus amples informations a I'adresse
suivante: shareholders@ses.com



http://www.bcee.lu/SES
mailto:shareholders@ses.com

SES”

Société Anonyme
RCS Luxembourg B 81267

Notice is hereby given of the

Annual General Meeting

of SES, Société Anonyme, to be held at the Company’s registered office at Chateau de Betzdorf,
6815 Betzdorf (the “Company”), Luxembourg, on

Thursday 7 April 2022 at 10:30 a.m. CET
AGENDA

Attendance list, quorum and adoption of the agenda

Nomination of a secretary and of two scrutineers

Presentation by the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the 2021 activities report of the Board
Presentation of the main developments during 2021 and of the outlook

Presentation of the 2021 financial results

Presentation of the audit report

Approval of the balance sheet as of 31 December 2021 and of the 2021 profit and loss accounts
Allocation of 2021 profits and transfers between reserve accounts

. Discharge of the members of the Board of Directors

10. Determination of the number of Board members

11. Confirmation of the co-optation of one Director and determination of the term

12. Election of two Directors for a two-year term and three Directors for a three-year term

13.  Approval of the Remuneration Policy

14. Determination of the remuneration of Board members

15.  Approval of the Remuneration Report

16.  Appointment of the auditor for the year 2022 and determination of its remuneration

17. Resolution on Company acquiring its own FDRs and/or its own A-, or B-shares

18.  Miscellaneous

®NOOOEAWN >

©

Attendance

The right of a shareholder to attend the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and to participate in the vote will be
determined at midnight on the fourteenth day preceding the AGM, i.e. 24 March 2022 (the “Registration Date”).
If a Fiduciary Depositary Receipts (“FDR”) holder wishes to attend the meeting he has to be recorded as a
shareholder in the share register of the Company prior to the Registration Date. Anyone not being a
shareholder on the Registration Date may not attend or vote at the AGM.

In compliance with the latest COVID-19 restrictions, there will be no physical attendance of
shareholders at this year’s AGM. Shareholders may attend the AGM remotely.

Withdrawal of FDRs and Conversion into A-shares

An FDR holder who wants to convert FDRs into A-shares has to request this conversion in accordance with
conditions 12 and 16 of the Terms and Conditions of the Amended and Restated Fiduciary Deposit Agreement
dated 26 September 2001. This document is available at the Banque et Caisse d’Epargne de I'Etat,
Luxembourg. No charge for conversion will be requested for natural persons who are not yet shareholders of
category A and who proceed to a conversion of a maximum of 10,000 FDRs into A-shares, allowing them to
participate in the AGM of 7 April 2022.



The latest date for withdrawing FDRs and converting into A-shares for attendance at the AGM is 24 March
2022 at 4:30 p.m. CET. Shareholders who have converted their FDRs into A-shares prior to that date, will
receive a copy of the AGM documents, including the voting certificate and details required to attend this year's
AGM remotely. Please feel free to contact Banque et Caisse d’Epargne de I'Etat, Luxembourg, for further
queries in this respect, at the following address: corporateactions.sec@spuerkeess.lu

Voting instructions

The FDR holder is entitled, subject to any applicable provisions (e.g. Luxembourg law, articles of association,
shareholders’ thresholds and concession agreement) to instruct the Fiduciary via his bank as to the exercise
of the voting rights by means of a voting certificate available on request at the bank where the FDRs are held.

In order for the voting instructions to be valid, the voting certificate form must be completed and duly signed
by the FDR holder or, as the case may be, the beneficial owner. Please feel free to contact Banque et Caisse
d’Epargne de [I'Etat, Luxembourg, for further queries in this respect at the following address:
corporateactions.sec@spuerkeess.lu

Upon receipt of the voting certificate on or before the date determined by the Fiduciary (being at the latest 4
April 2022 at 5:00 p.m. CET) with such certification and evidence as requested by the Fiduciary or by the
Company, the Fiduciary shall transmit to the Company the relevant certifications and supporting evidence and
the Company shall verify whether the relevant holders of FDRs or the beneficial owners thereof would qualify
as an A-shareholder of the Company if in lieu of FDRs they would hold the corresponding number of A-shares.

If within eight Luxembourg business days from the receipt of such certification and supporting evidence, the
Company has not notified the Fiduciary of its rejection of the request of a holder to exercise its voting rights
pertaining to the A-shares underlying its FDRs, the Company shall be deemed to have accepted the relevant
voting request.

After receipt of the written approval of the voting request by the Company, the Fiduciary shall vote or cause to
be voted in accordance with the instructions set forth in such requests. The Fiduciary may designate and
appoint authorized representatives to attend the meeting and vote on behalf of the FDR holders.

The voting instructions are deemed to be irrevocable and definitive 48 hours prior to the time for which the
meeting has been convened, i.e. at the latest on 5 April 2022 at 10:30 a.m. CET. If the Fiduciary has not
received voting instructions from the FDR holder, the Fiduciary shall be deemed to have been instructed to
vote in the manner proposed by the Board of Directors in the relevant meeting.

There will be no vote under item 18. Miscellaneous

Amendments to the Agenda

One or more shareholders owning together at least 5% of the share capital of SES have the right to add items
to the agenda of the AGM and may deposit draft resolutions regarding items listed on the agenda or proposed
to be added to the agenda. This request will need to be received at the latest the twenty—second day (i.e. 16
March 2022) preceding the AGM and made in writing via mail (to: SES, attn. Ms Sarah Gavin, Chateau de
Betzdorf, L-6815 Betzdorf, Luxembourg) or e-mail (to: shareholders@ses.com) and will need to include a
justification or draft resolution to be adopted at the AGM. The written request will need to include a contact
address (mail or e-mail) to which the Company can confirm receipt within 48 hours from the receipt of the
request.

At the latest fifteen days (i.e. 23 March 2022) preceding the AGM, the Company will then publish a revised
agenda.

Documents made available by SES

Documents made available by the Company (including the recommendations of the Board of Directors) for the
purpose of this meeting may be inspected during normal working hours by the FDR holders at the offices of
the Fiduciary, Banque et Caisse d’Epargne de I'Etat, Luxembourg, Securities Department, 1, rue Zithe, L-2954
Luxembourg, or alternatively at the offices of the Listing Agents, BGL BNP Paribas S.A., 50, avenue J.F.
Kennedy, L-2951 Luxembourg and Société Générale, GSSI/GIS/CMO/AGL, 32, rue du Champ de Tir, F-44312
Nantes Cedex 3, and are available on the following websites www.ses.com and www.spuerkeess.lu/SES



mailto:corporateactions.sec@spuerkeess.lu
mailto:corporateactions.sec@spuerkeess.lu
http://www.ses.com/
http://www.spuerkeess.lu/SES

Please feel free to contact SES for further queries in this respect at the following address:
shareholders@ses.com
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Annual General Meeting

1  Attendance list, quorum and adoption of the agenda

According to article 24 of the Articles of Association, “The Meeting may deliberate validly only if
at least half of the shares of Class A and at least half of the shares of Class B are represented”.

The Meeting is asked to adopt the agenda.

2 Nomination of a secretary and of two scrutineers

According to article 23 of the Articles of Association “The Chairperson shall appoint a secretary.
The Meeting shall appoint two scrutineers”.

3  Presentation by the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the 2021 activities report of
the Board

Presentation by the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the 2021 activities report of the Board.

SES S.A., Chateau de Betzdorf, L-6815 Betzdorf Annual General Meeting 7 April 2022
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Assemblée Générale Ordinaire

1 Liste de présences, quorum et adoption de I'ordre du jour

D’apreés l'article 24 des statuts, « I’Assemblée ne peut valablement délibérer que si la moitié des
actions des catégories A et la moitié des actions de la catégorie B sont représentées ».

Il est demandé a 'Assemblée d’approuver l'ordre du jour.

2  Désignation d'un secrétaire et de deux scrutateurs

Selon l'article 23 des statuts « Le président de I'Assemblée désigne un secrétaire. UAssemblée
choisit deux scrutateurs ».

3 Présentation par le Président du Conseil d’administration du rapport de gestion du
Conseil pour I'année 2021

Présentation par le Président du Conseil d’administration du rapport de gestion du Conseil pour
I'lannée 2021.

SES S.A., Chateau de Betzdorf, L-6815 Betzdorf Annual General Meeting 7 April 2022
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Annual General Meeting

4 Presentation of the main developments during 2021 and of the outlook

A presentation of the main developments during 2021 and of the outlook will be given during
the meeting.

Please also refer to our Annual Report available under the following link:

https://www.ses.com/companv/investors/reports-and-presentations

Assemblée Générale Ordinaire

4 Présentation des principaux développements de la Société pendant I'année 2021 et
perspectives

Une présentation sur les principaux développements de la société pendant I'année 2021 et les
perspectives sera donnée en cours de séance.

Veuillez-vous référer au Rapport Annuel disponible au le lien suivant :

https://www.ses.com/company/investors/reports-and-presentations

SES S.A., Chateau de Betzdorf, L-6815 Betzdorf Annual General Meeting 7 April 2022
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5 Presentation of the 2021 financial results

A presentation on the 2021 financial results will be given during the meeting.
Please also refer to our Annual Report available under the following link:

https://www.ses.com/company/investors/reports-and-presentations

Assemblée Générale Ordinaire

5 Présentation des résultats financiers pour I'exercice 2021

Une présentation sur les résultats financiers pour I'exercice 2021 sera donnée en cours de
séance.

Veuillez-vous référer au Rapport Annuel disponible au le lien suivant :

https://www.ses.com/company/investors/reports-and-presentations

SES S.A., Chateau de Betzdorf, L-6815 Betzdorf Annual General Meeting 7 April 2022
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Annual General Meeting
6 Presentation of the audit report

A presentation of the audit report will be given during the meeting.

Assemblée Générale Ordinaire
6 Présentation du rapport du réviseur d'entreprises

Une présentation du rapport du réviseur d’entreprises sera donnée en cours de séance.

SES S.A., Chateau de Betzdorf, L-6815 Betzdorf Annual General Meeting 7 April 2022
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Audit report

To the Shareholders of
SES S.A.

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of SES S.A. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) as at
31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union.

Our opinion is consistent with our additional report to the Audit and Risk Committee.
What we have audited
The Group’s consolidated financial statements comprise:

¢ the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021;

the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders' equity for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the EU Regulation No 537/2014, the Law of 23 July 2016
on the audit profession (Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
adopted for Luxembourg by the “Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier” (CSSF). Our
responsibilities under the EU Regulation No 537/2014, the Law of 23 July 2016 and ISAs as adopted
for Luxembourg by the CSSF are further described in the “Responsibilities of the “Réviseur d’entreprises
agréé” for the audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants, including International Independence Standards, issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements. We have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that we have not provided non-audit services that
are prohibited under Article 5(1) of the EU Regulation No 537/2014.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Société coopérative, 2 rue Gerhard Mercator, B.P. 1443, L-1014 Luxembourg
T : +352 494848 1, F : +352 494848 2900, www.pwc.lu

Cabinet de révision agréé. Expert-comptable (autorisation gouvernementale n°10028256)
R.C.S. Luxembourg B 65 477 - TVA LU25482518
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The non-audit services that we have provided to the Company and its controlled undertakings, if
applicable, for the year then ended, are disclosed in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

The application of revenue recognition accounting standards is complex and involves a number of key
judgements and estimates in the determination of the appropriate accounting treatment (lease vs.
service arrangements, identification of the performance obligations and timing of revenue recognition,
barter transactions, principle versus agent considerations, etc.).

We focused on this area due to the inherent complexity and judgement in applying the revenue
recognition accounting standards and to the significant focus on the revenue amount (1,782 million EUR
for the year ended 31 December 2021) by the users of the consolidated financial statements (see
Note 3).

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

e We obtained an understanding of the main revenue streams and evaluated the accounting policy for
revenue recognition thereof;

¢ We held discussions with Management on IFRS accounting analysis of any non-standard revenue
contracts, performed testing of significant new revenue contracts and verified that the underlying
revenue transactions were accounted in accordance with the substance of the commercial
agreement and the relevant IFRS standards;

e We performed substantive analytical procedures at year-end on revenue and revenue-related
accounting in order to identify any unusual variances;

e We tested any unusual and/or significant manual journal entries made to the revenue accounts, both
at local and group level;

¢ We evaluated the deferred revenue schedules and their reconciliation with the accounting;
¢ We performed substantive testing on a sample of revenue transactions;

e We considered the disclosures in Note 3 the consolidated financial statements and assessed their
appropriateness.

Impairment of goodwill and orbital slot license rights (indefinite life)

Management revised the grouping of the cash-generating units of the Group, effectively disaggregating
the GEO CGU into Europe, North America and International CGUs. The MX1 operations, formerly under
the MX1 CGU, were simultaneously integrated into the GEO Europe CGU. The MEO CGU remains
unchanged.
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Management performed the annual impairment test based on the value in use determined on the basis
of a discounted cash flows model for each of the cash-generating units.

The Group has goodwill of 1,520 million EUR and orbital rights with indefinite useful lives of
2,065 million EUR. An impairment expense of 673 million EUR was recognised for the year ended
31 December 2021 in relation to the goodwill at the level of the GEO North America CGU (see Note 14).

We focused on this area due to the high level of judgement in relation with the assumptions used in the
calculation of the recoverable amounts (forecasted cash flows, long-term growth rates, discount
rates, etc.).

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
¢ We tested the design and implementation of relevant internal controls;

e We evaluated Management's determination of the cash generating units as well as the method and
model used for the determination of the value in use, considering the requirements of IAS 36;

e We involved valuation specialists and independently recalculated the weighted average cost of
capital based on the use of market data and verified the long-term growth rate to market data;

¢ We agreed the forecasted cash flows used for the calculation of the value in use to the 2022 Business
Plan as approved by the Board of Directors;

e We evaluated the forecasted revenue and costs assumptions, considering our expectations in terms
of significant developments during the forecast period (significant new contracts or loss thereof) and
corroborated these with market data in respect of demand for satellite capacity and pricing;

e We evaluated the capital expenditure assumptions, considering our expectations in terms of
significant developments during the forecast period (capital expenditure programs, replacement of
satellites) and the expected capital expenditure level in terminal period in order to maintain the
current assets base;

o We performed sensitivity analysis of the models to changes in the key assumptions;

e We considered the appropriateness of the disclosures in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment of satellites

The Group has a space segment assets balance, representing primarily satellites, of 3,377 million EUR
as at 31 December 2021. An impairment expense of 73 million EUR and a reversal of impairment expense
previously recorded of 22 million EUR were recognised for the year ended 31 December 2021 in relation
to several satellites, due to the change in their forecasted future revenue (see Note 12).

The valuation of the satellites might be impacted by events that may or may not be under Management'’s
control (e.g. solar array issues) or by a decrease in revenue due to unfavorable market developments.

Moreover, there is a risk of impairment of the satellites due to obsolescence in the context of rapid
evolution of technology.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We tested the design and implementation of relevant internal controls;

We discussed with Management, and in particular the engineering team about any satellite health
issues and evaluated their impact on the satellites’ capability to generate future cash inflows, and
implicitly on the recoverable amount of the satellites;

We evaluated the forecasted revenue and cost assumptions, considering our expectations in terms
of significant developments during the forecast period (significant new contracts or loss thereof) and
corroborated these with market data in respect of demand for satellite capacity and pricing;

We involved valuation specialists and validated the method used to derive the value in use of
satellites presenting a risk of impairment. We independently recalculated the weighted average cost
of capital based on the use of market data;

We performed sensitivity analysis of the models to changes in the key assumptions;

We considered the disclosures in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

Taxation

The Group operates across a large number of jurisdictions and is subject to various tax legislations and
periodic reviews by local tax authorities of a range of tax matters, including transfer pricing, during the
normal course of business. Moreover, the current tax structure of the Group is evolving to reflect recent
developments in international taxation.

We focused on two specific tax matters relating to the provisions for tax risks, and the recognition and
recoverability of the deferred tax assets, due to the high level of judgment in the determination of the
current and deferred income tax balances and the determination of the level of the tax provisions.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We tested the design and implementation of controls in respect of tax accounting, including the
determination of the provisions for tax risks;

We involved tax specialists in Luxembourg, the Netherlands and the USA, representing the main tax
jurisdictions where the Group has an exposure, to gain an understanding of the current tax risks and
evaluated the current and deferred tax income and expense and related balances;

We held discussions with the Group Tax Management to understand and evaluate positions taken
on uncertain tax risks and assessed the Group tax provision;

We discussed with Management the status of the open tax audits and evaluated their impact on the
consolidated financial statements;

We analysed the recognition and recoverability of the deferred tax assets and determined that it is
supported by forecast future tax profits;

We considered the appropriateness of the disclosures in Note 7 and Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information stated in the consolidated management report and the Corporate Governance Statement
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our audit report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and those charged with governance for the
consolidated financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and for such internal
control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors is responsible for presenting and marking up the consolidated financial
statements in compliance with the requirements set out in the Delegated Regulation 2019/815 on
European Single Electronic Format (“ESEF Regulation”).

Responsibilities of the “Réviseur d’entreprises agréé” for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an audit report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the EU Regulation No 537/2014, the Law of
23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As

part of an audit in accordance with the EU Regulation No 537/2014, the Law of 23 July 2016 and

with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control;

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control;

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors;

conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
audit report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern;

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation;

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities and
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate to them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our audit report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter.

We assess whether the consolidated financial statements have been prepared, in all material respects,
in compliance with the requirements laid down in the ESEF Regulation.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The consolidated management report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements and has
been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

The Corporate Governance Statement is included in the consolidated management report. The
information required by Article 68ter Paragraph (1) Letters c¢) and d) of the Law of 19 December 2002
on the commercial and companies register and on the accounting records and annual accounts of
undertakings, as amended, is consistent with the consolidated financial statements and has been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

We have been appointed as “Réviseur d’Entreprises Agréé” by the General Meeting of the Shareholders
on 1 April 2021 and the duration of our uninterrupted engagement, including previous renewals and
reappointments, is 9 years.

We have checked the compliance of the consolidated financial statements of the Group as at
31 December 2021 with relevant statutory requirements set out in the ESEF Regulation that are
applicable to consolidated financial statements.

For the Group it relates to the requirement that:

e the consolidated financial statements are prepared in a valid XHTML format;
e the XBRL markup of the consolidated financial statements uses the core taxonomy and the
common rules on markups specified in the ESEF Regulation.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group as at 31 December 2021, identified
as "SES Annual report -2021-12-31-en", have been prepared, in all material respects, in compliance
with the requirements laid down in the ESEF Regulation.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Société coopérative Luxembourg, 2 March 2022
Represented by

Francois Mousel



Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2021

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Revenue Note 3 1,782 1,876
C-band repurposing income Note 33 901 10
Cost of sales Note 4 (319) (291)
Staff costs Note 4 (304) (330)
Other operating expenses Note 4 (198) (186)
Operating expenses Note 4 (821) (807)
EBITDA Note 35 1,862 1,079
Depreciation expense Note 12 (575) (625)
Property, plant and equipment impairment Note 12 (51) (183)
Amortisation expense Note 14 (95) (95)
Intangible assets impairment Note 14 (673) (94)
Operating profit Note 3 468 82
Net financing costs Note 6 (71) (184)
Profit/(loss) before tax 397 (102)
Income tax benefit Note 7 49 7
Profit/(loss) after tax 446 (95)
Profit/(loss) for the year 446 (95)

Attributable to:

Owners of the parent 453 (86)
Non-controlling interests ) 9)
446 (95)

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share (in euro)

Class A shares Note 10 0.92 (0.30)
Class B shares Note 10 0.37 (0.12)
Adjusted EBITDA (Note 35) 1,091 1,152
C-band repurposing income Note 33 901 10
C-band operating expenses Note 33 (122) (43)
Restructuring expenses Note 24 (8) (40)
EBITDA 1,862 1,079

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2021

In millions of euros 2021 2020

Profit/(loss) for the year 446 (95)
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation 3 3)
Income tax effect (1) 1
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax 2 2
Income tax relating to treasury shares impairment expense or reversal 1 6
Total items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 3 4

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Impact of currency translation Note 9 471 (624)
Income tax effect Note 9 (36) 35
Total impact of currency translation, net of tax 435 (589)
Net investment hedge Note 18 (102) 113
Income tax effect Note 18 26 (29)
Total net investment hedge, net of tax (76) 84
Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 359 (505)
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax 362 (501)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax 808 (596)

Attributable to:

Owners of the parent 815 (585)
Non-controlling interests ) (12)
808 (596)

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

l1|Page



Consolidated statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2021

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment Note 12 3,773 4,170
Assets in the course of construction Note 13 1,788 1,651
Total property, plant and equipment 5,561 5,821
Intangible assets Note 14 3,790 4,192
Other financial assets 26 14
Trade and other receivables Note 16 245 268
Deferred customer contract costs 9 9
Deferred tax assets Note 8 568 313
Total non-current assets 10,199 10,617
Current assets

Inventories 23 27
Trade and other receivables Note 16 1,746 488
Deferred customer contract costs 3 10
Prepayments 48 72
Income tax receivable 13 11
Cash and cash equivalents Note 19 1,049 1,162
Total current assets 2,882 1,770
Total assets 13,081 12,387
Equity

Attributable to the owners of the parent Note 20 5,670 5,366
Non-controlling interests Note 21 63 72
Total equity 5,733 5,438
Non-current liabilities

Borrowings Note 23 3,524 3,317
Provisions Note 24 6 12
Deferred income Note 15 314 296
Deferred tax liabilities Note 8 399 333
Other long-term liabilities Note 26 83 127
Lease liabilities Note 29 22 25
Fixed assets suppliers Note 27 472 1,310
Total non-current liabilities 4,820 5,420
Current liabilities

Borrowings Note 23 57 613
Provisions Note 24 56 60
Deferred income Note 15 404 454
Trade and other payables Note 25 292 300
Lease liabilities Note 29 11 12
Fixed assets suppliers Note 27 1,554 67
Income tax liabilities 154 23
Total current liabilities 2,528 1,529
Total liabilities 7,348 6,949
Total equity and liabilities 13,081 12,387

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2021

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Profit/(loss) before tax 397 (102)
Taxes paid during the year (31) (31)
Interest expense on borrowings Note 6 96 123
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment Notes 12, 14 1,394 997
Amortisation of client upfront payments (65) (72)
Other non-cash items in the consolidated income statement (41) 76

Consolidated operating profit adjusted for non-cash items and tax
payments and before working capital changes 1,750 991

Changes in working capital

(Increase)/decrease in inventories 4 (6)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (492) 17
Decrease in prepayments and deferred charges 15 17
Decrease in trade and other payables (25) (73)
Increase in upfront payments and deferred income 42 103
Changes in working capital (456) 58
Net cash generated by operating activities 1,294 1,049

Cash flow from investing activities

Payments for purchases of intangible assets 37) (39)
Payments for purchases of tangible assets (243) (171)
Other investing activities 3) (@)
Net cash absorbed by investing activities (283) (217)

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings Note 30 159 395
Repayment of borrowings Note 30 (614) (785)
Proceeds from Perpetual bond, net of transaction costs Note 20 617 -
Redemption of Perpetual bond, net of transaction costs Note 20 (768) -
Coupon paid on perpetual bond Note 20 (85) (66)
Dividends paid on ordinary shares* Note 11 (181) (182)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest ) -
Interest paid on borrowings (121) (152)
Payments for acquisition of treasury shares (119) (10)
Proceeds from treasury shares sold and exercise of stock options 1 9
Lease payments Note 29 (14) (15)
Payment in respect of changes in ownership interest in subsidiaries - (@)
Net cash absorbed by financing activities (1,127) (813)
Net foreign exchange movements 3 (12)
Net increase in cash (113) 7
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year Note 19 1,162 1,155
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year Note 19 1,049 1,162

1 Dividends are presented net of dividends received on treasury shares of EUR 2 million (2020: EUR 2 million)

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Attributable to owners of the parent

Foreign
Issued Share Treasury  Perpetual Other Retained currency Total contr(’)\:lci)r?- Total equit
capital premium shares bond reserves? earnings translation interesgt quity
reserve
In millions of euros
At 1 January 2021 719 1,636 (76) 1,300 2,583 (86) (710) 5,366 72 5,438
Result for the year - - - - - 453 - 453 @) 446
Other comprehensive income - - - - 3 - 359 362 - 362
Total comprehensive income for ) ) ) ) 3 453 359 815 % 808
the year
Allocation of 2020 result - - - - (86) 86 - - - -
Issue of_new Perpetual bond, net of ) ) - 625 ®) ) ) 617 i 617
transaction costs
Redemptlon of Perpetual bond, net of ) ) - (750) (18) ) ) (768) i (768)
transaction costs
Coupon on perpetual bond (Note 20) - - - - (85) - - (85) - (85)
Tax on perpetual bond coupon (Note ) ) - - 20 - - 20 - 20
20)
- - - - 2

Dividends provided for or paid* - - (181) (181) @ (183)
Acquisition of treasury shares - - (119) - - - - (119) - (119)
Share-based compensation expense ) ) ) - 5 - - 5 - 5
(Note 22)
Exercise of share-based compensation - - 6 - (6) - - - - -
At 31 December 2021 719 1,636 (189) 1,175 2,227 453 (351) 5,670 63 5,733

1

2

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Dividends are presented net of dividends received on treasury shares of EUR 2 million.

The non-distributable items included in other reserves are described in Note 20.
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Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Attributable to owners of the parent

Issu_ed Sh_are Treasury  Perpetual Otheg Retained cE?rreGr;?:; Total control\lll(i)r?g; Total equity
capital premium shares bond reserves earnings translation interest
reserve

In millions of euros
At 1 January 2020 719 1,636 (90) 1,300 2,519 296 (207) 6,173 83 6,256
Result for the year - - - - - (86) - (86) 9 (95)
Other comprehensive income - - - - 4 - (503) (499) 2 (501)
;I;]oet:;lllec;c:mprehenswe income for i i ) ) 4 (86) (503) (585) (11) (596)
Allocation of 2019 result - - - - 296 (296) - - - -
Coupon on perpetual bond (Note 20) - - - - (66) - - (66) - (66)
;’81;( on perpetual bond coupon (Note ) ) - - 18 - - 18 - 18
Dividends provided for or paid* - - i i (182) ) ) (182) ) (182)
Acquisition of treasury shares - - (10) ) - i (10) (10)
Share-based compensation expense - - - - 10 - - 10 - 10
Exercise of share-based compensation i - ! ) (14) i i ) i )
Sale of treasury shares i - 17 ) - i i 17 i 17
Other movements - - - - 2 . . 2 i 2
At 31 December 2020 719 1,636 (76) 1,300 2,583 (86) (710) 5,366 72 5,438

1 Dividends are presented net of dividends received on treasury shares of EUR 2 million.

2 The non-distributable items included in other reserves are described in Note 20.

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2021

Note 1 - Corporate information

SES S.A. (‘'SES’ or ‘the Company’) was incorporated on 16 March 2001 as a limited liability company (Société Anonyme) under
Luxembourg Law. References to ‘the Group’ in the following notes are to the Company and its subsidiaries. SES trades under ‘SESG’
on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and Euronext, Paris. The registered office of the Company is established at the Chéateau de
Betzdorf, L-6815 Betzdorf, Luxembourg.

SES is a leader in global content connectivity solutions, leveraging a vast and intelligent network spanning satellite and ground
infrastructure to create, deliver and manage video and data solutions enabling customers to connect more people in more places with
content that enriches their personal stories with knowledge, entertainment and opportunity.

The consolidated financial statements of SES as at, and for the year ended, 31 December 2021 were authorised for issue in accordance

with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 23 February 2022. Under Luxembourg Law, the consolidated financial statements are
approved by the shareholders at their Annual General Meeting.

Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB’) and endorsed by the European Union (‘IFRS’), as at 31 December 2021.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except where fair value is required by IFRS.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in euro (EUR). Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are rounded to the nearest
million, except share and earnings per share data and audit and non-audit fee disclosures.

Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the following new and amended
IFRS, effective from 1 January 2021 and adopted by the Group. Any new IFRS amendments, effective from 1 January 2021 and not
mentioned below are not applicable to the Group.

1) Amendments to IFRS 4 “Insurance contracts — deferral of IFRS 9”

The amendments extend the expiry date of the temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 from 1 January 2021 to 1 January 2023
to align the effective dates of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts. The amendments were endorsed by
the EU and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. The adoption of these amendments did not have
any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

2) Amendments to IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that arise from the implementation of the reforms, including the replacement of one benchmark
with an alternative one. The Phase 2 amendments provide additional temporary reliefs from applying specific IAS 39 and IFRS 9
hedge accounting requirements to hedging relationships directly affected by IBOR reform. The amendments were endorsed by the
EU and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. The adoption of these amendments did not have any
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements (see Note 23).
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3) Amendment to IFRS 16, “Leases” — COVID-19 related rent concessions

As a result of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, rent concessions have been granted to lessees. Such concessions might take
a variety of forms, including payment holidays and deferral of lease payments. On 31 March 2021, the IASB published an additional
amendment to extend the date of the practical expedient from 30 June 2021 to 30 June 2022. Lessees can elect to account for such
rent concessions in the same way as they would if they were not lease modifications. In many cases, this will result in accounting for
the concession as variable lease payments in the period(s) in which the event or condition that triggers the reduced payment occurs.
The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2021. The adoption of this amendment did not
have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its controlled subsidiaries, after the
elimination of all inter-company transactions. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date the Company obtains control until such
time as control ceases. The financial statements of subsidiaries are generally prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. If required, adjustments are made to align any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. For
details regarding the subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements see Note 36.

Total comprehensive income or loss incurred by a subsidiary is attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit
balance. Should a change in the ownership interest in a subsidiary occur, without a loss of control, this is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

Should the Group cease to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purpose of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are presented separately in the consolidated income statement,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of financial position respectively.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint control. The Group accounts for investments
in associates using the equity method of accounting.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is carried in the statement of financial position at cost plus post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the profit or loss of the associate. Goodwill relating to an associate is included in the carrying amount
of the investment and is not amortised.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired.
If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount within ‘Share of associates’ result’ in the consolidated income statement.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals, or exceeds, its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. In general, the financial statements of associates are prepared for the same
reporting year as the parent company, using consistent accounting policies. If required, adjustments are made to align any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist. For details regarding the associates included in the consolidated financial statements see Note 36.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the Group and its associates are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associates. Dilution gains and losses

arising in investments in associates are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

The Group ceases to use the equity method of accounting on the date from which it no longer has significant influence over the associate,
or when the interest becomes classified as an asset held for sale.
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Significant accounting judgments and estimates

1) Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

0]

(i)

Treatment of orbital slot licence rights

The Group’s operating companies have obtained rights to operate satellites at certain orbital locations and using certain
frequency bands. These licences are obtained through applications to the relevant national and international regulatory
authorities and are generally made available for a defined period. Where the Group has obtained such rights through the
acquisition of subsidiaries, the rights have been identified as an asset acquired and recorded at the fair value attributed to the
asset at the time of the acquisition as a result of purchase accounting procedure.

In the cases when, on the expiry of such rights, management believes it will be able to successfully re-apply for their usage at
insignificant incremental cost, then such rights are deemed to have an indefinite life. Hence these assets are not amortised, but
rather are subject to regular impairment reviews to confirm that the carrying value in the Group’s financial statements is still
appropriate. More details are given in Note 14.

Taxation

The Group operates in numerous tax jurisdictions and management is required to assess tax issues and exposures across its
entire operations and to accrue for potential liabilities based on its interpretation of country-specific tax law and best estimates.
In conducting this review management assesses the magnitude of the issue and the likelihood, based on experience and
specialist advice, as to whether it will result in a liability for the Group. If this is deemed to be the case, then a provision is
recognised for the potential taxation charges. More details are given in Notes 7 and 24.

One significant area of management judgement is around transfer pricing. Whilst the Group employs dedicated members of
staff to establish and maintain appropriate transfer pricing structures and documentation, judgement still needs to be applied
and hence potential tax exposures can be identified in the different jurisdictions where the Group operates. The Group, as part
of its overall assessment of liabilities for taxation, reviews in detail the transfer pricing structures in place and records provisions
where this seems appropriate on a case-by-case basis.

(iii) Consolidation of entities in which the Group holds 50% or less

e Al Maisan Satellite Communication LLC (trading as ‘Yahlive’)

Management has concluded that the Group controls Al Maisan Satellite Communication LLC (‘Yahlive’), even though it
holds a 35% economic interest in this subsidiary since it has the majority of the voting rights on the Board of Directors of
Yahlive and there are no voting rights at the shareholder level which could affect SES’ control.

SES has effective control over the relevant activities of Yahlive, such as budget approval, appointment and removal of the
Chief Executive Officer and senior management team members as well as the effective control over the appointment or
removal of the majority of the members of the Board of Directors. The entity is therefore consolidated with a 65%
non-controlling interest (see Note 21).

e LuxGovSat S.A.
SES and the Luxembourg government jointly incorporated the legal entity LuxGovSat S.A. (‘LuxGovSat’) as a limited liability
company (Société Anonyme) under Luxembourg law, subscribing equally in the equity of the new company. Management

has concluded that the Group controls LuxGovSat since SES has effective control over the relevant activities of the entity.
It is therefore consolidated with a 50% non-controlling interest (see Note 21).
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@iv)

SES Government Solutions, Inc.

SES Government Solutions, Inc., USA (‘SES GS’) is subject to specific governance rules and is managed through a
Proxy Agreement agreed with the Defense Security Service (‘DSS’) department of the US Department of Defense (‘DOD’).
The DSS is a governmental authority responsible for the protection of information deemed classified or sensitive with respect
to the national security of the United States of America. A proxy agreement is an instrument intended to mitigate the risk of
foreign ownership, control or influence when a foreign person acquires or merges with a US entity that has a facility security
clearance. A proxy agreement conveys a foreign owner’s voting rights to proxy holders, comprising the proxy board. Proxy
holders are cleared US citizens approved by the DSS.

The DSS required that SES GS enter into a proxy agreement because it is indirectly owned by SES and SES GS has contracts
with the DOD which contain classified information. The Proxy Agreement enables SES GS to patrticipate in such contracts with
the US Government despite being owned by a non-US corporation.

As a result of the Proxy Agreement, certain limitations are placed on the information which may be shared, and the interaction
which may occur, between SES GS and other Group companies. The Proxy Holders, besides acting as directors of SES GS,
are entitled to vote in the context of a trust relationship with SES on which basis their activity is performed in the interest of
SES’s shareholders and of US national security.

SES’s assessment of the effective control over the relevant activities of SES GS encompassed the activities of operating and
capital decision making, the appointment and remuneration of key management, and the exposure to the variability of financial
returns based on the financial performance of SES GS.

Based on this assessment, SES concluded that, from an IFRS 10 perspective, SES has, and is able to exercise, power over
the relevant activities of SES GS and has an exposure to variable returns from its involvement in SES GS - and therefore
controls the entity.

2) Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year(s), are
described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in revisions to the assumptions
when they occur.

0]

(i)

(iii)

Impairment testing for goodwill and other indefinite-life intangible assets

The Group determines whether goodwill and other indefinite-life intangible assets are impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units (‘CGUSs’) to which the goodwill and other indefinite-life
intangible assets are allocated. Establishing the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
pre-tax cash flows from the CGU and to choose a suitable pre-tax discount rate and terminal growth rate to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. More details are given in Note 14.

Impairment testing for space segment assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indicator that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the Group determines an estimate of the recoverable amount, as the higher of: (1) the fair value less cost of disposal
and, (2) its value in use, to determine whether the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount included in the consolidated
financial statements. For the Group’s satellites, the estimation of the value in use requires estimations of the future commercial
revenues to be generated by each satellite, particularly related to new markets or services, and also the impact of past in-orbit
anomalies and their potential impact on the satellite’s ability to provide its expected commercial service (Note 12).

Recoverability of deferred tax assets

The Group recognises deferred tax assets primarily in connection with the carry-forward of unused tax losses and tax credits.
The Group reviews the tax position in the different jurisdictions in which it operates to assess the need to recognise such assets
based mainly on projections of taxable profits to be generated in each of those jurisdictions. The carrying amount of each
deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that current projections indicate that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to enable all, or part, of the asset to be recovered.
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(iv) Expected credit losses on trade receivables and unbilled accrued revenue

The Group estimates expected credit losses on trade receivables and unbilled accrued revenues using a provision matrix
based on loss expectancy rates and forward-looking information. The Group records additional losses if circumstances or
forward-looking information cause the Group to believe that an additional collectability risk exists which is not reflected in the
loss expectancy rates (Note 16).

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of the
subsidiary is measured as the aggregate of the:

¢ fair value of the assets transferred,;

e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business;

e equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration agreement; and
o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

For each business combination, SES measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs incurred are expensed and included in other operating expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets acquired and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. Assets
acquired, and liabilities assumed, are recognised at fair value.

The excess of the:

e consideration transferred;
e amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity; and
e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity;

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value
as at the date of exchange. If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss. Any contingent consideration
to be transferred by SES will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration which is deemed to be an asset, or a liability, will be recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is initially recorded at historical cost, representing either the acquisition or manufacturing cost. Satellite
cost includes the launcher and launch insurance, less depreciation and impairment losses.

The financial impact of changes resulting from a revision of management’s estimate of the cost of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in the consolidated income statement in the period concerned.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement date of the lease, less any lease incentives received,
e any initial direct costs; and

e restoration costs.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in

profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT-equipment and small items
of office furniture. Costs for the repair and maintenance of these assets are recorded as an expense.
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Property, plant and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line method, generally based on the following useful lives:

e Buildings 25 years
e Space segment assets 10 to 18 years
e Ground segment assets 3to 15 years
e Other fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment 3to 15 years
¢ Right-of-use assets 6 to 12 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the derecognition of an asset is included in the consolidated income statement in the period the
asset is derecognised. The residual values, remaining useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted where necessary.

For reimbursable capitalised costs related to the procurement of satellites, launches, and upgraded ground facilities as part of the
U.S. C-band repurposing project, the Group applies government grant accounting. The Group records credits to the recorded book
values of the related asset when the costs have been incurred and the Group has obtained reasonable assurance that the costs will
be reimbursed and that it will comply with the requirements attached to the reimbursement. See additional information in Note 33.

Assets in the course of construction

This caption includes satellites under construction. Incremental costs directly attributable to the purchase of satellites and bringing the
asset in the condition and location to be used as intended by management, such as launch costs and other related expenses such as
ground equipment and borrowing costs, are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.

The cost of satellite construction may include an element of deferred consideration to satellite manufacturers referred to as satellite
performance incentives. SES is contractually obligated to make these payments over the lives of the satellites, provided the satellites
continue to operate in accordance with contractual specifications. Therefore, SES accounts for these payments as deferred financing,
capitalising the present value of the payments as part of the cost of the satellites and recording a corresponding liability to the satellite
manufacturers. An interest expense is recognised on the deferred financing and the liability is accreted based on the passage of time
and reduced as the payments are made.

Once the asset is subsequently put into service and ready to operate in the manner intended by management, the expenditure is
transferred to assets in use and depreciation commences.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the construction
period as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Intangible assets
1) Goodwill
Goodwill is measured as described in accounting policy for business combinations in Note 2.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For impairment testing, goodwill from
the acquisition date is allocated to each of the Group’s CGUs that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units.

The carrying value of acquisition goodwill is not amortised, but rather is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if required
to establish whether the value is still recoverable. The recoverable amount is defined as the higher of: (1) fair value less costs to sell
and, (2) value in use. Impairment expenses are recorded in the consolidated income statement. Impairment losses relating to goodwiill
cannot be reversed in future periods.

The Group estimates value in use based on the estimated discounted cash flows to be generated by a CGU using five-year business
plans approved by the Board of Directors. Beyond a five-year period, cash flows are generally estimated on the basis of stable rates
of growth or decline, although longer periods may be considered where relevant to accurately calculate the value in use.

Where goodwill forms part of a CGU and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, then the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on its disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
this situation is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the CGU unit retained.
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2) Other intangibles
(i) Orbital rights

Intangible assets consist principally of rights of usage of orbital frequencies. The Group is authorised by governments to operate
satellites at certain orbital locations. Governments acquire rights to these orbital locations through filings made with the
International Telecommunication Union (‘ITU’), a sub-organisation of the United Nations. The Group will continue to have rights
to operate at its orbital locations so long as it maintains its authorisations to do so. Those rights are reviewed at acquisition to
establish whether they represent assets with a definite or indefinite life. Those assessed as being definite life assets are
amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life not exceeding 30 years.

Indefinite-life intangible assets are held at cost and are subject to impairment testing in line with the treatment outlined for
goodwill above. Assets with indefinite lives are reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues
to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. Orbital
rights acquired for a non-cash consideration are initially measured at the fair value of the consideration given.

(ii) Software and development costs

Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs that are
directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Group are recognised
as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

e itis technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;

¢ management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;

e there is an ability to use or sell the software product;

¢ it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits;

e adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software product are
available; and

¢ the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software product include the software development employee costs
and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are
recognised as an expense as incurred. Software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated
useful life, not exceeding seven years.

Impairment of other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable.
If such an indication exists then the recoverable amount of the asset or CGU is reviewed to determine the amount of the impairment, if
any.

Impairments can arise from complete or partial failure of a satellite as well as other changes in expected discounted future cash flows.
Such impairment tests are based on a recoverable value determined using estimated future cash flows and an appropriate discount rate.
The estimated cash flows are based on the most recent business plans. If an impairment is identified, the carrying value will be written
down to its recoverable amount.

Investments and other financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss; and
e those to be measured at amortised cost.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not remeasured to fair
value through the income statement, transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value and revalued through the income statement are expensed in the period when they were incurred.
All regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the date that the Group is committed to the purchase or sale of the
asset.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.
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Equity investments

Unless SES has significant influence, the Group measures all equity investments at fair value. Changes in the fair value of financial
assets are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Deferred customer contract costs

Deferred customer contract costs include the cost of equipment provided to customers under the terms of their service agreements,
when the equipment and services are not deemed to be distinct and are expensed over the term of those contracts.

Inventories

Inventories primarily consist of equipment held for re-sale, work-in-progress, related accessories and network equipment spares and are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, with cost determined on a weighted average-cost method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. For impairment of trade receivables, the Group estimates expected lifetime credit losses that would
typically be carried for each receivable based on the credit risk class upon the initial recognition of the receivables. Expected lifetime
credit losses are estimated based on historical financial information as well as forward-looking data. Additional provisions are recognised
when specific circumstances or forward-looking information lead the Group to believe that additional collectability risk exists with
respect to customers that are not adequately reflected in loss expectancy rates. The Group writes off trade receivables when it has
no reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group evaluates the credit risk of its customers on an ongoing basis.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Prepayments

Prepayments represent expenditures paid during the financial year but relating to a subsequent financial year. The prepaid expenses
comprise mainly insurance, rental of third-party satellite capacity, advertising expenses as well as loan origination costs related to loan
facilities which have not been drawn.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares are mostly acquired by the Group in connection with share-based compensation plans and are presented as a set off
to equity in the consolidated statement of financial position. Gains and losses on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of treasury
shares are not recognised in the consolidated income statement, but rather in the equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand, deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash on hand and in banks and short-term deposits
which are held to maturity are carried at fair value.

Revenue recognition

Revenues are generated predominantly from customer service agreements for the provision of satellite capacity over contractually
agreed periods, including short-term occasional use capacity, with the associated uplinking and downlinking services as appropriate.
Other revenue-generating activities mainly include sale of customer equipment; platform services; subscription revenue; income
received in connection with satellite interim missions; installation and other engineering services and proceeds from the sale of
transponders if the revenue recognition criteria for the transaction are met.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue when or as it transfers control of a good or service to a customer.
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Contract modifications are accounted for either as a separate contract or as part of the existing contract, depending on the nature of the
modification. The Group accounts for a modification as a separate contract if:

e the scope of the contract increases because of the addition of distinct goods or services, and
e the price of the contract increases by an amount of consideration that reflects the stand-alone selling prices of the additional goods
or services.

A modification that does not meet the above criteria to be accounted for as a separate contract is accounted for as an adjustment to the
existing contract, either prospectively or through a cumulative catch-up adjustment. The determination depends on whether the remaining
goods or services to be provided to the customer under the modified contract are distinct from those already provided, in which case
the modification results in a prospective adjustment to revenue recognition.

Where a contract contains elements of variable consideration, the Group estimates the amount of variable consideration to which it will
be entitled under the contract. Variable consideration can arise, for example, as a result of variable prices, incentives or other similar
items. Variable consideration is only included in the transaction price if, and to the extent that, it is highly probable that its inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty has been subsequently resolved.

The Group occasionally receives non-cash consideration as part of a revenue transaction. The Group measures non-cash consideration
at fair value unless it is unable to reasonably estimate fair value, in which case the Group measures the consideration indirectly based
on the standalone selling price of the goods or services promised to the customer.

Revenue from provision of satellite capacity

For the Group’s contracts to provide satellite capacity, the Group makes capacity available to customers in a series of time periods
that are distinct and have the same pattern of transfer to the customer. Revenue from customers under service agreements for
satellite capacity is recognised on a straight-line basis over the duration of the respective contracts, including any free-of-charge
periods. Using a straight-line measure of progress most faithfully depicts the Group’s performance because the Group makes
available a consistent level of capacity over each distinct time period. Revenue will cease to be recognised if there is an indication of
a significant deterioration in a customer’s ability to pay for the remaining goods or services.

Revenue from the sale of equipment

The Group recognises revenue for the sale of equipment when it transfers control of the equipment to the customer, which is
typically when the Group transfers title, physical possession, and the significant risks and rewards of the equipment to the
customer. The Group’s equipment contracts do not typically contain a right of return.

For contracts in which the Group sells both equipment and capacity services, the Group evaluates at contract inception whether
the equipment and capacity services represent separate performance obligations. When they represent separate performance
obligations, the Group allocates consideration to the equipment and services based on relative standalone selling prices using
either an expected cost plus a margin approach or an adjusted market assessment approach. When they do not represent
separate performance obligations, the Group records revenue related to the single performance obligation over the contract
period.

For equipment sales requiring the Group to perform significant integration, modification, or customisation of equipment, the Group
recognises revenue over time if the equipment does not have an alternative use and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date. For these projects, the Group recognises revenue over time on a basis reflecting
the costs incurred to date relative to the total costs expected to be incurred because costs incurred best reflect the pattern of
transfer of control of the asset to the customer.

The Group may offer warranties on equipment. For warranties that are separately priced or offered as extended warranties, the
Group recognises revenue on a straight-line basis over the duration of the warranty period. Using a straight-line measure of
progress most faithfully depicts the Group’s performance due to the nature of the Group’s stand ready obligation during the
warranty period. The Group also offers standard warranties with contract durations which are typically one year and represent
assurance-type warranties. Standard warranties do not represent performance obligations separate from the related equipment,
and revenue related to standard warranties is recognised at the same time as the related equipment.

Subscription revenue

The subscription revenue related to HD Plus services is recorded on a linear basis over the term of the subscription agreement.

24| Page



Proceeds from sale of transponders

The proceeds of transponder sales are recognised in the period of the transaction at the time the Group transfers control of the
transponders, which generally corresponds to the timing of transfer of title and risks and rewards associated with the holding of the
transponders.

Revenue generated by engineering services

For engineering services, the Group recognises revenue over time on a basis reflecting the costs incurred to date relative to the total
costs expected to be incurred since this best reflects the pattern of transfer of control of the services to the customer.

Lease income

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is lessor is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The respective
right-of-use assets are included in the consolidated statement of financial position together with other assets of the same category.

C-band repurposing income

Income from successfully meeting the separate Phase 1 and Phase 2 C-band Accelerated Relocation Payment deadlines is recognised
when the Group has successfully completed Phase 1 and Phase 2 Accelerated Relocations, respectively, and has received validation of
the respective relocation certifications from the U.S. Federal Communications Commission’s (“FCC”) Wireless Telecommunications Bureau.

Income arising from settlements from the Relocation Payment Clearinghouse (‘the Clearinghouse’) are recognised when the expenses
have been incurred and the Group has obtained reasonable assurance that the costs will be reimbursed and that it will comply with
the requirements attached to the reimbursement. The Group believes it obtains such reasonable assurance either when the
Clearinghouse specifically validates the costs as being reimbursable, or where the costs fall within applicable cost ranges published
by the Clearinghouse in its cost catalogue. More details are given in Note 33.

Other income

Other income arising from settlements under insurance claims and decreases in provisions for in-orbit incentives are recognised when
they are virtually certain of being realised. Other income is presented as part of revenue due to its relative insignificance.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers include trade receivables, unbilled accrued revenue, deferred customer
contract costs, and deferred income.

Customer payments received in advance of the provision of service are recorded as contract liabilities and presented as ‘deferred income’
in the statement of financial position, and for significant advance payments, interest is accrued on the amount received at the effective
interest rate at the time of receipt. Our contracts at times contain prepayment terms that range from one month in advance to one year
in advance of providing the service. Since the period of time between when the Group transfers a promised good or service to a
customer and when the customer pays for that good or service is one year or less, the Group does not make an adjustment to the
transaction price for the effects of a significant financing component.

The unbilled portion of recognised revenues is recorded as a contract asset and presented as ‘unbilled accrued revenue’ within “Trade
and other receivables’, allocated between current and non-current as appropriate.

Customer payments are generally due in advance or by the end of the month of capacity service.
Dividends

The Company declares dividends after the consolidated financial statements for the year have been approved. Accordingly, dividends
are recorded in the subsequent year’s consolidated financial statements.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period.
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Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as origination costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs.

Current taxes

Current tax assets and liabilities for current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid to,
the tax authorities. The tax rates and laws used to compute these amounts are those enacted, or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax is determined using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

¢ where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws which have been enacted, or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred taxes are classified according to the classification of the underlying temporary difference either as income or as an expense
included in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date, are
recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. The adjustment is either treated as a reduction

in goodwill (as long as it does not exceed goodwill) if it was incurred during the measurement period or recognised in profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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Translation of foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented in euro (EUR), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the entity’s functional currency at the exchange rate prevailing at the date
of the transaction. The cost of non-monetary assets is translated at the rate applicable at the date of the transaction. All other assets
and liabilities are translated at closing rates of the period. During the year, expenses and income expressed in foreign currencies are
recorded at exchange rates which approximate the rate prevailing on the date they occur or accrue. All exchange differences resulting
from the application of these principles are included in the consolidated income statement.

The Group considers that monetary long-term receivables or loans with a subsidiary that is a foreign operation for which settlement
is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future is, in substance, a part of the entity’s net investment in that foreign
operation. The related foreign exchange differences and income tax effect of the foreign exchange differences are included in the
foreign currency translation reserve within equity. On disposal of a foreign operation, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in
equity relating to that foreign operation is reclassified to the consolidated income statement.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.

The assets and liabilities of consolidated foreign operations are translated into euro at the year-end exchange rates, while the income
and expense items of these foreign operations are translated at the average exchange rate of the year. The related foreign exchange
differences are included in the foreign currency translation reserve within equity. On disposal of a foreign operation, the deferred
cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that foreign operation is reclassified to the consolidated income statement as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

The US dollar exchange rates used by the Group during the year were as follows:

Average rate Closing rate Average rate Closing rate
for 2021 for 2021 for 2020 for 2020
UsSbD 1.1894 1.1326 1.1384 1.2271

Basic earnings per share

The Company’s capital structure consists of Class A and Class B shares, entitled to the payment of annual dividends as approved by
the shareholders at their annual meetings. Holders of Class B shares participate in earnings and are entitled to 40% of the dividends
payable per Class A share. Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders, adjusted
by deducting the assumed coupon, net of tax, on the perpetual bonds, by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the period as adjusted to reflect the economic rights of each class of shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to reflect the weighted average
number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

Hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation

Changes in the fair value of a derivative or non-derivative instrument that is designated as a hedge of a net investment are recorded in
the foreign currency translation reserve within equity to the extent that it is deemed to be an effective hedge. The ineffective portion is
recognised in the consolidated income statement as finance income or cost.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, the hedge no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting, or the Group revokes the designation. At that point in time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
recognised in equity is kept in equity until the forecasted transaction occurs. If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
net cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is transferred to net profit or loss for the period.
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The Group formally documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk-management
objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. This process includes allocating all derivatives that are designated as
net investment hedges to specific assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group also formally
assesses both at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, whether each derivative is highly effective in offsetting changes in
fair values or cash flows of the hedged item. If it is determined that a derivative is not highly effective as a hedge, or if a derivative ceases
to be a highly effective hedge, the Group will discontinue hedge accounting prospectively. The ineffective portion of hedge is recognised
in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
1) Financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised where:

e the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;

o the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material
delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either:

a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of that
asset.

2) Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. Where an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial position, when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Accounting for pension obligations

The Company and certain subsidiaries operate defined contribution pension plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions to a third-party financial institution. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the financial institution’s pension fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The

contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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Share-based payments
1) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans

Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based compensation
transactions, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (‘equity-settled transactions’). The cost
of equity-settled transactions is measured by reference to the fair value at the date on which they are granted. The fair value is
determined by an external valuer using a binomial model for the Stock Appreciation Rights Plan (‘STAR Plan’) and Equity Based
Compensation Plan comprising options (‘EBCP Option Plan’), and a Black Scholes Model for the Equity Based Compensation
Plan comprising performance shares (‘EBCP PS’) and restricted shares (‘EBCP RS’). Further details are given in Note 22. In
valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any non-market performance conditions, the valuation being linked only
to the price of the Company’s shares, if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled
to the award (the vesting date). The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The consolidated income statement charge or credit for a period represents the movement
in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period. No expense is recognised for awards that do
not ultimately vest.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per share
(see Note 10).

2) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans

A liability is recognised for the fair value of cash-settled transactions. The fair value is measured initially at each reporting date up
to and including the settlement date, with changes in fair value recognised in employee benefits expense. The fair value is
expensed over the period until the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding liability. The fair value is determined using a
binomial model, further details of which are given in Note 22.

Deeply Subordinated Fixed Rate Resettable Securities (“Perpetual bond”)

The deeply subordinated fixed rate securities issued by the Company are classified as equity since the Company has no contractual
obligation to redeem the securities, and coupon payments may be deferred under certain circumstances (more details are given in
Note 20) and recorded at fair value. Subsequent changes in fair value are not recognised in equity. Coupons become payable
whenever the Company makes dividend payments. Coupon accruals are considered in the determination of earnings for calculating
earnings per share (see Note 10).

Leases

The determination as to whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception
date, primarily whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the Group as lessee has both the right to direct the identified asset’s use and to obtain
substantially all the economic benefits from that use.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate;

e amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined, or the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate. At the commencement of a lease the Group recognises a lease asset and a lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term, discounted at the rate implicit in the lease. Lease
payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance costs are charged directly to expense.
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In its accounting policies the Group applies the following practical expedients:

e using a single discount rate for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics; and
e not accounting for leases ending within 12 months of the date of the initial application, or where the underlying asset has a low value.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are relevant for the Group and effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, and have not been early adopted in preparing these consolidated financial statements:

1) Amendments to IAS 1 on classification of liabilities as current or non-current

On 23 January 2020, the IASB issued “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to IAS 1)”. The
amendment will affect the presentation of liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position. The amendment clarifies
that the classification of a liability as current or non-current should be based on rights in existence at the end of the reporting
period to defer settlement of a liability by at least 12 months. The amendment also clarifies that the classification of a liability
should be unaffected by the entity’s expectations regarding whether it will exercise its rights to defer payment. The amendment
is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. The amendment was not yet endorsed by the EU.
The Group does not expect any significant impact of these amendments on its consolidated financial statements.

2) Amendment to IFRS 3, IAS 16, IAS 37 and annual improvements 2018-2020

Amendments to IFRS 3, “Business combinations” update a reference in IFRS 3 to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting without changing the accounting requirements for business combinations.

Amendments to IAS 16, “Property, plant and equipment” prohibit a company from deducting from the cost of property, plant and
equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead,
a company will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss.

Amendments to IAS 37, “Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets” specify which costs a company includes when
assessing whether a contract will be loss-making.

Annual improvements make minor amendments to IFRS 1, “First-time adoption of IFRS”, IFRS 9. “Financial instruments”,
IAS 41. “Agriculture” and the illustrative examples accompanying IFRS 16, ‘Leases’.

The amendments were endorsed by the EU and are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
The Group does not expect any significant impact of these amendments on its consolidated financial statements.

3) Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8

On 12 February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” regarding the disclosure of
accounting policies and as well amendments to IAS 8 “Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors” on the
definition of accounting estimates. Both amendments aim to improve accounting policy disclosure and to help users of the
financial statements to distinguish between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. The
amendments were not yet endorsed by the EU and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. The
Group does not expect any significant impact of these amendments on its consolidated financial statements.

4) Amendments to IAS 12 related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction

On 6 May 2021, the IASB published the amendments to IAS 12 “Income taxes” regarding the deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single transaction, that clarifies how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. The amendments were not yet endorsed by the EU and are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023. The Group does not expect any significant impact of these amendments on its consolidated
financial statements.
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Note 3 - Segment information

The Group does business in one operating segment, namely the provision of satellite-based data transmission capacity, and ancillary
services, to customers around the world.

The Senior Leadership Team (‘SLT’), which is the chief operating decision-making committee in the Group’s corporate governance
structure, reviews the Group’s financial reporting and generates those proposals for the allocation of the Group’s resources which
are submitted for validation to the Board of Directors. The main sources of financial information used by the SLT in assessing the
Group’s performance and allocating resources are:

e analyses of the Group’s revenues from its business units SES Video and SES Networks (comprising the sales verticals Fixed
Data, Mobility and Government);

e cost and overall Group profitability development;

e internal and external analyses of expected future developments in the markets into which capacity is being delivered and of the
commercial landscape applying to those markets.

When analysing the performance of the operating segment against the prior period figures, these are presented both as reported and

at ‘constant FX’, whereby they are recomputed using the prevailing exchange rates for each corresponding month of the current
period.
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The segment’s financial results for 2021 are set out below:

Change

In millions of euros 2021 2020 Favourable +/- Adverse
Revenue 1,782 1,876 -5.0%
C-band repurposing income 901 10 N/m
Operating expenses (821) (807) -1.7%
EBITDA 1,862 1,079 72.6%
EBITDA margin (%) 69.4% 57.2% 12.2% pts
Depreciation and impairment (626) (808) 22.5%
Amortisation and impairment (768) (189) N/m
Operating profit 468 82 N/m
Adjusted EBITDA 1,091 1,152 -5.2%
Adjusted EBITDA margin 61.2% 61.4% -0.3% pts
C-band repurposing income 901 10 N/m
C-band operating expenses (122) (43) N/m
Restructuring expenses 8) (40) 80.0%
EBITDA 1,862 1,079 72.6%
Constant Change

In millions of euros 2021  FX 2020 Favourable +/- Adverse
Revenue 1,782 1,835 -2.9%
C-band repurposing income 901 11 N/m
Operating expenses (821) (789) -4.1%
EBITDA 1,862 1,057 76.2%
EBITDA margin (%) 69.4% 57.6% 11.8% pts
Depreciation and impairment (626) (802) 21.9%
Amortisation and impairment (768) (190) N/m
Operating profit 468 65 N/m
Adjusted EBITDA 1,091 1,128 -3.3%
Adjusted EBITDA margin 61.2% 61.4% -0.3% pts
C-band repurposing other income 901 11 N/m
C-band operating expenses (122) (42) N/m
Restructuring expenses (8) (40) 80.0%
EBITDA 1,862 1,057 76.2%
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Revenue by business unit

As reported and at constant FX, the revenue allocated to the relevant business units developed as follows:

Change

Constant FX Change Favourable +/- Adverse

In millions of euros 2021 2020 2020 Favourable + /- Adverse (constant FX)
SES Video 1,046 1,108 1,097 -5.6% -4.6%
Underlying ! 1,046 1,108 1,097 -5.6% -4.6%
Periodic 2 - - - N/m N/m
SES Networks 735 767 737 -4.2% -0.4%
Underlying * 734 759 730 -3.3% 0.5%
Periodic 2 1 8 7 -86.3% -85.0%
Sub-total 1,781 1,875 1,834 -5.0% -2.9%
Underlying * 1,780 1,867 1,827 -4.7% -2.6%
Periodic 2 1 8 7 -86.3% -85.0%
Other 3 1 1 1 N/m N/m
Group Total 1,782 1,876 1,835 -5.0% -2.9%
Change

Constant FX Change Favourable +/- Adverse

In millions of euros 2020 2019 2019 Favourable + /- Adverse (constant FX)
SES Video 1,108 1,213 1,208 -8.6% -8.3%
Underlying * 1,108 1,210 1,205 -8.4% -8.0%
Periodic 2 - 3 3 N/m N/m
SES Networks 767 762 747 +0.6% +2.6%
Underlying * 759 734 720 +3.4% +5.3%
Periodic 2 8 28 27 -71.5% -70.3%
Sub-total 1,875 1,975 1,955 -5.1% -4.1%
Underlying * 1,867 1,944 1,925 -4.0% -3.0%
Periodic 2 8 31 30 -74.3% -73.3%
Other 3 1 9 9 N/m N/m
Group Total 1,876 1,984 1,964 -5.4% -4.5%

1 “Underlying” revenue represents the core business of capacity sales, as well as associated services and equipment. This revenue may be impacted by changes in

launch schedule and satellite health status.

2 “Periodic” revenue separates revenues that are not directly related to or would distort the underlying business trends. Periodic revenue includes: the outright sale of
transponders or transponder equivalents; accelerated revenue from hosted payloads during the course of construction; termination fees; insurance proceeds; certain
interim satellite missions and other such items when material.

3 Other includes revenue not directly applicable to SES Video or SES Networks.
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Revenue by category

The Group’s revenue analysis from the point of view of category and timing can be found below:

2021 Revenue recognised Revenue recognised

In millions of euros at a pointin time over time Total
Revenue from contracts with customers 28 1,722 1,750
Lease income - 32 32
Total 28 1,754 1,782
2020 Revenue recognised Revenue recognised

In millions of euros at a pointin time over time Total
Revenue from contracts with customers 20 1,816 1,836
Lease income - 40 40
Total 20 1,856 1,876

Revenue from contracts with customers recognised at a point in time is related to sales of equipment and amounts to EUR 28 million
in 2021 (2020: EUR 20 million).

Remaining performance obligations

Our remaining performance obligations, which the Group refers to as revenue “backlog,” represent our expected future revenues
under existing customer contracts and include both cancellable and non-cancellable contracts. The backlog was EUR 5.8 billion as
of December 31, 2021 (2020: EUR 6.1 billion), EUR 5.2 billion (2020: EUR 5.6 billion) of which related to ‘protected’ backlog and
EUR 0.6 billion (2020: EUR 0.5 billion) of which related to ‘unprotected’ backlog. Approximately 25% of the backlog is expected to be
recognised as revenue in 2022, approximately 21% in 2023, and approximately 17% in 2024, with the remaining thereafter.

Protected backlog includes non-cancellable contracts and cancellable contracts with substantive termination fees. For contracts with
termination options that do not have substantive termination fees, protected backlog also includes contract periods up to the first

optional termination date. Unprotected backlog includes revenue from contracts that are cancellable and not subject to substantive
termination fees.

Revenue by country

The Group’s revenue from external customers analysed by country using the customer’s billing address is as follows:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Luxembourg (SES country of domicile) 54 54
United States of America 554 590
Germany 355 368
United Kingdom 212 232
France 78 94
Others - Europe 203 196
Others 326 342
Total 1,782 1,876

No single customer accounted for 10%, or more, of total revenue in 2021, or 2020.
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Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets by location

The Group’s property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are located as set out in the following table. Note that satellites are
allocated to the country where the legal owner of the asset is incorporated.

In millions of euros 2021 2020

Luxembourg (SES country of domicile) 5,767 4,754
United States of America 2,036 2,808
The Netherlands 1,206 1,183
Isle of Man - 900
Sweden 145 160
Germany 45 48
Israel 27 30
Others 125 130
Total 9,351 10,013

Note 4 - Operating expenses
The operating expense categories disclosed include the following types of expenditure:

1) Cost of sales, which excludes staff costs and depreciation, represents expenditures which generally vary directly with revenue.
They are incurred in delivering services to customers and include a variety of expenses such as rental of third-party satellite
capacity, third-party teleports, connectivity, equipment and equipment rental, customer support costs such as hosting, monitoring,
implementation, engineering work as well as commissions. Other cost of sales detailed below include an amount of EUR 51 million
(2020: EUR 12 million) for C-band repurposing related expenses (Note 33).

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Rental of third-party satellite capacity (68) (82)
Customer support costs (72) (55)
Other cost of sales (179) (154)
Total cost of sales (319) (291)

2) Staff costs of EUR 304 million (2020: EUR 330 million) include gross salaries and employer’s social security payments, payments
into pension schemes for employees, charges arising under share-based payment schemes, as well as staff-related restructuring
charges of EUR 8 million (2020: EUR 38 million) and C-band repurposing related expenses of EUR 36 million (2020: EUR 15 million).
At the year-end the total full-time equivalent number of members of staff was 2,037 (2020: 2,095).

3) Other operating expenses of EUR 198 million (2020: EUR 186 million) are, by their nature, less variable to revenue development.
Such costs include office-related and technical facility costs, in-orbit insurance costs, marketing expenses, general and administrative
expenditure, consulting charges, travel-related expenditure and movements in provisions for debtors. Other operating expenses also
include an amount of nil (2020: EUR 2 million) of restructuring charges in connection with the Group’s ongoing optimisation
programme (Note 24) and as well an amount of EUR 35 million (2020: EUR 16 million) C-band repurposing related expenses
(Note 33).

Note 5 - Audit and non-audit fees

For 2021 and 2020 the Group recorded charges, billed and accrued, from its independent auditors, and affiliated companies thereof, as
set out below:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Fees for statutory audit of annual and consolidated accounts 2.1 2.2
Fees charged for other assurance services 0.1 0.1
Fees charged for other non-audit services - -
Total audit and non-audit fees 2.2 2.3

‘Other assurance services’ represent primarily comfort letters issued in connection with treasury funding operations and interim
dividend reviews.
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Note 6 - Finance income and costs

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Finance income

Interest income - 1
Net foreign exchange gains! 37 -
Fair value increases on financial assets? 13 -
Total 50 1

Finance costs

Interest expense on borrowings (excluding amounts capitalised) (95) (123)
Loan fees and origination costs and other (26) (30)
Net foreign exchange losses! - (32)
Total (121) (185)

1  Net foreign exchange gains/losses are mostly related to revaluation of bank accounts, deposits and other monetary items denominated in US dollars.
2 Represents fair value increases on assets included as part of ‘Other financial assets’ in the consolidated statement of financial position and required to be measured at fair value following recent

third-party transactions

Note 7 - Income taxes

Taxes on income comprise the taxes paid or owed in the individual countries, as well as deferred taxes. Current and deferred taxes can
be analysed as follows:

In millions of euros 2021 2020

Current income tax

Current income tax charge on result of the year (163) (38)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 9 4
Foreign withholding taxes (7) (9)
Total current income tax (161) (51)

Deferred income tax

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (23) 73
Relating to tax losses carried forward 251 7
Changes in tax rate 6 (12)
Adjustment of prior years (24) (20)
Total deferred income tax 210 58
Income tax benefit per consolidated income statement 49 7

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Current and Deferred Income tax related to items (charged) or credited directly in equity

Post-employment benefit obligation Q) 1
Impact of currency translation (36) 35
Net investment hedge - current tax 26 (29)
Tax impact of the treasury shares impairment recorded in the stand-alone financial 1 6
statements

Tax impact on perpetual bond 20 18
Current and deferred income taxes reported in equity 10 31
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A reconciliation between the income tax benefit and the profit before tax of the Group multiplied by a theoretical tax rate of 25.69%
(2020: 25.69%) which corresponds to the Luxembourg domestic tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2021 is as follows:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations 397 (102)
Multiplied by theoretical tax rate 102 (26)
Effect of different foreign tax rates 14 4
Investment tax credits (44) (64)
Tax exempt income - -
Non-deductible expenditures 2 9
Taxes related to prior years 3 4
Effect of changes in tax rate (5) 15
Other changes in group tax provision not included in separate lines (3) -
Impairment on investments in subsidiaries and other assets (207) 14
Impact of deferred taxes (23) 31
Foreign withholding taxes 7 9
Other 5 3)
Income tax reported in the consolidated income statement (49) (7

Effect of changes in tax rate

During 2021, the Dutch government decided to increase the general corporate income tax rate from 25% to 25.8% as of
1 January 2022 and the deferred tax assets and liabilities balances have been re-measured on this revised basis. The total impact
of this re-measurement was an income tax expense of EUR 3 million. The above re-measurement was considered a change in
accounting estimate in accordance with IAS 8.

During 2021, the commune of Betzdorf hosting SES corporate headquarters decided to increase the municipal business tax rate from
7.5% to 9% bringing the total corporate income tax rate for Luxembourg from 25.69% to 27.19% as from 1 January 2022. The deferred
tax assets and liabilities balances have been re-measured on this basis. The total impact of this re-measurement was a tax income
of EUR 8 million. The above re-measurement was considered a change in accounting estimate in accordance with IAS 8.

Foreign withholding tax

The foreign withholding tax of EUR 7 million includes a provision of EUR 4 million for Indian withholding tax retained by customers
and paid to the Indian tax authorities. A final decision on Indian withholding taxes is still pending at the level of the Supreme Court.

The remaining EUR 3 million relates to withholding tax retained by customers in other jurisdictions.
Investment tax credits

In 2021, the continuing investment in the O3b MPOWER and SES-17 triggered the recognition of deferred tax assets for investment
tax credits of EUR 19 million (2020: EUR 55 million) and EUR 14 million (2020: EUR 6 million) respectively. In 2021, SES started the
procurement of 19.2° replacement satellites triggering the recognition of deferred tax assets for investment tax credits of EUR 9
million (2020: EUR 0 million). The remaining EUR 2 million of deferred tax assets for investment tax credits was recognised in
connection with other investments by Group companies in Luxembourg.

According to Luxembourg tax law, unused investment tax credits can be carried forward for ten years. SES believes that it is probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the Luxembourg fiscal unity in the future to use all the available investment tax credits.

Impact of deferred taxes

GovSat-1 was launched in January 2018 and entered in operational service in March 2018. A deferred tax asset for investment tax
credits of EUR 26 million was recognised by its owner LuxGovSat S.A. in the same year. LuxGovSat S.A. is not part of the
Luxembourg fiscal unity. As a result of management’s analysis of the recoverability of this deferred tax asset, an additional amount
of EUR 11 million was reversed during 2021 (2020: EUR 4 million).

On the basis of a recoverability analysis, an additional net deferred tax asset of EUR 41 million was recognised in relation to prior
year tax losses in Luxembourg, Israel and Germany.

An additional deferred tax liability of EUR 6 million was recorded following the transfer of the business assets of SES Satellite
Leasing Ltd to SES Astra S.A.
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Impairment on subsidiaries and other assets
The aggregate impact of EUR 107 million comprises the following:

e The impairment charge of EUR 903 million (2020: EUR 64 million) recorded on the carrying value of subsidiary investments
and other assets held by entities in Luxembourg resulting in a positive effective tax rate (‘ETR’) impact of EUR 232 million
(2020: EUR 17 million).

e The impairment charge of EUR 62 million taken on the carrying value of intercompany receivables held by entities in Luxembourg
resulting in a positive ETR impact of EUR 16 million.

e The impairment charge of EUR 673 million (2020: nil) recorded in connection with the goodwill attributed to the GEO North
America cash-generating unit (see Note 14) resulting in a negative ETR impact of EUR 141 million (2020: nil).

Note 8 - Deferred income tax

The deferred tax positions included in the consolidated financial statements can be analysed as follows:

Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax

assets assets liabilities liabilities

In millions of euros 2021 2020 2021 2020
Losses carried forward 301 73 - -
Tax credits 259 227 - -
Intangible assets 23 27 (239) (219)
Tangible assets - - (160) (123)
Trade receivables 19 13 - -
Other 5 9 (39) 27)
Total deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 607 349 (438) (369)
Offset of deferred taxes (39) (36) 39 36
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 568 313 (399) (333)

Deferred tax assets have been offset against deferred tax liabilities where they relate to the same tax authority and the entity
concerned has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities.

In 2021 the Group recognised additional deferred tax assets for tax losses carried forward in Luxembourg for EUR 247 million
(2020: nil). Tax losses can be carried forward in Luxembourg for 17 years. Using the estimated future taxable income based on the
most recent business plan information approved by the Board of Directors, the Company has concluded that the deferred tax assets
for the remaining tax losses carried forward are recoverable (EUR 281 million).

In addition to the recoverable tax losses for which the Group has recognised deferred tax assets, the Group has further tax losses of
EUR 488 million as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: EUR 497 million) which are available for offset against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. EUR 329 million (31 December 2020: 431 million) of these tax losses were
generated in the US. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they cannot be used to offset
taxable profits elsewhere in the Group and they have arisen in subsidiaries which are not expected to generate taxable profits against
which they could be offset in the foreseeable future.

No deferred income tax liabilities have been recognised for withholding tax and other taxes which would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain subsidiaries. Such amounts are permanently reinvested or not subject to taxation.
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The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances,
is as follows:

Losses

carried Intangible
Deferred tax assets forward Tax credits assets  Receivables Other Total
At 1 January 2020 71 168 30 23 10 302
(Charged)/credited to the
income statement 3 60 4) 9) 1 51
Charged directly to equity - - - - 1 1
Exchange difference® (2) - - (1) 2) (5)
At 31 December 2020 72 228 26 13 10 349
(Charged)/credited to the
income statement 227 31 3 5 (5) 255
Charged directly to equity - - - - - -
Exchange difference! 2 - - 1 - 3
At 31 December 2021 301 259 23 19 5 607

Deferred tax liabilities Intangible assets Tangible assets Other Total
At 1 January 2020 207 169 25 401
Charged/(credited) to the income

statement 29 (38) 2 @
Exchange difference! a7 (8) - (25)
At 31 December 2020 219 123 27 369
Charged/(credited) to the income

statement 2 31 12 45
Exchange difference! 18 6 - 24
At 31 December 2021 239 160 39 438

1 Aforeign exchange impact arises due to the translation of Group’s operations with a different functional currency than euro. This amounts to EUR 21 million as at

31 December 2021 (2020: EUR 20 million)

Note 9 - Components of other comprehensive income

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Impact of currency translation 471 (624)
Income tax effect (36) 35
Total impact of currency translation, net of tax 435 (589)

The impact of currency translation in other comprehensive income relates to exchange gains or losses arising on the translation of
the net assets of foreign operations from their functional currency to the euro, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

The unrealised gain in 2021 of EUR 471 million (2020: unrealised loss of EUR 624 million) reflects the impact on the valuation of
SES’s net US dollar assets due to the strengthening of the US dollar against the euro from USD 1.2271 to USD 1.1326 (2020: the
weakening of the US dollar against the euro from USD 1.1234 to USD 1.2271). This effect is partially offset by the impact of the net
investment hedge (Note 18).
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Note 10 - Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of each class of shares by
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year as adjusted to reflect the economic rights of each class of share.
The net profit or loss for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders has been adjusted to include an assumed coupon, net of tax,
on the Perpetual Bonds.

For 2021, a basic earnings per share of EUR 0.92 per Class A share (2020: basic loss per share of EUR 0.30), and EUR 0.37 per
Class B share (2020: basic loss per share of EUR 0.12) have been calculated as follows:

Profit attributable to the owners of the parent for calculating basic earnings per share:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 453 (86)
Assumed coupon on perpetual bond (net of tax) (41) (49)
Total 412 (135)

Assumed coupon accruals of EUR 41 million (net of tax) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: EUR 49 million) related to the
Perpetual Bonds in issue have been considered for the calculation of the basic and diluted earnings available for distribution.

The weighted average number of shares based on the capital structure of the Company as described in Note 20, net of own shares
held, for calculating basic earnings per share was as follows:

2021 2020
Class A shares (in million) 369.7 378.4
Class B shares (in million) 189.2 191.7
Total 558.9 570.1

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares which are primarily related to the share-based compensation plans. A calculation
is done to determine the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value based on the monetary value of the subscription
rights attached to outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated as above is compared with the number of shares that
would have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options and the difference, if it results in a dilutive effect, is considered
to adjust the weighted average number of shares.

For 2021, a diluted earnings per Class A share of EUR 0.92 (2020: diluted loss of EUR 0.30), and EUR 0.37 per Class B share (2020:
diluted loss of EUR 0.12) have been calculated as follows:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 453 (86)
Assumed coupon on perpetual bond (net of tax) (41) (49)
Total 412 (135)

The weighted average number of shares, net of own shares held, for calculating diluted earnings per share was as follows:

2021 2020
Class A shares (in million) 3729 381.3
Class B shares (in million) 189.2 191.7
Total 562.1 573.0
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Note 11 - Dividends paid and proposed
Dividends declared are paid net of any withholding tax (2021: EUR 20 million, 2020: EUR 20 million).

Dividends declared and paid during the year:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Class A dividend for 2020: EUR 0.40 (2019: EUR 0.40) 153 153
Class B dividend for 2020: EUR 0.16 (2019: EUR 0.16) 31 31
Total 184 184

Dividends proposed for approval at the annual general meeting to be held on 1 April 2022, which are not recognised as a liability as at
31 December 2021:

In millions of euros 2022 2021
Class A dividend for 2021: EUR 0.50 (2020: EUR 0.40) 192 153
Class B dividend for 2021: EUR 0.20 (2020: EUR 0.16) 38 31
Total 230 184

Note 12 - Property, plant and equipment

Other fixtures and

Land and Space Ground fittings, tools and
In millions of euros buildings segment Segment equipment Total
Cost
As at 1 January 2021 278 11,091 811 229 12,409
Additions 6 - 7 3 16
Disposals 3) Q) Q) (5)
Retirements?! (6) (850) (3) 1) (860)
Transfers from assets in course of 3 - 17 41 61
construction (Note 13)
Transfers from intangible assets (Note - - 3 - 3
14)
Impact of currency translation 11 468 38 6 523
As at 31 December 2021 289 10,709 872 277 12,147
Other fixtures and
Land and Space Ground fittings, tools and
In millions of euros Buildings Segment Segment equipment Total
Depreciation
As at 1 January 2021 (186) (7,321) (562) (170) (8,239)
Depreciation (15) (478) (53) (29) (575)
Impairment expense - (73) - - (73)
Impairment reversal - 22 - - 22
Disposals - - 1 1 2
Retirements?! 6 850 3 1 860
Impact of currency translation (6) (332) (29) 4) (371)
As at 31 December 2021 (201) (7,332) (640) (201) (8,374)
Net book value as at 31 December 2021 88 3,377 232 76 3,773

1 Satellites ASTRA 2B, ASTRA 1D, AMC-2, AMC-16, NSS-806 and NSS-5 were retired in 2021
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Land Other fixtures and

and Space Ground fittings, tools and
In millions of euros buildings segment Segment equipment Total
Cost
As at 1 January 2020 290 12,054 834 215 13,393
Additions 5 - 8 2 15
Disposals )] @) ) 4)
Retirements?! (6) (285) 1) 2 (294)
Transfers from assets in course of 3 - 15 23 41
construction (Note 13)
Transfers between categories - - 1 ) -
Impact of currency translation 12) (678) (45) ) (742)
As at 31 December 2020 278 11,091 811 229 12,409

Land Other fixtures and

and Space Ground fittings, tools and
In millions of euros Buildings Segment Segment equipment Total
Depreciation
As at 1 January 2020 (178) (7,335) (536) (158) (8,207)
Depreciation (21) (527) (57) (20) (625)
Impairment expense - (229) - - (229)
Impairment reversal 46 46
Disposals - - 1 1 2
Retirements?! 6 285 1 2 294
Impact of currency translation 7 439 29 5 480
As at 31 December 2020 (186) (7,321) (562) (170) (8,239)
Net book value as at 31 December 2020 92 3,770 249 59 4,170

1 Satellites AMC-7 and ASTRA 1F were retired in 2020.

The Group’s policy in setting the useful economic life of its satellites is to initially use the satellite design life and then, once sufficient
time has passed to allow for initial anomalies to be investigated and future fuel projections to be stabilised, to adjust the depreciation
life to take into account factors such as the technical condition of the satellite, its projected remaining fuel life, and replacement or
redeployment plans.

The review in 2021 resulted in revisions to the remaining useful economic lives of three GEO satellites resulting in a net decrease in
the depreciation expense for 2021 of EUR 9 million. The corresponding review in 2020 resulted in revisions to the remaining useful
economic lives of four GEO satellites and five MEO satellites resulting in a net decrease in the depreciation expense for 2020 of
EUR 17 million.

As at 31 December 2021, the amount of the property, plant and equipment pledged in relation to the Group’s liabilities is nil
(2020: nil).
For further information related to right-of-use assets, see Note 29.

Impairment of space segment assets
In 2021, the net impairment expense for space segment assets recorded was EUR 51 million (2020: EUR 183 million), comprising
impairment expenses of EUR 73 million offset by impairment reversals of EUR 22 million. The charges and reversals are the

aggregation of impairment testing procedures on specific satellites, or combinations of co-located satellites, in the Group’s
geostationary fleet.
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The following table discloses the applicable amounts and discount rates used in the impairment test for those geostationary satellites
subject to impairment expenses or reversals during the year.

In millions of euros Carrying value Value in use Discount rate Impairment expense
2021 — Expense 333 260 4.9% - 8.9% 73
2021 — Reversal 66 114 4.9% - 8.9% (22)
2021 — Net impact 51
2020 — Expense 814 585 5.8%-7.1% 229
2020 — Reversal 140 186 5.8%-7.1% (46)
2020 — Net impact 183

The impairment expenses and reversals recorded reflect updated business assumptions for the satellites through to the end of their
useful economic lives. In general, these updated assumptions reflect a combination of revised commercial developments and
expectations, updated assessments of the regulatory environment impacting certain assets (and hence the Group’s ability to achieve
the forecast commercial exploitation), changes in the competitive environment in which the Group operates, and certain changes in
the operation of the satellites (for example the decision to place a particular satellite into inclined orbit, or changes to the timing
thereof) or associated ground segment infrastructure.

Specific developments, largely in the second half of 2021, in these areas contributed to the weakening of cash flow projections for
certain satellites and contributed to the recording of the impairment expenses noted above.

As part of standard impairment testing procedures, the Group assesses the impact of changes in the discount rates and reductions
in EBITDA. Discount rates are simulated up to 1% below and above the CGU’s specific rate used in the base valuation and EBITDA
projections are simulated up to 5% below and above the base valuation. In this way a matrix of valuations is generated, which reveals
the potential exposure to impairment expenses based on movements in the valuation parameters which are within the range of
outcomes foreseeable at the valuation date.

The most recent testing showed that for this category of geostationary space segment assets, then under the least favourable
combination of the circumstances above (hamely a 1% higher discount rate in conjunction with a 5% lower EBITDA projection) an
incremental impairment of EUR 68 million would be recorded. A 1% increase in the discount rate at a constant EBITDA level would
increase satellite impairments by EUR 28 million. Taken separately, a 5% decrease in EBITDA would increase satellite impairments
by EUR 31 million.
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Note 13 - Assets in the course of construction

Fixtures,

Land and Space Ground tools &
In millions of euros Buildings segment segment  equipment Total
Cost and net book value as at 1 January 2021 1 1,529 90 31 1,651
Movements in 2021
Additions? 7 360 63 9 439
Transfers to assets in use (Note 12) 3) - a7) (41) (61)
Transfer to intangible assets (Note 14) - (20) - (20)
Transfer between categories 2 - 12) 10 -
C-band repurposing (Note 33)? - (305) (8) - (313)
Impact of currency translation - 80 1 1 82
Cost and net book value as at 31 December 2021 7 1,664 107 10 1,788
1 Additions related to O3b mPOWER, SES-17, Astra 19.2E (including EUR 237 million non-cash transactions)
2 C-band reimbursable space segment and ground cost (non-cash)

Fixtures,

Land and Space Ground tools &
In millions of euros Buildings segment segment  equipment Total
Cost and net book value as at 1 January 2020 1 842 60 21 924
Movements in 2020
Additions? - 766 69 26 861
Transfers to assets in use (Note 12) 3) - (15) (23) (41)
Transfer to intangible assets (Note 14) (5) Q) (6)
Transfer between categories 3 - 12) 9 -
Impact of currency translation (79) @ Q) (87)
Cost and net book value as at 31 December 2020 1 1,529 90 31 1,651

1 Additions related to O3b mPOWER, SES-17, C-band repurposing (including EUR 702 million non-cash transactions)

Borrowing costs of EUR 6 million (2020: EUR 5 million) arising from financing specifically relating to satellite procurements were
capitalised during the year and are included in additions to ‘Space segment’ in the above table.

A weighted average effective rate of 2.92% (2020: 3.34%) was used, representing the Group’s average weighted cost of borrowing.
Excluding the impact of the loan origination costs and commitment fees the average weighted interest rate was 2.76% (2020: 3.14%).

In connection with space segment additions in 2021, the Group recognised EUR 164 million (2020: EUR 405 million) in respect of
the O3b mMPOWER arrangement described in Note 27, EUR 140 million (2020: EUR 47 million) in respect of the SES-17 construction

and EUR 56 million in respect of procurement of satellites in connection with Astra 19.2°E replacement.

Due to the nature of the arrangements, these transactions are included in the Group’s assets in the course of construction space
segment and included in ‘Payments for purchases of tangible assets’ within the consolidated statement of cash flows only to the

extent that payments were made to the suppliers.
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Note 14 - Intangible assets

Orbital slot Orbital slot
licence licence Internally
rights rights Other generated
(indefinite- (definite  definite life  development
In millions of euros life) Goodwill life) intangibles costs Total
Cost
As at 1 January 2021 1,930 2,173 771 470 58 5,402
Additions - - 9 - 37 46
Retirement - - (567)* (70) - (637)
Transfers from assets in course of - - - 49 (49) -
construction
Transfers between categories 4 - - 4) - -
Transfers to property, plant and equipment - - - 3 - 3)
(Note 12)
Transfers from assets under - - - 10 - 10
constructions, property, plant and
equipment (Note 13)
Impact of currency translation 147 203 - 17 - 367
As at 31 December 2021 2,081 2,376 213 469 46 5,185
Amortisation
As at 1 January 2021 (14) (247) (630) (419) - (1,210)
Amortisation - - (38) (57) - (95)
Impairment - (673) - - - (673)
Retirement - - 5671 70 - 637
Impact of currency translation (2) (36) - (16) - (54)
As at 31 December 2021 (26) (856) (101) (422) - (1,395)
Net book value as at
31 December 2021 2,065 1,520 112 47 46 3,790
! Concession agreement with Luxembourg government 2001 to 2021
Orbital
Orbital slot slot
licence licence Internally
rights rights Other generated
(indefinite- (definite  definite life  development
In millions of euros life) Goodwill life) intangibles costs Total
Cost
As at 1 January 2020 2,095 2,398 776 458 39 5,766
Additions - - . 2 45 47
Retirement - - - (6) - (6)
Transfers from assets in course - - - 24 (24) -
of construction
Transfers from assets under - - - 7 Q) 6
constructions, property, plant and
equipment (Note 13)
Impact of currency translation (165) (225) 5) (15) Q) (411)
As at 31 December 2020 1,930 2,173 771 470 58 5,402
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Amortisation

As at 1 January 2020 - (134) (587) (360) - (1,081)
Amortisation - - (44) (51) - (95)
Impairment (14) (51) - (29) - (94)
Retirement - - - 6 - 6
Impact of currency translation - 38 1 15 - 54
As at 31 December 2020 (14) (147) (630) (419) - (1,210)

Net book value as at
31 December 2020 1,916 2,026 141 51 58 4,192

Indefinite-life intangible assets
The Group’s indefinite-life intangible assets comprise goodwill and orbital slot licence rights.

Impairment testing procedures are performed annually, or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of such assets may not be recoverable. The annual impairment tests are performed as of 31 October each year. The
recoverable amounts are determined based on a value in use calculation (Note 2) using the most recent business plan information
approved by the Board of Directors, which covers a period of five years.

The calculations of value in use are most sensitive to:
1) Movements in the underlying business plan assumptions

Business plans are drawn up annually and provide an assessment of the expected developments for a five-year period beyond
the end of the year when the plan is drawn up. These business plans reflect both the most up-to-date assumptions concerning
the CGU’s markets and also developments and trends in the business of the CGU. For the provision of satellite capacity these
will particularly take into account the following factors:

¢ the expected developments in transponder fill rates, including the impact of replacement capacity;

e any changes in the expected capital expenditure cycle, for example due to the technical degradation of a satellite or the need
for replacement capacities; and

e any changes in satellite procurement, launch or cost assumptions, including launch schedule.

2) Changes in discount rates
Discount rates reflect management’s estimate of the risks specific to each CGU. Management uses a pre-tax weighted average
cost of capital as discount rate for each CGU. This reflects market interest rates of twenty-year bonds in the market concerned,
the capital structure of businesses in the Group’s business sector, and other factors, as necessary, applied specifically to the
CGU concerned.

3) Changes in perpetuity growth rates assumptions

Growth rate assumptions used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the business planning period are based on the commercial
experience relating to the CGUs concerned and the expectations for developments in the markets which they serve.
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Revision to definition of cash-generating units for intangible assets

With effect from 1 January 2021 the Company has revised the identification of the cash-generating units which are applied in the
impairment testing of both goodwill and orbital slot rights. These changes, and the rationale for each are as set out below:

1)

2)

Discontinuation of ‘MX1’ as a separate cash-generating unit for goodwill impairment testing

As noted in the Group’s 2020 consolidated financial statements, the goodwill for this cash-generating unit has been fully written
off and hence no further impairment exposure remains. With effect from January 2021 the tangible fixed assets and working
capital of MX1 have been integrated into the Group’s wider Video business.

Disaggregation of current ‘SES GEO operations’ cash generating unit

The gross goodwill as at 31 December 2021 of EUR 2,376 million derives primarily from the acquisition of two significant
GEO businesses: GE Americom in 2001 and New Skies Satellites in 2006.

Since 2012, and following on from the integration of these businesses into a single operational unit alongside the more
Europe-centric SES ASTRA operations, the Group’s approach to segmental reporting moved away from the former presentation
of two GEO-related segments ‘ASTRA’ and ‘World Skies’ (being broadly the legacy GE Americom and New Skies Satellites
business combined) to a single operating segment defined as ‘the provision of satellite-based data transmission capacity, and
ancillary services to customers around the world’.

From 2013 this integrated model was also adopted in the identification of cash-generating units for the purpose of goodwill
impairment testing for GEO operations, with the more regionally derived components of goodwill arising in the purchase price
allocation exercises for those two GEO acquisitions being grouped and monitored at the level of a single group of cash-generating
units; an approach which was maintained for the eight years between 2013 and 2020.

Beginning in 2021, management has disaggregated this single cash-generating unit to revert to a regionally based reporting and
monitoring of goodwill, realigning it with the approach taken for the impairment testing of orbital slot rights. This reflects the
developments in the business environment of the Group, triggered by the increasing demand from market participants in various
business areas (primarily telecommunications companies) for bandwidth to support the provision of data connectivity services.

These developments mean that there are increasingly two economic paths available to the Group in commercialising the valuable
portfolio of orbital slot rights it has generated over many years, including through the two GEO business acquisitions noted above:

« utilising these rights in the provision of services on its own satellite fleet; and
* generating economic value through entering into transactions with third parties to make these rights available to them in
return for an appropriate financial compensation.

A specific example is the ongoing C-band repurposing project in the U.S. following the adoption by the Federal Communications
Commission of its Report and Order and Order of Proposed Modification to clear a 300 MHz band of C-band downlink spectrum
between 3,700 and 4,000 MHz by December 2025 (see Note 33).

Since the opportunities, and hence potential cash flows, arising from this expanding area of commercialisation of orbital slot rights
other than through conventional on-fleet operations, are by their nature arrangements with regional regulatory authorities and
market participants, and since the linkage to the orbital slot rights is so strong, it seems appropriate to management to re-align
the approach to impairment testing by looking at both areas using on a regional basis and disaggregating the cash-generating
units again for the purpose of goodwill testing.

The goodwill has been allocated between the three cash-generating units (as defined below) based on the assets acquired in the
above acquisitions, with materially all the assets acquired in the GE Americom acquisition being allocated to ‘North America’ and
materially all the assets acquired in the New Skies Satellites acquisition being allocated to ‘International’. See the goodwill table
below for the allocation of goodwill to the new CGUSs.
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3) Reduction in regional cash-generating units for impairment testing of orbital slot rights from six to three

Three regions (‘Europe’, ‘North America’ and ‘International’) have been defined forimpairment testing procedures for both goodwill
and orbital slot rights, compared to the six regions (‘Europe’, ‘US’, ‘Canada’, ‘Mexico’, ‘Brazil’ and ‘International’) used between
2012 and 2020 for procedures on orbital slot rights. Whilst there is no change to the ‘Europe’ region, the cash-generating units
‘US’, ‘Canada’ and ‘Mexico’ have been grouped into a new ‘North America’ unit, and ‘Brazil’ has been grouped with ‘International’.

In the case of ‘North America’ this aggregation reflects the current inter-operability of spacecraft and orbital locations which can
be used to serve customers in the U.S., Canada and Mexico, as well as the increasing interdependency of the contractual
arrangements for significant customers in those markets which mean that the associated cash flows can no longer be seen as
largely independent of each other.

Concerning ‘International’ then this aggregation again reflects the increasing interdependency of cash flows between regions with
an increasing use of Brazilian spectrum by assets such as SES-10 and the recently launched SES-17 satellite which are also
serving ‘International’ customers, and the fact that the Group is now also serving the Brazilian market from orbital slots other than
those allocated to the unit.

As the Group extends its global connectivity offering integrating both GEO and MEO capacity, the level of interdependency of cash
flows between the GEO International and MEO is expected to increase.

The Group’s business plan is approved by the Board of Directors based on consolidated data. The consolidated data is based on
separate data prepared for each legal entity of the Group (see Note 36). To prepare business plans for the regional CGUs, the
following assumptions are made:

e GEO revenue from satellites is allocated to the GEO region primarily covered by the satellite. Non-satellite revenue is included in
each CGU based on the legal entity expected to generate the revenue. MEO revenue, including GEO revenue expected to be
used servicing primarily MEO contracts, is included in MEO;

e Operating expenses are allocated based on the underlying legal entity expected to incur the expense. Reallocations were
performed when costs in one CGU clearly support the business of a different CGU,;

e Intercompany transactions between CGUs included in the business plans of the individual legal entities were included, except
where the above allocation methodologies made them no longer relevant;

e The Accelerated Relocation Payments related to the C-band repurposing (see Note 33) were allocated between the GEO North
America and GEO International CGUs based on the Group’s internal allocation of the proceeds, and considering the likely
allocation agreed with the relevant regulatory authorities.

Discount rates applied

The pre-tax discount rates for each CGU are presented below:

2021 2020
GEO Europe 6.40% --
GEO North America 10.18% -
GEO International 8.14% -
GEO - 8.04%
MEO 8.04% 7.97%
MX1 - 8.43%

These discount rates were computed using market interest rates and commercial spreads, the capital structure of businesses in the
Group’s business sector, and the specific risk profile of the businesses concerned. Generally, lower market risk premiums offset an
increase in risk-free rates, especially on rates that are calculated with USD-based inputs.

Perpetual Growth Rate (‘PGR’) assumptions
As aresult of GEO disaggregation mentioned above, separate GEO terminal growth rates by region were calculated for the first time.
The terminal growth rate used in the valuations is -0.4% for GEO Europe, -4.5% for GEO North America, and +3.0% for

GEO International. In 2020, a +0.5% terminal growth rate was used for GEO. The terminal growth rate used for MEO was +3.0%
(2020: +2.0%).
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These rates reflect the most recent long-term planning assumptions approved by the Board of Directors and can be supported by
reference to the trading performance over a longer period and incorporate also projected growth rates for wide-beam and
high-throughput satellites markets from external data sources. A cap has been applied to the PGRs in the case of GEO International
and MEO. On a weighted-average basis, the terminal growth rate used for the GEO CGUs is comparable with the prior-year rate
used for GEO. For MEO, the higher rate reflects higher the projected growth expectations approaching the end of the business
planning period, which, again, is supported by external data sources.

Impairment charges recorded for 2021
1) Goodwill

As a result of the impairment tests conducted as of 31 December 2021, an impairment expense of EUR 673 million was recorded
on GEO North America. The impairment is mainly driven by the impact of the disaggregation of the CGUs with the lower resulting
attributable perpetual growth rate and, to a large extent, the recognition and receipt of the Phase | Accelerated Relocation
Payment in 2021 (see Note 33).

No impairment expense was recorded on the carrying value of goodwill in GEO Europe, GEO International, or MEO.

e For GEO Europe, which mainly represents the organically grown Astra business, no impairment was necessary due to steady
cash flows, low discount rates, and a minimal goodwill amount (see below);

e For GEO International, no impairment was necessary. This CGU encompasses most of the Group’s GEO high-throughput
satellites, which are expected to contribute to future revenue growth, although part of the value in use is also attributable to
future proceeds receivable in the framework of the FCC Order as set out in more detail in Note 33 below;

e For MEO, the valuation has increased due mainly to the increase in the PGR.

For all three CGUSs, the updated business plan approved by the SES Board of Directors in December 2021 already reflects the
impact of COVID-19.

Arising from the impairment reviews above, the Group’s remaining goodwill has a net book value as at 31 December 2021 and
2020 by CGU as presented below:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
GEO Europe 19 19
GEO North America 1,120 1,657
GEO International 224 207
MEO 152 138
Other (SES GS) 5 5
Total 1,520 2,026

The decrease in GEO North America reflects the EUR 673 million impairment mentioned above.

As part of standard impairment testing procedures, the Group assesses the impact of changes in the discount rates and growth
assumptions of the valuation surplus, or deficit as the case may be. Both discount rates and terminal values are simulated up to
1% below and above the specific rate used in the base valuation. In this way, a matrix of valuations is generated which reveals
the potential exposure to impairment expenses for each CGU based on movements in the valuation parameters which are within
the range of outcomes foreseeable at the valuation date.

The most recent testing showed that:

¢ Neither GEO Europe or GEO International would record an impairment applying the most adverse combination of
developments (a 1% increase in discount rates and 1% decrease in the perpetual growth rate).

e For GEO North America, the recorded impairment would increase by EUR 13 million in the case of a 1% decrease in the
perpetual growth rate, by EUR 54 million in the case of a 1% increase in the discount rate, and by EUR 65 million in the case
of both a 1% decrease in the perpetual growth rate and a 1% increase in the discount rate;

e For MEO, whilst an impairment would not be required in the case of a 1% decrease in the perpetual growth rate, it would
require an impairment of EUR 49 million in the case of a 1% increase in the discount rate and of EUR 329 million were there
to be a combination of a 1% higher discount rate and a 1% lower perpetual growth rate.

Taken separately from changes in discount and perpetuity growth rates, a 5% reduction in EBITDA would not lead to an
impairment expense in the GEO Europe, GEO International, or MEO CGUs. The recorded impairment in GEO North America
would increase by EUR 44 million.
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2) Orbital slot licence rights

The rights conveyed by orbital slot licences in different jurisdictions can have varying characteristics that make them separate and
distinct from the orbital slot licence rights in other jurisdictions. The MEO orbital rights are not separable and do not generate separate
cash flows, and thus are considered a single CGU, which is tested for impairment together with the related corresponding goodwiill
and the MEO satellites constellation.

The pre-tax discount rates for each CGU are presented below:

2021 2020
GEO Europe 7.40% 9.04%
GEO North America 11.18% 9.15%
GEO International 9.14% 9.15%
MEO 8.04% 7.97%

Similar to the pre-tax discount rates used for goodwill testing, these rates were selected to reflect market interest rates and
commercial spreads; the capital structure of businesses in the Group’s business sector; and the specific risk profile of the
businesses concerned. The terminal growth rates used in the valuations are identical to those used in goodwill testing. The Group
did not record any impairment expenses related to orbital slot licence rights for the year ending 31 December 2021 (2020: EUR
14 million).

The orbital slot license rights have a net book value as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 by CGU as presented below:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Europe 168 146
North America (including U.S., Canada, and Mexico in 2020) 325 300
International 447 432
MEO 1,125 1,038
Total 2,065 1,916

As part of standard impairment testing procedures, as with goodwill, the Group assesses the impact of changes in the discount
rates and growth assumptions of the valuation surplus, or deficit as the case may be. Both discount rates and terminal values are
simulated up to 1% below and above the CGU’s specific rate used in the base valuation. In this way a matrix of valuations is
generated which reveals the potential exposure to impairment expenses for each CGU based on movements in the valuation
parameters which are within the range of outcomes foreseeable at the valuation date.

For orbital slot licence rights, the least favourable case - a combination of lower terminal growth rates and higher discount rates -
would not lead to any impairment expenses of any orbital slot licence right CGU.

Definite-life intangible assets

The definite-life intangible assets as at 31 December 2021 have a net book value by country as presented below:

In millions of euros 2021

Orbital slot licence rights Other
Luxembourg 105 25
Israel - 2
Brazil 7 -
Other - 20
Total 112 47
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The definite-life intangible assets as at 31 December 2020 have a net book value by country as presented below:

In millions of euros 2020

Orbital slot licence rights Other
Luxembourg 130 24
Israel - 2
Brazil 7 -
Other 4 25
Total 141 51

The Group’s primary definite life intangible asset has been the agreement concluded by SES ASTRA with the Luxembourg
government in relation to the usage of Luxembourg frequencies in the orbital positions of the geostationary arc from 45° West to
50° East for the period from 1 January 2001 to 31 December 2021. Given the finite nature of this agreement, these usage rights -
valued at EUR 550 million at the date of acquisition - were amortised on a straight-line basis over the 21-year term of the agreement
and were retired as of 31 December 2021.

In November 2019, SES and the Luxembourg government reached an agreement to renew SES’s concession to operate satellites
operating under Luxembourg’s jurisdiction for 20 years, effective from January 2022 when the current concession expires, with an
annual fee of EUR 1 million payable from 2025 onwards. Under the agreement, and starting from 2022, SES will also contribute a
maximum of EUR 7 million per year into a space sector fund.

The Group also holds orbital slot licence rights in Brazil, which were awarded to a Group subsidiary at auction in 2014 for a
15-year term. These rights are being amortised over a 30-year period, reflecting the Group’s ability to renew the rights once in 2029
at a minimal cost, assuming they are being utilised.

As at 31 December 2021, the amount of the intangible assets pledged in relation to the Group’s liabilities is nil (2020: nil).

Note 15 - Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

The Group has recognised the following assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Current contract assets
Trade receivables 357 393
Provision for trade receivables (93) (93)
Trade receivables, net of provisions 264 300
Unbilled accrued revenue 138 127
Provision for unbilled accrued revenue (4) (2)
Unbilled accrued revenue, net of provisions 134 125
Deferred customer contract costs 3 10
401 435
Non-current contract assets
Unbilled accrued revenue 254 275
Provision for unbilled accrued revenue 9) (7
Unbilled accrued revenue, net of provisions 245 268
Deferred customer contract costs 9 9
254 277

Current contract liabilities
Deferred income 404 454

Non-current contract liabilities
Deferred income 314 296
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The following table shows the movement in deferred income recognised by the Group:

In millions of euros Non-current Current
As at 1 January 2021 296 454
Revenue recognised during the year - (1,132)
New billings 1,092
Other movements* 8 (20)
Impact of currency translation 10 10
As at 31 December 2021 314 404

*  Other movements include reclassifications (between current and non-current, upfront and deferred, as well as against trade receivables).
In millions of euros Non-current Current
As at 1 January 2020 317 467
Revenue recognised during the year - (1,184)
New billings - 1,236
Other movements* 12) (50)
Impact of currency translation 9) (15)
As at 31 December 2020 296 454

*  Other movements include reclassifications (between current and non-current, upfront and deferred, as well as against trade receivables).

Note 16 - Trade and other receivables
In millions of euros 2021 2020
Trade receivables, net of provisions 264 300
Unbilled accrued revenue, net of provisions 379 393
Other receivables 1,348 63
Total trade and other receivables 1,991 756
Of which:
Non-current 245 268
Current 1,746 488

Unbilled accrued revenue represents revenue recognised, but not billed, under long-term customer contracts. Billing will occur based
on the terms of the contracts. The non-current balance represents entirely unbilled accrued revenue. Other receivables include
EUR 1,273 million (2020: EUR 21 million) to be received as part of the C-band repurposing project (refer to Note 33).

An amount of EUR 27 million (2020: EUR 35 million) was expensed in 2021 reflecting an increase in the impairment of trade and
other receivables. This amount is recorded in ‘Other operating expenses’. As at 31 December 2021, trade and other receivables with
a nominal amount of EUR 106 million (2020: EUR 102 million) were impaired. Movements in the provision for the impairment of trade

and other receivables were as follows:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
As at 1 January 102 113
Increase in provision 43 77
Reversals of provision (16) (42)
Utilised (32) (39)
Other movements 3 -
Impact of currency translation 6 ()
As at 31 December 106 102
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Note 17 - Financial instruments
Fair value estimation and hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy levels for determining the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

e Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

e Level 2 - Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable either
directly or indirectly;

e Level 3 - Techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable
market data.

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid
prices at the close of business on the reporting date. For investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined using
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s-length market transactions; reference to the current market value
of another instrument, which is substantially the same; discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models.

In line with 2020, as at 31 December 2021, the Group does not have any financial derivatives outstanding.

Fair values

The fair value of borrowings has been calculated with the quoted market prices except for COFACE, the LuxGovSat Fixed Term Loan
Facility and the floating tranche of the Schuldschein Loan for which the discounted expected future cash flows at prevailing interest
rates has been used. The fair value of foreign currency contracts is calculated by reference to current forward exchange rates for

contracts with similar maturity profiles.

All borrowings are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets and other financial liabilities measured at amortised cost, have a fair
value that approximates their carrying amount.

Set out below is a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of all the Group’s financial instruments that are carried
in the financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2021

Carried at Carried at

In millions of euros Amortised cost fair value Total

Fair value Carrying Fair Carrying

hierarchy amount value amount Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2021
Financial assets
Non-current financial assets:
Other financial assets 2 26 26 - 26
Trade and other receivables 245 245 - 245
Total non-current financial assets 271 271 - 271
Current financial assets:
Trade and other receivables 1,746 1,746 - 1,746
Cash and cash equivalents 1,049 1,049 - 1,049
Total current financial assets 2,795 2,795 - 2,795
Financial liabilities
Borrowings:
At floating rates:
Syndicated loan 2019* 2 - - - -
COFACE 2 40 40 - 40
German Bond 2024 (EUR 150 million), non-listed 150 152 - 150
At fixed rates:
US Bond 2023 (USD 750 million) 2 662 682 - 662
German Bond 2025 (EUR 250 million), non-listed 2 250 260 - 250
Eurobond 2026 (EUR 650 million) 2 654 680 - 654
Euro Private Placement 2027 (EUR 140 million) under EMTN 2 140 160 - 140
Eurobond 2027 (EUR 500 million) 2 497 500 - 497
Eurobond 2028 (EUR 400 million) 2 395 417 - 395
Fixed Term Loan Facility (LuxGovSat) 2 99 115 99
German Bond 2032 (EUR 50 million), non-listed 2 50 60 - 50
US Bond 2043 (USD 250 million) 2 214 246 - 214
US Bond 2044 (USD 500 million) 2 430 493 - 430
Total borrowings 3,581 3,805 3,581
Non-current financial liabilities: 4,101 4,323 - 4,101
Non-current borrowings 3,524 3,746 - 3,524
Lease liabilities 22 22 - 22
Fixed assets suppliers 472 472 - 472
Other long-term liabilities 83 83 - 83
Current financial liabilities: 1,914 1,916 - 1,914
Current borrowings 57 59 - 57
Lease liabilities 11 11 - 11
Fixed assets suppliers 1,554 1,554 - 1,554
Trade and other payables 292 292 - 292

*

As at 31 December 2021 no amount has been drawn down under this facility. As a consequence, the remaining balance of loan origination cost of the Syndicated

Loan has been disclosed under prepaid expenses for an amount of EUR 2.2 million.
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As at 31 December 2020

Carried at Carried at

In millions of euros amortised cost fair value Total

Fair value Carrying Fair Carrying

hierarchy amount value amount Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2020
Financial assets
Non-current financial assets:
Other financial assets 14 14 - 14
Trade and other receivables 268 268 - 268
Total non-current financial assets 282 282 - 282
Current financial assets:
Trade and other receivables 488 488 - 488
Cash and cash equivalents 1,162 1,162 - 1,162
Total current financial assets 1,650 1,650 - 1,650
Financial liabilities
Borrowings:
At floating rates:
Syndicated loan 2019* 2 - - - -
COFACE 2 81 81 - 81
German Bond 2024 (EUR 150 million), non-listed 2 150 152 - 150
At fixed rates:
Eurobond 2021 (EUR 650 million) 2 555 560 - 555
US Bond 2023 (USD 750 million) 2 610 648 - 610
German Bond 2025 (EUR 250 million), non-listed 2 249 266 - 249
Eurobond 2026 (EUR 500 million) 2 496 529 - 496
Euro Private Placement 2027 (EUR 140 million) under EMTN 2 140 167 - 140
Eurobond 2027 (EUR 500 million) 2 497 508 - 497
Eurobond 2028 (EUR 400 million) 2 395 426.0 - 395
Fixed Term Loan Facility (LuxGovSat) 2 115 139 115
German Bond 2032 (EUR 50 million), non-listed 2 50 63 - 50
US Bond 2043 (USD 250 million) 2 197 211 - 197
US Bond 2044 (USD 500 million) 2 395 429.0 - 395
Total borrowings 3,930 4,179 3,930
Non-current financial liabilities: 4,779 5,020 - 4,779
Non-current borrowings 3,317 3,558 - 3,317
Lease liabilities 25 25 - 25
Fixed assets suppliers 1,310 1,310 - 1,310
Other long-term liabilities 127 127 - 127
Current financial liabilities: 992 1,000 - 992
Current borrowings 613 621 - 613
Lease liabilities 12 12 - 12
Fixed assets suppliers 67 67 - 67
Trade and other payables 300 300 - 300

*  As at 31 December 2020 no amount has been drawn down under this facility. As a consequence, the remaining balance of loan origination cost of the Syndicated
Loan has been disclosed under prepaid expenses for an amount of EUR 3 million.
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Note 18 - Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise: a syndicated loan, Eurobonds, US dollar bonds (144A), a
Euro-dominated Private Placement, German Bonds (‘Schuldschein’), drawings under Coface and under a committed credit facility for
specified satellites under construction, cash and short-term deposits.

The main purpose of the debt instruments is to raise funds to finance the Group’s day-to-day operations, as well as for other general
business purposes. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are liquidity risks, foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and credit
risks. The general policies are periodically reviewed and approved by the board.

Liguidity risk

The Group’s objective is to efficiently use cash generated to maintain borrowings at an appropriate level. In case of liquidity needs,
the Group can call on uncommitted loans, commercial paper programs and a committed syndicated loan. In addition, if deemed
appropriate based on prevailing market conditions, the Group can access additional funds through the European Medium-Term Note
programme. The Group’s debt maturity profile is tailored to allow the Company and its subsidiaries to cover repayment obligations
as they fall due.

The Group operates a centralised treasury function which manages, amongst others, the liquidity of the Group to optimise the funding
costs. This is supported by a daily cash pooling mechanism.

Liquidity is monitored regularly through a review of cash balances, the drawn and issued amounts and the availability of additional
funding under committed credit lines, the two commercial paper programmes and the EMTN Programme (EUR 5,010 million as at
31 December 2021 and EUR 4,260 million as at 31 December 2020 - more details in Note 23).

The table below summarises the projected contractual undiscounted cash flows based on the maturity profile as at 31 December
2021 and 2020.

N Within Between After

In millions of euros 1 year 1and 5 years 5 years Total
As at 31 December 2021:

Borrowings 57 1,778 1,768 3,603
Future interest commitments 98 295 641 1,034
Trade and other payables 292 - - 292
Other long-term liabilities - 83 - 83
Lease liabilities 12 19 8 39
Fixed assets suppliers 472 1,554 - 2,026
Total maturity profile 931 3,729 2,417 7,077
As at 31 December 2020:

Borrowings 613 1,117 2,234 3,964
Future interest commitments 119 305 656 1,080
Trade and other payables 300 - - 300
Other long-term liabilities - 127 - 127
Lease liabilities 13 26 4 43
Fixed assets suppliers 67 1,310 - 1,377
Total maturity profile 1,112 2,885 2,894 6,891

Foreign currency risk

SES is active in markets outside the Eurozone, with business operations in many locations throughout the world. Consequently, SES
uses certain financial instruments to manage its foreign currency exposure. Derivative financial instruments are used mainly to reduce
the Group’s exposure to market risks resulting from fluctuations in foreign exchange rates by creating offsetting exposures. SES is
not a party to leveraged derivatives and, as a matter of policy, does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.
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The Group has significant foreign operations whose functional currency is not the euro. The primary currency exposure in terms of
foreign operations is the US dollar and the Group has designated certain US dollar-denominated debt as net investment hedges of
these operations. The Group has a corresponding exposure in the consolidated income statement, excluding the impacts of C-band
repurposing, of 50.8% (2020: 51.1%) of the Group’s revenue and 52.5% (2020: 56.0%) of its operating expenses being denominated
in US dollars. The Group does not enter into derivative instruments to hedge these currency exposures.

The Group may enter into forward currency contracts to eliminate or reduce the currency exposure arising from individual capital
expenditure projects, such as satellite procurements, tailoring the maturities to each milestone payment to maximise effectiveness.
Depending on the functional currency of the entity with the capital expenditure commitment, the foreign currency risk might be in euro
or in the US dollar. The forward contracts are in the same currency as the hedged item and can cover up to 100% of the total value
of the contract. It is the Group’s policy not to enter into forward contracts until a firm commitment is in place.

Hedge of net investment in foreign operations

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, certain borrowings denominated in US dollars were designated as hedges of the net investments
in SES Global Americas Inc. and its subsidiaries (‘SES Americas’), SES Holdings (Netherlands) BV and its subsidiaries
(‘SES Netherlands’), SES Satellite Leasing Limited and MX1 Ltd to hedge the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk on these
investments.

As at 31 December 2021, all designated net investment hedges were assessed to be highly effective and a total loss of
EUR 76 million, stated net of tax of EUR 26 million is included as part of other comprehensive income for the period (2020: gain of
EUR 84 million, stated net of tax of EUR 29 million).

The following table sets out the hedged portion of USD statement of financial position exposure as at 31 December:

2021 2020
USD USD
USD statement of financial position exposure:
SES Americas 2,359 2,729
SES Netherlands 4,617 4,733
SES Satellite Leasing Limited, Isle of Man - 984
MX1 Ltd, Israel 37 47
Total 7,013 8,493
Hedged with:
US Bonds 1,500 1,500
Total 1,500 1,500
Hedged proportion 21% 18%

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a +/- 20% change in the US dollar exchange rate on the nominal amount of the
Group’s US dollar net investment, with all other variables held constant. All value changes are eligible to be recorded in other
comprehensive income with no impact on profit and loss.

Amount in EUR Amountin EUR  Amount in EUR

Amountin  million at closing million at rate million at rate
31 December 2021 USD million rate of 1.1326 of 1.36 of 0.91
USD statement of financial position exposure:
SES Americas 2,359 2,083 1,735 2,592
SES Netherlands 4,617 4,076 3,395 5,074
SES Satellite Leasing Limited - - - -
MX1 Ltd, Israel 37 33 27 41
Total 7,013 6,192 5,157 7,707
Hedged with:
US Bonds 1,500 1,324 1,103 1,648
Other external borrowings - - - -
Total 1,500 1,324 1,103 1,648
Hedged proportion 21%
Absolute difference without hedging (1,035) 1,515
Absolute difference with hedging (814) 1,191
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Amount in EUR Amount in EUR  Amount in EUR

Amountin  million at closing million at rate million at rate
31 December 2020 USD million rate of 1.2271 of 1.47 of 0.98
USD statement of financial position exposure:
SES Americas 2,729 2,224 1,856 2,785
SES Netherlands 4,733 3,857 3,220 4,829
SES Satellite Leasing Limited 984 802 669 1,004
MX1 Ltd, Israel 47 38 32 48
Total 8,493 6,921 5,777 8,666
Hedged with:
US Bonds 1,500 1,222 1,020 1,531
Other external borrowings - - - -
Total 1,500 1,222 1,020 1,531
Hedged proportion 18%
Absolute difference without hedging (1,144) 1,745
Absolute difference with hedging (942) 1,437

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market interest rate risk relates primarily to the Group’s debt portion at floating rates. In order to mitigate
this risk, the Group is generally seeking to contract as much as possible of its debt outstanding at fixed interest rates, and is carefully
monitoring the evolution of market conditions, adjusting the mix between fixed and floating rate debt if necessary. To mitigate the
Group’s interest rate risk in connection with near-term debt refinancing needs, the Group may from time to time enter into interest
rate hedges through forward contracts denominated in EUR and USD.

As per 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group had no interest rate hedges outstanding.

The table below summarises the split of the carrying amount of the Group’s debt between fixed and floating rate.

At fixed At floating
In millions of euros rates rates Total
Borrowings at 31 December 2021 3,391 190 3,581
Borrowings at 31 December 2020 3,699 231 3,930

In 2021, the Group repaid a maturing Eurobond 2021 of EUR 556 million, EUR 41 million related to Coface instalments and
EUR 16 million of the LuxGovSat Facility.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s pre-tax income to reasonably possible changes in interest rates
affecting the interest charged on the floating rate borrowings. All other variables are held constant. The Group believes that a
reasonably possible development in the Eurozone interest rates would be an increase of nil basis points or a increase of 12 basis
points (2020: decrease of 9 basis points).

Euro interest rates Floating Increase inrates  Decrease in rates

In millions of euros rate borrowings Pre-tax impact Pre-tax impact

Borrowings at 31 December 2021 190 0.4 -

Borrowings at 31 December 2020 231 - 0.2
Credit risk

Risk management

The Group has the following types of financial assets that are subject to the expected credit loss model: trade receivables, unbilled
accrued revenue, and C-band repurposing receivables.
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It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. To measure
expected credit losses on trade receivables and unbilled accrued revenue, they are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, country and days past due. The unbilled accrued revenues have substantially the same risk characteristics as the
trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The Group has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the unbilled accrued revenue.

The credit verification procedures in relation to trade receivables and unbilled accrued revenue include the assessment of the
creditworthiness of the customer by using sources of quality information such as external specialist reports, audited annual reports,
press articles or rating agencies. Should the customer be a governmental entity, the official debt rating of the respective country is a
key driver in determining the appropriate credit risk category.

Following this credit analysis, the customer is classified into a credit risk category which can be as follows: ‘Prime’ (typically publicly
rated and listed entities), ‘Market’ (usually higher growth companies with higher leverage), ‘Sub-prime’ (customers for which viability
is dependent on continued growth with higher leverage), or Government (governments or governmental institutions, subject to the
corresponding country meeting minimum credit rating criteria). The credit profile is updated at least once a year for all key customers
with an ongoing contractual relationship.

Impairment of trade receivables and unbilled accrued revenue

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses for trade receivables and unbilled accrued
revenue by measuring the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables and unbilled accrued revenue have been grouped in portfolios based on shared credit risk characteristics
(credit risk profile: Prime, Market, Sub-prime, and Government), country and the days past due.

In order to compute the provision, the gross trade receivables balance is reduced for any portion representing deferred revenue and
any securities held. Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group’s largest
customers are large media companies and government agencies, and hence the credit risk associated with these contracts is
assessed as low.

The Company calculates loss expectancy rates based on the history of losses and forward-looking information to create a provision
matrix. On that basis, the provision as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 is as follows:

In millions of euros

31 December 2021 Current Lessthan1 Between 1 More than Total
month and 3 months 3 months

Average expected loss rate (by portfolio) 3.8% 4.9% 6.6% 10.9%

Gross carrying amount — trade receivables 131 24 32 170 357

Provision - - 1 6 7

31 December 2020 Current Lessthan1 Between 1 More than Total
month and 3 months 3 months

Average expected loss rate (by portfolio) 4.1% 5.1% 7.5% 12.1%

Gross carrying amount — trade receivables 164 40 33 156 393

Provision - - 1 8 9

The provision in respect of unbilled accrued revenue as at 31 December 2021 amounts to EUR 13 million and the corresponding
expected credit loss is 3.4% (31 December 2020: EUR 9 million and the corresponding expected credit losses is 2.2%).

An amount of EUR 0.5 million (2020: EUR 6.3 million) was expensed in 2021 reflecting an increase in the IFRS 9 related provision
for trade and other receivables.

Additional provisions are recorded for trade receivables balances if specific circumstances or forward-looking information lead
the Group to believe that additional collectability risk exists with respect to customers that are not reflected in the loss expectancy
rates. A cumulative provision for trade receivables of EUR 86 million has been recorded as of 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
EUR 84 million).
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The movement in provisions for trade receivables and unbilled accrued revenue as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

In millions of euros Provisions for trade receivables Provisions for unbilled accrued revenue

2021 2020 2021 2020
At 1 January 93 94 9 19
Increase in provision 39 75 4 2

recognised in profit or loss
during the year

Receivables written off during (32) (28) - (11)
the year as uncollectible

Unused amount reversed (13) (41) ?3) Q)
Other movements - - 3 -
Impact of currency translation 6 @) - -
At 31 December 93 93 13 9

C-band repurposing receivables

The Group recorded C-band repurposing receivables upon receiving validation that the Group successfully met the Phase 1
Accelerated Relocation deadline and for costs incurred related to C-band spectrum clearing for which the Group expects to be
reimbursed. The Group considered the credit risk related to the C-band repurposing receivables at the end of 2021 and 2020 and
concluded that an estimate of zero expected credit losses is appropriate.

The U.S. government, through the FCC, developed the rules of the C-band auction to ensure incumbent satellite operators such as
the Group are paid in full even if one or more individual overlay license winners fails to pay the Group its assigned portion of the
Group’s relocation costs. An independent third-party Relocation Payment Clearinghouse is administering the C-band transition and
related payments with FCC oversight. If an auction winner defaults on an obligation to pay the Group, the FCC could require a license
to be re-auctioned with the same payment condition, or the FCC could require the other auction winners to collectively pay the Group
for the shortfall as a condition for them to maintain their licenses.

Therefore, as it expects the U.S. government to regulate and ensure the auction winners’ compliance with their payment obligations
to the Group, the Group has estimated zero expected credit losses on the C-band repurposing receivables. Additional disclosure on
the C-band clearing project is included in Note 33.

Financial credit risk

With respect to the credit risk relating to financial assets, this exposure relates to the potential default of the counterparty, with the
maximum exposure being equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. The counterparty risk from a cash management
perspective is reduced by the implementation of several cash pools, accounts and related paying platforms with different
counterparties.

To mitigate the counterparty risk, the Group only deals with recognised financial institutions with an appropriate credit rating -
generally ‘A’ and above - and in adherence of a maximum trade limit for each counterparty which has been approved for each type
of transactions. All counterparties are financial institutions which are regulated and controlled by the national financial supervisory
authorities of the associated countries. The counterparty risk portfolio is analysed on a quarterly basis. Moreover, to reduce this
counterparty risk the portfolio is diversified as regards the main counterparties ensuring a well-balanced relation for all categories of
products (derivatives as well as deposits).

Capital management

The Group’s policy is to attain and retain an investment grade rating from at least two reputable rating agencies. These investment
grade ratings serve to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence. Within this framework, the Group manages its capital
structure and liquidity in order to reflect changes in economic conditions to keep its cost of debt low, maintain the confidence of debt
investors at a high level and to create added value for the shareholder. The Group’s dividend policy takes into account the financial
performance of the year, cash flow developments and other factors such as yield and pay-out ratio.
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Note 19 - Cash and cash equivalents

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Cash at bank and in hand 872 708
Short-term deposits 177 454
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,049 1,162

Cash at banks is subject to interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying
periods between one day and three months - depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group - and earn interest at the
respective short-term deposit rates. Short-term deposits and cash at bank and in hand are held at various financial institutions meeting
the credit rating criteria set out in Note 18 above. See also Note 33 in connection with the receipt of C-band Accelerated Relocation
Payments around the year end.

As at 31 December 2021, there were no investments in money market funds, consistent with the year-end 2020 position.

Note 20 - Shareholders’ equity
Issued capital

SES has a subscribed capital of EUR 719 million (2020: EUR 719 million), represented by 383,457,600 class A shares
(2020: 383,457,600 class A shares) and 191,728,800 class B shares (2020: 191,728,800 class B shares) with no par value.

The movement between the opening and closing number of shares issued per class of share can be summarised as follows:

Class Ashares  Class B shares Total shares

As at 1 January 2021 383,457,600 191,728,800 575,186,400
Shares issued during the year - - -
As at 31 December 2021 383,457,600 191,728,800 575,186,400
Class A shares Class B shares Total shares

As at 1 January 2020 383,457,600 191,728,800 575,186,400
Shares issued during the year - - -
As at 31 December 2020 383,457,600 191,728,800 575,186,400

Fiduciary Deposit Receipts (‘FDRs’) with respect to Class A shares are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and on Euronext
Paris. They can be traded freely and are convertible into Class A shares at any time and at no cost at the option of the holder under
the conditions applicable in the Company’s articles of association and in accordance with the terms of the FDRs.

All Class B shares are currently held by the State of Luxembourg, or by Luxembourg public institutions. Dividends paid for one share
of Class B equal 40% of the dividend for one share of Class A.

A shareholder, or a potential shareholder, who seeks to acquire, directly or indirectly, more than 20% of the shares of the Company
must inform the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company of such intention. The Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company shall forthwith inform the government of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg of the envisaged acquisition which may be
opposed by the government within three months from such information should the government determine that such acquisition would
be against the general public interest. In case of no opposition from the government, the Board shall convene an extraordinary
meeting of shareholders which may decide at a majority provided for in article 450-3 of the law of 10 August 1915, as amended,
regarding commercial companies, to authorise the shareholder, or potential shareholder, to acquire more than 20% of the shares. If
it is an existing shareholder of the Company, it may attend the general meeting and will be included in the count for the quorum but
may not take part in the vote.

Share buyback programme

On 6 May 2021 the Company announced a share buyback programme to be executed by 31 December 2021 under the authorisation
given by the Annual General Meeting of shareholders held on 1 April 2021.

During the year the Group acquired 12 million Class A shares at a weighted average price of EUR 6.56 per A-share and
6 million Class B shares at a price of EUR 2.62 per B-share, resulting in a total cost of the programme of EUR 94 million. The shares
acquired under the programme are expected to be cancelled before the end of 2022 to reduce the total number of voting and economic
shares in issue on completion of the programme, subject to the receipt of the relevant shareholder approval.
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Subject to the agreement of the shareholders, the Company purchases FDRs in respect of ‘Class A’ shares in connection with
executives’ and employees’ share-based payment plans. At the year-end, the Company held FDRs relating to the above schemes
as set out below. These FDRs are disclosed as treasury shares in the consolidated statement of financial position and are carried at
acquisition cost as a deduction from equity.

2021 2020
FDRs held as at 31 December 19,748,429 4,559,818
Carrying value of FDRs held (in millions of euros) 174 77
Class B shares held as at 31 December 6,000,000 -
Carrying value of Class B shares held (in millions of euros) 15 -

EUR 750,000,000 Deeply Subordinated Fixed Rate Resettable Securities

In 2016 SES issued EUR 750,000,000 Deeply Subordinated Fixed Rate Resettable Securities (the ‘EUR 750 million perpetual bond’)
at a coupon of 4.625 percent to the first call date, a price of 99.666 and a yield of 4.7 percent. Transaction costs related to this
transaction amounted to EUR 20 million and have been deducted from ‘Other reserves’. Based on the terms of issuance, the
Company was entitled to call the EUR 750 million perpetual bond on 2 January 2022 and on subsequent coupon payment dates.

On 18 May 2021, SES announced a capped tender offer for the bond at a fixed purchase yield of -0.10% which was accepted by the
required number of bondholders such that the Company was able to repurchase 84.5% of the existing bonds on 28th May at a price
representing 102.838% of nominal value, and the remaining 15.5% at par, with a settlement date of 30 June 2021.

EUR 625,000,000 Deeply Subordinated Fixed Rate Resettable Securities

On 20 May 2021 the Company announced the successful launch and pricing of new Deeply Subordinated Fixed Rate Resettable
Securities for a total amount of EUR 625 million, with a first reset date on 27 August 2026. The securities bear a coupon of 2.875%
per annum and were priced at 99.409% of their nominal value. The proceeds of the new issuance were received on 27 May 2021.

Tender premium and transaction costs for these transactions amounted to EUR 26 million and have been deducted from “Other reserves”.
EUR 550,000,000 Deeply Subordinated Fixed Rate Resettable Securities

In 2016 SES issued a second perpetual bond of EUR 550,000,000 (the ‘EUR 550 million perpetual bond’) at a coupon of 5.625 percent
to the first call date, a price of 99.304 and a yield of 5.75 percent. Transaction costs related to this transaction amounted to
EUR 8 million and have been deducted from ‘Other reserves’. This brought the aggregate perpetual bond issued by the Group to
EUR 1,300 million. SES is entitled to call the EUR 550 million perpetual bond on 29 January 2024 and on subsequent coupon
payment dates.

As the Company has no obligation to redeem either of the bonds, and the coupon payments are discretionary, it classified the net
proceeds from the issuance of the securities (together EUR 1,121 million net of transaction costs and tax) as equity. The perpetual
bonds are guaranteed on a subordinated basis by SES Global Americas Holdings GP. SES used the net proceeds from the offerings
for the repayment of O3b debt, the repayment of certain existing indebtedness of the Group, as well as for general corporate purposes.

Coupon payments in respect of the perpetual bonds occurred on 4 January 2021 (EUR 35 million), 29 January 2021 (EUR 31 million),
27 May 2021 (EUR 11 million), 21 June 2021 (EUR 3 million) and 27 August 2021 (EUR 5 million) and have been deducted
from ‘Other reserves’. The corresponding payments in 2020 were on 2 January 2020 (EUR 35 million) and 29 January 2020
(EUR 31 million) and were also deducted from ‘Other reserves’.

Tax on the perpetual bond coupon accrual of EUR 20 million (2020: EUR 18 million) has been credited to ‘Other reserves”.

Other reserves

In accordance with Luxembourg legal requirements, a minimum of 5% of the yearly statutory net profit of the Company is transferred
to a legal reserve which is non-distributable. This requirement is satisfied when the reserve reaches 10% of the issued share capital.
As at 31 December 2021 a legal reserve of EUR 72 million (2020: EUR 72 million) is included within other reserves.

Other reserves include a non-distributable amount of EUR 189 million (2020: EUR 77 million) linked to treasury shares, and an
amount of EUR 181 million (2020: EUR 228 million) representing the net worth tax reserve for 2015-2018, for which the distribution

would result in the payment of net worth tax at a rate of up to 20% of the distributed reserve in accordance with Luxembourg law
requirement.
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Note 21 - Non-controlling interest

Set out below is the summarised financial information for each subsidiary that has non-controlling interests (NCI) that are material to
the Group. The amounts disclosed for each subsidiary are before inter-company eliminations.

Al Maisan Satellite

LuxGovSat S.A. Communications LLC, UAE
In millions of euros (50% NCI)* (65% NCI)*
Summarised balance sheet 2021 2020 2021 2020
Current assets 18 39 14 12
Current liabilities (18) (27) 3) 4)
Current net assets - 12 11 8
Non-current assets 159 178 27 28
Non-current liabilities (83) (100) - -
Non-current net assets 76 78 27 28
Net assets 76 90 38 36
Accumulated NCI 38 45 25 24

Transactions with non-controlling interests - - - -

*

Refer to Note 2.

Al Maisan Satellite Communications

LuxGovSat S.A. LLC, UAE
In millions of euros (50% NCI) (65% NCI)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2021 2020 2021 2020
Revenue 23 21 9 7
Operating expenses (15) (16) 4) (8)
Profit/(loss) for the period (15) (13) 1 4)
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive income (15) (23) 1 4)

1

Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI ) (6)

(3)
Dividend paid to NCI -

Al Maisan Satellite Communications

LuxGovSat S.A. LLC, UAE
In millions of euros (50% NCI) (65% NCI)
Summarised cash flows 2021 2020 2021 2020
Cash flows from/(absorbed by) operating activities 6 8 4 3
Cash flows from/(absorbed by) investing activities (1) - 3) -
Cash flows from/(absorbed by) financing activities (38) 6 - -
Net foreign exchange movements - - - -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (33) 14 1 3
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Note 22 - Share-based compensation plans

The Group has four share-based compensation plans which are detailed below. In the case of the Stock Appreciation Rights Plan
and Equity Incentive Compensation Plan the relevant strike price is defined as the average of the market price of the underlying
shares over a period of 15 trading days before the date of the grant.

1) The Stock Appreciation Rights Plan (‘'STAR Plan’)
The STAR Plan is an equity-settled plan available to non-executive staff of Group subsidiaries, where share options are granted.

In January 2011, the STAR Plan was amended and, for all options granted 2011 onwards, a third of the share options vest and
can be exercised each year. After being fully vested, the share options have a four-year exercise period.

2021 2020
Outstanding options at the end of the year 700,553 1,134,170
Weighted average exercise price in euro 27.61 27.31

All of the 700,553 outstanding options as at 31 December 2021 (2020: 1,134,170), are fully vested and exercisable. No options
were exercised in 2021 or in 2020.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their related weighted average exercise prices in euro are as follows:

2021 2020

Average Average

exercise price exercise price
per share Number of per share Number of
option options option options
As at 1 January 27.31 1,134,170 26.52 1,594,540
Forfeited 26.81 (433,617) 24.58 (460,370)
Exercised - - - -
At 31 December 27.61 700,553 27.31 1,134,170

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry date and exercise prices in euro:

Grant Expiry date Exercise price per share options Number of options
2021 2020
2016 2023 24.39 428,639 488,338
2015 2022 32.73 271,914 313,802
2014 2021 26.50 - 332,030
700,553 1,134,170

2) Simulated Restricted Share Units (‘SRSU’)

In 2017 the Group introduced a new compensation plan which is progressively replacing the STAR Plan. SRSU are cash-settled
awards delivered on 1 June following a three-year vesting period. The liability for the cash-settled awards is measured initially
and at the end of each reporting period until settled, at the fair value of the share appreciation rights, taking into account the terms
and conditions on which the stock appreciation rights were granted and recognised to the extent to which the employees have
rendered services to date.

During 2021, 850,783 SRSU have been granted (2020: 864,428). During the same period, 153,050 SRSUs have been forfeited
(2020: 98,645) and 307,754 SRSU have been vested (2020: 221,056). A liability of EUR 5,453,399 has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as of 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: EUR 4,591,628) based on the
1,793,435 outstanding SRSUs (31 December 2020: 1,403,456) measured at the Group’s share price at the end of the year on a
pro-rata basis over 3 years vesting period.
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3) Equity Based Compensation Plan comprising options (‘EBCP Option’)

The EBCP Option is available to Group executives. Under the plan, the “date of Option Grant” means the first business day that
follows fifteen (15) market trading days for Shares after the Allocation Period during which the Fair Market Value is fixed.
Generally, one-quarter of the entitlement vests on each 1 January of the four years following the Date of Option Grant, but for
one grant, one fifth of the entitlement vests on each 1 June of the five years following the Date of Option Grant. Once vested, the
options can be exercised until the tenth anniversary of the original grant. For 2021 EBCP Option Plan grants, one third of the
options vest on each 1 June of the following three years.

2021 2020
Outstanding options at the end of the year 18,767,922 18,364,300
Weighted average exercise price in euro 13.17 15.29

Out of 18,767,922 outstanding options as of the end of 2021 (2020: 18,364,300), 9,800,000 options are exercisable
(2020:12,241,571). In 2021 134,836 treasury shares were delivered at a weighted average price of EUR 5.97 each, while in 2020
no options were exercised. On average, in 2021, the related weighted average share price at the time of exercise was EUR 6.47
per share.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their related weighted average exercise prices in euro are as follows:

2021 2020

Average exercise Average exercise
price per share price per share Number of
option  Number of options option options
At 1 January 15.29 18,364,300 18.6 14,908,795
Granted 6.40 3,418,751 5.97 4,824,735
Forfeited 19.00 (2,880,293) 18.61 (1,369,230)
Exercised 5.97 (134,836) - -
At 31 December 13.17 18,767,922 15.29 18,364,300

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry date and exercise prices in euro:

Grant Expiry date Exercise price per share options Number of options
2021 2020
2021 2031 6.40 3,328,751 0
2020 2030 5.97 4,589,286 4,816,869
2019 2029 15.01 1,953,847 2,262,401
2018 2028 18.23 407,000 407,000
2018 2028 12.67 3,657,848 4,294,036
2017 2027 21.15 2,000,274 2,511,089
2016 2026 24.39 1,407,479 1,864,557
2015 2025 32.73 546,735 750,640
2014 2024 26.5 432,030 605,363
2013 2023 23.51 230,955 315,092
2012 2022 18.1 213,717 313,392
2011 2021 17.57 - 223,861
18,767,922 18,364,300

4) Equity Based Compensation Plan (‘EBCP’)

The EBCP is also a programme for executives, and senior executives, of the Group, comprising performance shares (‘EBCP PS’)
and restricted shares (‘FEBCP RS’). Under the plan, restricted shares are allocated to executives at the beginning of May each
year and these vest on the 1 June following the third anniversary of the grant. Senior executives also have the possibility to be
allocated performance shares whose granting is dependent on the achievement of defined performance criteria which are a)
individual objectives and b) the economic value added (‘EVA’) target established by the Board from time to time. These shares
also vest on the 1 June following the third anniversary of the original grant. For 2021 EBCP grants, EVA was replaced by the total
shareholder return (‘TSR’) as the financial performance criteria for vesting of performance shares.
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2021 2020

Restricted and performance shares outstanding at the end of the year 2,252,136 2,026,147
Weighted average fair value in euro 6.58 8.65

During 2021, 332,257 restricted shares (2020: 262,731) and 632,226 (2020: 676,743) performance shares were granted;
33,175 restricted shares (2020: 26,298) and 262,959 performance shares (2020: 75,436) were forfeited; and 268,442
performance shares (2020: 266,385) and 173,918 restricted shares (2020: 91,574) were exercised.

The fair value of equity-settled shares (restricted and performance shares) granted is estimated as at the date of grant using a
binomial model for STARs and EBCP Option and a Black & Scholes model for EBCP, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options (restricted and performance shares) were granted. The following table lists the average value of inputs to
the model used for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

EBCP PS and
2021 EBCP Option EBCP RS
Dividend yield (%) 7.43% 7.09%
Expected volatility (%) 32.85% 35.53%
Risk-free interest rate (%) -0.58% -0.68%
Expected life of options (years) 10 3
Share price at inception (EUR) 6.22 6.22
Fair value per option/share (EUR) 0.78 5.00
Total expected cost for each plan (in millions of euros) 2.25 6.01

EBCP PS and
2020 EBCP Option EBCP RS
Dividend yield (%) 6.89% 6.61%
Expected volatility (%) 30.42% 35.12%
Risk-free interest rate (%) -0.62% -0.64%
Expected life of options (years) 10 3
Share price at inception (EUR) 6.34 6.34
Fair value per option/share (EUR) 0.77-0.90 5.12-5.53
Total expected cost for each plan (in millions of euros) 3.64 4.38

The expected life of the options is based on historical data and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur.
The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may or may not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

The total charge for the year for share-based compensation amounted to EUR 8 million (2020: EUR 10 million), out of which
equity-settled EUR 5 million (2020: EUR 9 million) and cash-settled EUR 3 million (2020: EUR 1 million).
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Note 23 - Interest-bearing borrowings

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings were:

Amounts outstanding
2021, carried at

In millions of euros Effective interest rate Maturity amortised cost
Non-current
US Bond (USD 750 million) 3.60% April 2023 662
German bond (EUR 150 million), non-listed EURIBOR 6M + 0.80% June 2024 150
German bond (EUR 250 million), non-listed 1.71% December 2025 250
Eurobond 2026 (EUR 650 million) 1.625% March 2026 654
Euro Private Placement 2027
(EUR 140 million under EMTN) 4.00% May 2027 140
Eurobond 2027 (EUR 500 million) 0.875% November 2027 497
Eurobond 2028 (EUR 400 million) 2.00% July 2028 395
Fixed Term Loan (LuxGovSat) 3.30% December 2027 82
German bond (EUR 50 million), non-listed 4.00% November 2032 50
US Bond (USD 250 million) 5.30% April 2043 214
US Bond (USD 500 million) 5.30% March 2044 430
Total non-current 3,524
Current
Coface EURIBOR 6M + 1.70% Various in 2021 40
Fixed Term Loan (LuxGovSat) 3.30% December 2027 17
Total current 57
Amounts outstanding
2020, carried at
In millions of euros Effective interest rate Maturity amortised cost

Non-current

Coface EURIBOR 6M + 1.70% Various 2022 40
US Bond (USD 750 million) 3.60% April 2023 610
German bond (EUR 150 million), non-listed EURIBOR 6M + 0.80% June 2024 150
German bond (EUR 250 million), non-listed 1.71% December 2025 249
Eurobond 2026 (EUR 500 million) 1.625% March 2026 496
Euro Private Placement 2027

(EUR 140 million under EMTN) 4.00% May 2027 140
Eurobond 2027 (EUR 500 million) 0.875% November 2027 497
Eurobond 2028 (EUR 400 million) 2.00% July 2028 395
Fixed Term Loan (LuxGovSat) 3.30% December 2027 98
German bond (EUR 50 million), non-listed 4.00% November 2032 50
US Bond (USD 250 million) 5.30% April 2043 197
US Bond (USD 500 million) 5.30% March 2044 395
Total non-current 3,317
Current

Coface EURIBOR 6M + 1.70% Various in 2021 41
Eurobond 2021 (EUR 650 million) 4.75% March 2021 556
Fixed Term Loan (LuxGovSat) 3.30% December 2027 16
Total current 613
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European Medium-Term Note Programme (‘EMTN’)

SES has an EMTN Programme enabling SES, or SES Global Americas Holdings GP, to issue as and when required notes
up to a maximum aggregate amount of EUR 4,000 million. As at 31 December 2021, SES had issued EUR 1,690 million
(2020: EUR 2,096 million) under the EMTN Programme with maturities ranging from 2026 to 2028.

EUR 650 million Eurobond (2020)

SES repaid its EUR 650 million 10-year bond under the Company’s European Medium-Term Note Programme issued 2010, with a
fixed interest rate of 4.625% on March 9, 2020.

EUR 650 million Eurobond (2021)

In 2021 SES fully repaid a EUR 650 million bond under the Company’s European Medium-Term Note Programme, with a fixed rate
coupon of 4.75%.

German bond issue of EUR 400 million (2024/2025)

In 2018 the Group closed the issuance of an aggregated amount of EUR 400 million in the German bond (‘Schuldschein’) market.
The transaction consists of two individual tranches - a EUR 150 million tranche with a floating interest rate of a six-month EURIBOR
plus a margin of 0.8% and a final maturity date on 18 June 2024 as well as a EUR 250 million tranche with a fixed interest rate of
1.71% and a final maturity date on 18 December 2025.

EUR 650 million Eurobond (2026)

In 2018 SES issued a EUR 500 million 8-year bond under the Company’s European Medium-Term Note Programme. On the
22 June 2021 SES announced the successful lunch and pricing of a tap of its 1.625% Notes in which it has agreed to sell incremental
senior unsecured fixed rate notes for a total amount of EUR 150 million. The new notes were priced at 106.665% of their nominal
value. The bond bears interest at a fixed rate of 1.625% and has a final maturity date on 22 March 2026.

EUR 500 million Eurobond (2027)

On 4 November 2019, SES issued a EUR 500 million bond under the Company’s European Medium-Term Note Programme.
The bond has an 8-year maturity and bears interest at a fixed rate of 0.875% and has a final maturity date on 4 November 2027.

EUR 140 million Private Placement (2027)

In 2012 SES issued three individual tranches of a total EUR 140 million Private Placement under the Company’s European
Medium-Term Note Programme with ING Bank N.V. The Private Placement has a 15-year maturity, beginning 31 May 2012, and
bears interest at a fixed rate of 4.00%.

EUR 400 million Eurobond (2028)

On 2 July 2020, SES issued a EUR 400 million bond under the Company’s European Medium-Term Note Programme. The bond has
an 8-year maturity and bears interest at a fixed rate of 2.00% and has a final maturity date on 2 July 2028.

German bond issue of EUR 50 million (2032)

In 2012 the Group signed an agreement to issue EUR 50 million in the German bond (‘Schuldschein’) market. The German bond
bears a fixed interest rate of 4.00% and matures on 12 November 2032.

144A Bond USD 750 million (2023)

In 2013 SES completed a 144A offering in the US market issuing USD 750 million 10-year bond with a coupon of 3.60% and a final
maturity date on 4 April 2023.

144A Bond USD 250 million (2043)

In 2013 SES completed a 144A offering in the US market issuing USD 250 million 30-year bond with a coupon of 5.30% and a final
maturity date on 4 April 2043.

68|Page



144A Bond USD 500 million (2044)

In 2014 SES completed a 144A offering in the US market issuing USD 500 million 30-year bond with a coupon of 5.30% and a final
maturity date of 25 March 2044.

Syndicated loan 2019

The facility is being provided by 19 banks and has been structured as a 5-year multi-currency revolving credit facility. In 2021 the
Company extended the Termination date from 26 June 2025 to 26 June 2026. The facility is for EUR 1,200 million and the interest
payable is linked to a ratings grid. At the current SES credit rating of BBB- / Baa2, the interest rate is 45 basis points over
EURIBOR/LIBOR.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, no amount has been drawn under this facility.
EUR 523 million Coface facility

In 2009 SES signed a financing agreement with Compagnie Frangaise d’Assurance pour le Commerce Extérieur (‘Coface’) in respect
of the investment in four geostationary satellites (ASTRA 2E, ASTRA 2F, ASTRA 2G, ASTRA 5B). The facility is divided into five
loans. The drawings under the facility are based on invoices from the supplier of the satellites.

The first drawing was done on 23 April 2010 and all loan tranches became fully drawn in November 2014. Each Coface tranche is
repayable in 17 equal semi-annual instalments where Coface A has a final maturity date of 1 August 2022, Coface F matured on
21 May 2021 and Coface C and D will mature on 3 October 2022. The entire facility bears interest at a floating rate of six-month
EURIBOR plus a margin of 1.7%. In November 2017, SES opted to execute voluntary prepayment clauses pursuant to the Agreement
and repaid the remaining outstanding amount of Coface tranche B as per 21 November 2017. All other Coface tranches remain in
place as contracted.

EUR 115 million Credit Facility (LuxGovSat)

In 2015 LuxGovSat S.A. signed a financing agreement with BGL BNP Paribas for EUR 115 million at a fixed rate coupon of 3.30%.
The facility is repayable in 14 semi-annual installments and has a final maturity date of 1 December 2027.

As at 31 December 2021, total borrowings of EUR 99 million were outstanding under the fixed term facility.

Negotiable European Commercial Paper “NEU CP” (formerly French Commercial paper programme)

In 2005 SES put in place a EUR 500 million ‘NEU CP’ programme in accordance with articles L.213-1 to L213-4 of the
French Monetary and Financial Code and article 6 of the order of 30 May 2016 and subsequent amendments. The maximum
outstanding amount of ‘NEU CP’ issuable under the programme is EUR 500 million or its counter value at the date of issue in any
other authorised currency. On 21 May 2021, this programme was extended for one further year.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, no borrowings were outstanding under this programme.

European Commercial paper programme

In 2012 SES signed the documentation for the inception of a joint EUR 1,000 million guaranteed European commercial paper
programme of SES S.A. and SES Global Americas Holdings GP. Issuances under the programme represent senior unsecured
obligations of the issuer and any issuance under the programme is guaranteed by the non-issuing entity. The programme is rated by
Moody’s Investors Services and is compliant with the standards set out in the STEP Market Convention. On 9 July 2021, this
programme was updated and extended.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, no borrowings were outstanding under this programme.

IBOR Reform

Certain benchmark rates used in financing agreements and financial derivatives are currently being modified and either have been
terminated (GBP LIBOR or CHF LIBOR) or are planned to be terminated during the next few years (EURIBOR, USD LIBOR). The

Group has financing arrangements which are based on two of these benchmark rates (EURIBOR or USD LIBOR). These changes
did not have any material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Note 24 - Provisions

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Non-current 6 12
Current 56 60
Total 62 72

Movements in each class of provision during the financial year are set out below:

Group tax Restructuring Other
In millions of euros provision provision provisions Total
As at 1 January 2021 46 23 3 72
Additional provisions recognised 2 8 - 10
Unused amounts reversed @) - - ©)
Used during the year - (15) ) (16)
Reclassification to income tax payable - - - -
Impact of currency translation 3 - - 3
As at 31 December 2021 44 16 2 62
Non-current 4 - 2 6
Current 40 16 - 56
Group tax Restructuring Other
In millions of euros provision provision provisions Total
As at 1 January 2020 52 8 3 63
Additional provisions recognised 11 40 - 51
Unused amounts reversed 3) (5) - 8)
Used during the year (8) (18) - (26)
Reclassification to income tax payable - (1) - 1)
Impact of currency translation (6) 1) - )
As at 31 December 2020 46 23 3 72
Non-current 9 - 3 12
Current 37 23 - 60

Group tax provision

Group tax provision mainly relates to Indian withholding taxes and potential associated interest charges. The decrease in the Group
tax provision was mainly due to the reversal of provisions following the elimination of the uncertainties that gave rise to the recognition
of these provisions.

Restructuring provision

Expenses of the period include an amount of EUR 8 million (2020: EUR 40 million) of charges associated with the reorganisation of
the Group’s operations, mainly in the framework of the Group's ‘Simplify & Amplify’ programme. These comprise primarily personnel
measures such as the implementation of an incentive programme for early retirement and measures to adjust staffing levels and
structures in certain areas, as well as the cessation of operations in certain locations.

Reflecting these activities, the consolidated statement of financial position includes a provision of EUR 16 million (2020:

EUR 23 million). No new initiatives are expected under the current restructuring programme which would result in additional charges
in the following years.
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Note 25 - Trade and other payables

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Trade creditors 91 94
Payments received in advance (please also see Note 26) 1 40
Interest on borrowings 31 51
Personnel-related liabilities 75 35
Tax liabilities other than for income tax 20 19
Other liabilities 74 61
Total 292 300

Tax liabilities mainly relate to VAT payables in the amount of EUR 14 million as of 31 December 2021 (2020: EUR 11 million).

Note 26 - Other long-term liabilities

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Employee benefits obligations 17 27
Payments received in advance 48 80
Other long-term liabilities 18 20
Total 83 127

Employee benefits obligations

In the Group’s US operations certain employees benefit from an externally insured post-retirement health benefit plan. During 2021,
changes to the plan’s rules resulted in a reduction in the corresponding employee benefit obligation provision of EUR 10 million,
included under ‘Staff costs’ in the consolidated income statement. As at 31 December 2021, accrued premiums of EUR 9 million
(2020: EUR 19 million) are included in this position.

Contributions made in 2021 to Group pension schemes totalled EUR 2 million (2020: EUR 2 million), which are recorded in the
consolidated income statement under ‘staff costs’.

In addition, certain employees of the US operations benefit from defined contribution pension plans. A liability of EUR 10 million has
been recognised as at 31 December 2021 (2020: EUR 11 million) in this respect, out of which EUR 3 million is included under ‘Trade
and other payables’ (2020: EUR 3 million).

Payments received in advance

In the framework of receivables securitisation transactions completed in June 2018 and June 2019 the Group received a net cash
amount of EUR 88 million and EUR 59 million, respectively, from a financial institution as advance settlement of future receivables
arising until 2022 under contracts with a specific customer.

A corresponding aggregate liability of EUR 82 million (2020: EUR 119 million), representing SES’s obligation towards the financial
institution to continue to provide services to the customer in accordance with the terms of the customer contract, is recorded in
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021 under ‘Other long-term liabilities’ for EUR 48 million
(2020: EUR 80 million) and under ‘Trade and other payables’ for EUR 34 million (2020: EUR 39 million).

Other long-term liabilities

The other long-term liabilities include customer collateral deposits amounting to EUR 18 million (2020: EUR 20 million).
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Note 27 - Fixed assets suppliers

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Non-current 472 1,310
Current 1,554 67

Fixed assets suppliers represent liabilities for assets being either acquired directly through procurement contracts with asset
manufacturers, or in the framework of agreements whereby the asset is being acquired by an intermediary but where in substance
SES bears the risks and rewards of the procurement.

In the latter case the Company accrues for construction-related liabilities on the basis of pre-determined milestones agreed between
the manufacturer and the relevant parties, see also Note 28. Non-current fixed assets suppliers are initially recognized at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The main procurements under this caption are:

e The O3b mPOWER medium-Earth orbit constellation: EUR 1,046 million (2020: EUR 860 million);

e The SES-17 satellite programme: EUR 248 million (2020: EUR 189 million);

e Six satellites being procured in connection with the C-band repurposing activities: EUR 655 million (2020: EUR 313 million),
refer to Note 33;

e Two satellites for the replacement of Astra 19.2°E satellites: EUR 56 million (2020: EUR nil)

Acquisition of the SES O3b mPOWER medium-Earth orbit constellation and launchers

On 11 September 2017, the Company, jointly with its subsidiary O3b Networks Limited, entered as Procurement Agents into a
Master Procurement Agency and Option Agreement with a financial institution in connection with the procurement by that financial
institution of seven medium-Earth orbit satellites from a satellite manufacturer. The satellites were divided into 2 sub-blocks
(sub-Block 1 A consisting of four satellites and sub-block 1B consisting of three satellites) currently under construction. At the end of
the satellite construction period, which is foreseen in 2021, the Group will have the right to acquire, or lease, the satellites from the
financial institution or to direct their sale to a third-party.

In August 2020 the Company exercised the option under the Purchase and Sale agreement to procure four additional O3b mPOWER
satellites. The Company, jointly with its subsidiary O3b Networks Limited, entered as Procurement Agent into a second Master
Procurement Agency and Option Agreement with a financial institution in connection with the procurement by that financial institution
of the additional satellites. At the end of the satellite construction period, foreseen in 2022, the Group will have the right to acquire,
or lease, the satellites from the financial institution or to direct their sale to a third-party.

Since the underlying Satellite Purchase and Sale Agreements are directly between the financial institutions and the satellite
manufacturer, there is no contractual obligation on the side of the Procurement Agents during the satellite construction process.
However, SES management takes the view that there is a constructive obligation arising over the procurement period and hence the
Group is accruing for the costs of this programme. SES has the right to nominate shortly before the end of the construction period
the entity within the Group which will acquire or lease those assets. SES management expects that the satellites will be acquired or
leased in due course by the company SES mPOWER S.ar.l. in Luxembourg.

Note 28 - Commitments and contingencies
Capital expenditure commitments

The Group had outstanding commitments in respect of contracted capital expenditure totalling EUR 712 million as at
31 December 2021 (2020: EUR 948 million). These commitments largely reflect the procurement of satellites and satellite launchers
and are stated net of liabilities under these programmes which are already disclosed under “Fixed assets suppliers”, see Note 27.
The commitments as at 31 December 2021 also include EUR 87 million (2020: EUR 87 million) in connection with the renewal of the
agreement with Luxembourg government in respect of SES’s concession to operate satellites under Luxembourg’s jurisdiction, as
disclosed in Note 14 -“Intangible assets”.
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The capital expenditure commitments arising under these agreements as at 31 December are as follows:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Within one year 512 497
After one year but not more than five years 147 395
After more than five years 53 56
Total 712 948

Other commitments

The Group’s other commitments mainly comprise transponder service agreements for the purchase of satellite capacity from third
parties under contracts with a maximum life of eight years, as well as EUR 70 million capital contribution into a Luxembourg space
sector fund in connection with the renewal of the agreement with Luxembourg government in respect of SES’s concession to operate
satellites under Luxembourg’s jurisdiction.

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Within one year 68 150
After one year but not more than five years 126 160
After more than five years 75 60
Total 269 370

The total expense recognised for transponder service agreements in 2021 was EUR 68 million (2020: EUR 82 million).
Litigation

There were no significant litigation claims against the Group as at 31 December 2021, or as at 31 December 2020.
Guarantees

On 31 December 2021 the Group had outstanding bank guarantees of EUR 67 million (2020: EUR 89 million) with respect to
performance and warranty guarantees for services of satellite operations.

Note 29 - Leases
1) Lessor

During 2021 the Group recognised leasing income of EUR 32 million (2020: EUR 40 million) related to one (2020: one) customer
lease contract. The lease matured in November 2021, so there is no related carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
leased as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: EUR 69 million).

2) Lessee

The Group has recognised right-of-use assets, and associated liabilities, in relation to contracts previously classified as “operating
leases” under the provision of IAS 17. These assets and liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the Group’s weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 2.76% as at 31 December 2021 (3.14%
as at 31 December 2020). The difference between the operating lease commitments and the right-of-use assets recognised
represents impact of discounting over the outstanding lease term.
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i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position

The Group leases office buildings, ground segment assets and other fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment, information

about which is presented below.

Other fixtures
and fittings,
Ground tools and
In millions of euros Buildings segment equipment 31 December 2021
Right-of-use assets
Cost 42 15 3 60
Accumulated depreciation (19) (9) (2) (30)
Total 23 6 1 30
Other fixtures
and fittings,
Ground tools and
In millions of euros Buildings segment equipment 31 December 2020
Right-of-use assets
Cost 39 13 56
Accumulated depreciation (149 (6) 2 (22)
Total 25 7 2 34

There were no material additions to the right-of-use assets during 2021, depreciation charge for the year was EUR 11 million

(2020: EUR 15 million).

Lease liabilities are presented below as at 31 December:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows

Within one year 12 13
After one year but not more than five years 19 26
More than five years 8 4
Total 39 43
Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position at 31 December

Current 11 12
Non-current 22 25
Total 33 37

The leases of office buildings typically run for a period of 2-10 years and leases of ground segment assets for 5 years. Some
leases include an option to renew the lease for an additional period after the end of the contract term. The Group assesses at
lease commencement whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension option. The Group reassesses whether it is
reasonably certain to exercise the options if there is a significant event or significant change in circumstances within its control.

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Buildings 7 11
Ground segment 3 3
Other fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment 1 1
Total 11 15
Finance cost:
In millions of euros 2021 2020
Interest expense 1 1
Total 1 1

The total cash outflow for leases in 2021 was EUR 14 million (2020:

EUR 15 million).



Note 30 - Cash flow information
Non-cash investing activities

Purchases of property, plant and equipment or intangible assets not included as a cash outflow in the consolidated statement of cash
flows are disclosed in Notes 12, 13 and 14.

Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for 2021 and 2020.

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Cash and cash equivalents 1,049 1,162
Borrowings - repayable within one year (57) (613)
Borrowings - repayable after one year (3,524) (3,317)
Net debt? (2,532) (2,768)
In millions of euros 2021 2020
Cash and cash equivalents 1,049 1,162
Borrowings - floating rates (190) (231)
Borrowings - fixed interest rates (3,391) (3,699)
Net debt? (2,532) (2,768)

INet debt excludes current and non-current lease liabilities. Including these, net debt as at 31 December 2021 was EUR 2,565 million (2020: EUR 2,805 million)

Borrowings Borrowings

Cash and cash repayable repayable after
In millions of euros equivalents  within one year one year Total
Net debt as at 1 January 2021 1,162 (613) (3,317) (2,768)
Cash flows (net) (116) 614 (159) 339
Foreign exchange adjustments 3 - (101) (98)
Transfers - (57) 57 -
Other non-cash movements* - (1) (4) (5)
Net debt as at 31 December 2021 1,049 (57) (3,524) (2,532)

Borrowings Borrowings

Cash and cash repayable repayable after
In millions of euros equivalents  within one year one year Total
Net debt as at 1 January 2020 1,155 (691) (3,737) (3,273)
Cash flows (net) 19 785 (395) 409
Foreign exchange adjustments (12) - 113 101
Transfers - (707) 707 -
Other non-cash movements* - (5) (5)
Net debt as at 31 December 2020 1,162 (613) (3,317) (2,768)

*

related to loan origination costs

During 2021 the Group issued European Commercial Paper for EUR 275 million (2020: EUR 159 million) and reimbursed
EUR 275 million (2020: EUR 159 million). These have been presented net in the consolidated statement of cash flows.
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Note 31 - Related parties

The state of Luxembourg holds a direct 11.58% voting interest in the Company and two indirect interests, both of 10.88% each,
through two state owned banks, Banque et Caisse d’Epargne de I'Etat and Société Nationale de Crédit et d’Investissement. These
shares constitute the Company’s Class B shares, as described in Note 20.

The total remuneration to directors for attendance at board and committee meetings in 2021 amounted to EUR 1.1 million (2020:
EUR 1 million). These amounts are computed on a fixed and variable basis, the variable part being based upon attendance at board

and committee meetings.

The key management of the Group, defined as the Senior Leadership Team, received compensation as follows:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Remuneration including bonuses and other benefits 7 5
Pension benefits 1 1
Share-based compensation plans 2 2
Total 10 8

The total outstanding amount in respect of share-based payment instruments allocated to key management as at 31 December 2021
were 4,916,470 (2020: 3,843,944).

Note 32 - Implications of COVID-19

The continuing COVID-19 pandemic has had, and continues to have, widespread economic implications across nearly all economic
sectors, including our own, and management continues to monitor carefully the impact on different aspects of our financial
performance and to respond accordingly to protect the financial interests of the Group.

We have set out our analysis below into four areas of current, or potential, impact:
Operational risk

Overall, COVID-19 has continued to have a pronounced short and medium-term impact, significantly challenging the contract base,
renewals and dampening growth across Mobility, Energy, Government, as well as stretching cash flows across much of the industry,
and accelerating a restructuring / consolidation process in some parts of the sectors the Group serves.

While the pandemic has impeded the Group’s short-term growth, the second half of 2021 has shown the first signs of improvement,
with customer’s returning to normal service as well as a validation of early indications of a consumer bounce-back with strong appetite
for reliable and high-performance connectivity. This has been seen across the Mobility segment as well as in Fixed Data, including
interest in ubiquitous rural connectivity, and in Government where connectivity for morale, welfare and recreation has received
renewed focus.

The overall revenue decrease versus prior year which can be directly attributed to COVID-19 was EUR 22 million, all attributed to
Networks.

e Video

For Video, the COVID-19 impact was not significant and was mainly related to Sports & Events activities due to the cancellation
or postponement of some tournaments and events. However, year-on-year revenues in this area are increasing again in 2021
versus prior year reflecting the return of main tournaments in 2021.

e Networks

For Networks, a year-on-year reduction of EUR 22 million of revenue is attributable to COVID-19, mainly driven by aero and
maritime customers in the Mobility area.

In its business planning, which serves as a basis for the computation of value-in-use amounts in the framework of impairment testing,
the revenue and cost projections have been adjusted to reflect the 2021 impact on the Group’s operating results of the pandemic and
management’s best estimate of a likely recovery profile based on the information available at the time of the approval of those plans
in December 2021.
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Risk to the measurement of assets and liabilities

As noted above, the pandemic has impacted customers in both Video and Networks operations and, in the early stages of the
pandemic, the Group worked constructively as a business partner with specific customers to support their financial operations during
the periods of enforced restriction of their businesses whilst maintaining and developing the respective business relationships for the
longer term. While the impact on the Group’s operating cash flow in 2020 was, in aggregate circa EUR 72 million, the impact in 2021
was relatively insignificant.

Liquidity risk

After a severe impact on credit spreads in 2020 due to the unknown impact of COVID-19, credit spreads were favourable to
investment grade issuers throughout 2021, which has allowed SES to refinance borrowings at favourable rates, as set out in note 23.
While interest rate increases are possible over the 2022-2024 time horizon, there is currently no elevated refinancing risk for SES
related to COVID-19.

The Group manages its liquidity by monitoring the available cash holdings and the forecast cash-flow projections for the business.
As of 31 December 2021, the Group has cash and cash equivalents of EUR 1,049 million, a solid contribution to the 2022 operational
cash needs of the Group. Phase 1 C-Band Accelerated Relocation Payments of USD 391 million have been received in
December 2021 and the remaining USD 586 million in January 2022 (see Note 33) further bolstering liquidity profile for 2022 and
2023. In addition, the Group has a revolving credit facility for EUR 1,200 million in place until 2026 which is currently undrawn.
Together these sources of immediately available funds represent EUR 2,249 million.

The continuing strong operating cash flows, the current cash holdings, including C-Band Phase 1 proceeds received in
December 2021 and January 2022, the availability of the full revolving credit facility and the continuing access to liquid debt markets
indicate to management that there is no significant liquidity risk for the Group at the date of the issuance of these financial statements.

Going concern risk

Based on the information presented above, management does not believe that the impact on the Group’s activities is such that there
is any reason to cast doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern or that there would be a material uncertainty in this
regard.

Note 33 - C-band repurposing

At its Open Commission Meeting held on 28 February 2020, the Federal Communications Commission (‘FCC’) adopted a Report and
Order and Order of Proposed Modification (‘the FCC Order’) in connection with the clearing of a 300 MHz band of C-band downlink
spectrum between 3,700 and 4,000 MHz by December 2025 to support the rapid deployment of terrestrial 5G services in the
contiguous United States (‘CONUS’).

On 26 May 2020, SES officially committed to an accelerated version of the C-band clearing programme proposed in the FCC Order,
which aims at ensuring a faster deployment of 5G capabilities in the United States. On 1 June 2020, the FCC’s Wireless
Telecommunications Bureau confirmed that a sufficient number of eligible space station operators had filed similar accelerated
relocation elections, triggering the adoption of the accelerated programme pursuant to the schedule set out below:

e Phase I: By 5 December 2021, SES will relocate all of its commercial services out of the 3,700-3,820 MHz band over the CONUS.
This will require making equipment changes on all associated incumbent earth stations located in 46 of the top 50 Partial Economic
Areas, supplementing telemetry, tracking and control (“TT&C”) operations to enhance two earth stations located in Hawley
(Pennsylvania, U.S.A.) and Brewster (Washington, U.S.A.) and beginning the consolidation of gateway services currently located
at other SES locations, as well as any customer or user gateway services, to Hawley and / or Brewster;

e Phase Il: By 5 December 2023, SES will relocate all its CONUS commercial services out of the full 3,700-4,000 MHz band, making
necessary equipment changes on all associated incumbent earth stations located in all CONUS Partial Economic Areas,
completing its gateway consolidation to the Hawley and Brewster sites and completing TT&C upgrades across SES teleports.

SES filed its Phase | Certification of Accelerated Relocation with the FCC on 1 October 2021 and an amended certificate on
26 October 2021. The FCC validated the amended certificate on 24 November 2021, at which time the EUR 839 million
(USD 977 million) of Accelerated Relocation Payments were fully earned. SES received the Accelerated Relocation Payments on
29 December 2021 and 3 January 2022.
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The Group will receive a further USD 2,991 million (EUR 2,641 million) for Phase Il if it successfully completes the clearing of the
spectrum as described above. In the case of delays in achieving the Phase Il spectrum clearing milestone, then the Accelerated
Relocation Payments will decrease on a sliding scale to zero over the six-month period beginning 5 December 2023.

The FCC held a public auction for the repurposed spectrum which began on 8 December 2020 with the winning bidders being
announced on 24 February 2021.

To facilitate the clearing of the spectrum SES is procuring six C-band satellites and launch vehicles and is consolidating and upgrading
its ground facilities to comply with the provisions of the FCC Order. In parallel, customers and affiliated earth stations are being
equipped with special filters, new antennae and/or other technology capabilities so that they can be migrated to work with services
operating in the remaining 200 MHz of spectrum (between 4,000 MHz and 4,200 MHz) available to satellite operators.

The SES Board of Directors approved an investment envelope of EUR 1.4 billion (USD 1.6 billion) for the implementation of the
accelerated clearing programme including the procurement and launch of the new satellites and other equipment and services
described above. SES expects these spectrum clearing costs to be reimbursed by the Clearinghouse which is administering the
transition and related payments with FCC oversight.

The C-band spectrum clearing operational activities are headed by a member of the Group’s Senior Leadership Team supported by
a team of dedicated functional managers and full-time and part-time resources. The financial impact of these operations is monitored
as part of the ongoing financial reporting to the Group’s management and Board.

The C-band repurposing project is not the result of a contract with a customer and therefore proceeds from the contract are not
accounted for as revenue under IFRS 15 — ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’, but rather as C-band repurposing income. The
FCC is a U.S. governmental agency that developed the rules of the auction, including requiring the Group to clear the lower 300 MHz
of C-band spectrum and requiring overlay license auction winners to reimburse the Group for reasonable relocation costs and pay
the Group accelerated relocation payments if earned in accordance with the FCC Order. In consideration of the substance of the
FCC'’s rulemaking, the Group believes the payments the FCC requires auction winners to make to the Group are akin to a government
grant. Accordingly, the Group is applying the requirements of IAS 20 (‘Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance’) to account for the C-band repurposing income related to reimbursements of reasonable relocation costs
and accelerated relocation payments.

For capitalised costs related to the procurement of the C-band satellites, launches, and upgraded ground facilities, the Group records
credits to the recorded book values of the related asset when the costs have been incurred and the Group has obtained reasonable
assurance that the costs will be reimbursed and that it will comply with the requirements attached to the reimbursement. The costs
and expected reimbursements recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position under “Assets in the course of construction”
(Note 13) are presented in the table below:

Space Ground
In millions of euros segment segment Total
Cost as at 1 January 2021 316 8 324
Additions 309 28 337
Impact of currency translation 43 1 44
Cost as at 31 December 2021 668 37 705
Expected reimbursements as at 1 January 2021 (11) - (11)
Additions (642) (36) (678)
Impact of currency translation (15) 1) (16)
Expected reimbursements as at 31 December 2021 (668) (37) (705)

Net balance as at 31 December 2021 - - R

In 2021 the Group expended EUR 337 million of capital expenditures which have been fully offset by expected reimbursements as
per the above. Additionally, as per Note 13, the Group reclassified EUR 313 million of assets under construction to other receivables
due to the expected reimbursements.

The Group records operating expenses as incurred for both equipment transferred to customers and affiliated earth stations to
facilitate their migration to the upper 200 MHz of the C-band and other associated spectrum clearing costs. The Group records
C-band repurposing reimbursement income related to these expenses when the expenses have been incurred and the Group has
obtained reasonable assurance that the costs will be reimbursed and that it will comply with the requirements attached to the
reimbursement.
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In both cases, the Group believes it obtains such reasonable assurance when either the Clearinghouse validates the costs as being
reimbursable or the costs fall within cost ranges for the applicable costs as published by the FCC in a cost catalogue.

In 2021 the Group recorded C-band repurposing income of EUR 901 million (2020: EUR 10 million) including EUR 839 million of
accelerated relocation payments recognised pursuant to the FCC’s confirmation of Phase 1 completion. C-band-related expenses of
EUR 122 million (2020: EUR 43 million) represent cost of sales of EUR 51 million (2020: EUR 12 million), accumulated staff costs of
EUR 36 million (2020: EUR 15 million) and other operating expenses (including travel and consulting charges) of EUR 35 million
(2020: EUR 16 million).

As at 31 December 2021, in connection with the accelerated relocation payments, operating expenses, and capital expenditures
above, the Group has other receivables of EUR 1,273 million (2020: EUR 21 million) related to the C-band repurposing project
(see Note 16).

Once the accelerated clearing programme had been confirmed, the Group began the amortisation of the remaining balance of
deferred charges in connection with the C-band repurposing of EUR 10 million (31 December 2020: EUR 14 million). These deferred
charges, which are presented under ‘Prepayments’ in the Statement of Financial Position are to be amortised on a straight-line basis
through to the completion of Phase Il in December 2023.

SES has entered into procurement agreements with three satellite manufacturers to acquire the six satellites needed to facilitate the
repurposing of the C-band spectrum representing an aggregate commitment of EUR 755 million, out of which EUR 655 million
(2020: EUR 313 million) is presented under non-current ‘Fixed assets suppliers’ in the consolidated statement of financial position
(refer to Note 27 as well).

SES’s other commitments for C-band repurposing expenditures represent EUR 8 million (2020: EUR 52 million).

Note 34 - Post-Balance Sheet events

Management notes the recent developments in the Ukraine, and the sanctions being imposed on Russia by many countries as a result.
Given the Group’s limited direct activities in the region, management’s view is that these developments and sanctions are unlikely to
have a significant direct adverse impact on the financial results of the Group going forward. Nonetheless, since the situation continues
to evolve it remains difficult at this stage to estimate all the direct and indirect impacts which may arise from these emerging
developments. Management continues to monitor the developments closely and to take all necessary actions.

There have been no other material events occurring between the reporting date and the date when the consolidated financial
statements were authorised by the Board of Directors.

Note 35 - Alternative performance measures

SES regularly uses alternative performance measures to present the performance of the Group.

These measures may not be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other companies and are not measurements under

IFRS or any other body of generally accepted accounting principles, and thus should not be considered substitutes for the information

contained in the Group’s financial statements.

1) Net debt
Net debt is defined as current and non-current borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, all as disclosed on the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group believes that net debt is relevant to investors, since it gives an indication of the absolute
level of non-equity funding of the business. This can be compared to the income and cash flows generated by the business, and

available undrawn facilities.

The following table reconciles net debt to the relevant balance sheet line items:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Borrowings - non-current 3,524 3,317
Borrowings - current 57 613
Borrowings, less 3,581 3,930
Cash and equivalents 1,049 1,162
Net debt 2,532 2,768
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2) EBITDA and EBITDA margin

EBITDA is defined as profit for the period before the impact of depreciation, amortisation, net financing cost and income tax.
EBITDA Margin is defined as EBITDA divided by the sum of revenue and C-band repurposing income. The Group believes that
EBITDA and EBITDA margin are useful supplemental indicators that may be used to assist in evaluating a Company’s operating
performance.

The following table reconciles EBITDA to the consolidated income statement line items from which it is derived:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Profit/(loss) before tax 397 (102)
Add: Depreciation and impairment expense 626 808
Add: Amortisation and impairment expense 768 189
Add: Net financing costs 71 184
EBITDA 1,862 1,079

The following table provides a reconciliation of EBITDA margin:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Revenue 1,782 1,876
C-band repurposing income 901 10
EBITDA 1,862 1,079
EBITDA Margin (%) 69.4% 57.2%

3) Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA margin

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as EBITDA adjusted to exclude significant special items. Significant special items exceeding the
threshold of EUR 5 million at first recognition need to be approved by management and primarily consist of restructuring charges
announced in the framework of the Group’s ‘Simplify and Amplify’ programme, and other special factors or distortions linked to
the C-band repurposing.

In millions of euros 2021 2020
EBITDA 1,862 1,079
Deduct: C-band repurposing income (Note 33) (901) (20)
Add: C-band repurposing expenses (Note 33) 122 43
Add: Restructuring expenses (Note 24) 8 40
Adjusted EBITDA 1,091 1,152

Adjusted EBITDA Margin is defined as Adjusted EBITDA divided by revenue. The following table provides a reconciliation of the
Adjusted EBITDA Margin:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Revenue 1,782 1,876
Adjusted EBITDA 1,091 1,152
Adjusted EBITDA Margin (%) 61.2% 61.4%

4) Operating profit and operating profit margin

Operating profit is defined as profit for the year before the impact of net financing charges, income tax, the Group’s share of the
results of associates and includes any extraordinary line item between revenue and profit before tax in the Group’s consolidated
income statement. The Group uses operating profit to monitor its financial return after both operating expenses and a charge
representing the cost of usage of both its property, plant and equipment and definite-life intangible assets.

The following table reconciles operating profit to the income statement line items from which it is derived:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Profit/(loss) before tax 397 (102)
Add: Net financing costs 71 184
Operating profit 468 82
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5)

6)

7

Operating profit margin is defined as operating profit as a percentage of revenue. SES believes that operating profit margin is a
useful measure to demonstrate the proportion of revenue that has been realised as operating profit, and therefore an indicator of
profitability.

The following table provides a reconciliation of the operating profit margin:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Revenue 1,782 1,876
Operating profit 468 82
Operating profit margin 26.3% 4.4%

Adjusted Net Debt

Adjusted Net Debt is defined as current and non-current borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, all as disclosed on the
consolidated financial position and also includes 50% of the Group’s EUR 1.3 billion of the perpetual bonds (consistent with rating
agencies’ methodology). The Group believes that Adjusted Net Debt is relevant to investors, since it gives an indication of the
absolute level of non-equity funding of the business. This can be compared to the income and cash flows generated by the
business, and available undrawn facilities.

The following table reconciles Adjusted Net Debt to the relevant line items on the statement of financial position from which it is
derived:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Borrowings — non-current 3,524 3,317
Borrowings — current 57 613
Total borrowings 3,581 3,930
50% of the Group’s EUR 1.2 billion (2020: EUR 1.3 billion) of perpetual

bonds 588 650
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 1,049 1,162
Adjusted Net Debt 3,120 3,418

Adjusted Net Debt to Adjusted EBITDA ratio

The Adjusted Net Debt to Adjusted EBITDA ratio is defined as Adjusted Net Debt divided by Adjusted EBITDA. The Group believes
that the Adjusted Net Debt to Adjusted EBITDA ratio is a useful measure to demonstrate to investors its ability to generate the
recurring income needed to be able to settle its loans and borrowings as they fall due.

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Adjusted Net Debt 3,120 3,418
Adjusted EBITDA 1,091 1,152
Adjusted Net debt to Adjusted EBITDA ratio 2.86 times 2.97 times

Adjusted Net Profit and Adjusted Earnings per Share

Adjusted Net Profit is defined as profit or loss of the period attributable to shareholders of the group adjusted to exclude the
after-tax impact of significant special items. Significant special items exceeding the threshold of EUR 5 million on first recognition,
need to be approved by management and primarily consist of restructuring charges announced in the framework of the Group’s
‘Simplify and Amplify’ programme, and other special factors or distortions linked to the C-band repurposing, as well as the
impairment expenses, including the tax impact of impairment charges on shareholdings arising at SES S.A. or at the subsidiary
level.
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The tax rate applied to the pre-tax impact of the C-band operating expenses is the US tax rate and the tax rate applied to the
restructuring expenses and impairment expenses represents the computed weighted average tax rate of the jurisdictions where
the expenses occurred:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Profit/(loss) of the group attributable to shareholders of the parent 453 (86)
C-band net of income / operating expenses (779) 33
Restructuring expenses 8 40
Impairment expenses 724 277
(Less) / Add: Total significant special items (47) 350
Tax on C-band operating expenses (net of income), at 21% 164 @)
Tax on restructuring expenses, at 24% (2020: 22%) 2 9)
Tax on impairment expenses, at 1.8% (2020: 14.4%) (13) (40)
Add / (Less): Tax on significant special items 149 (56)

Less: Tax benefit in respect of impairment expenses on the carrying value of
subsidiary investments and other assets eliminated at consolidation level (232) 17)

Adjusted Net Profit 323 191

Adjusted Earnings per Share is the reported earnings share adjusted for the after-tax impact of significant special items as
described above. For the year 2021, Adjusted Earnings per Share of EUR 0.63 per Class A share (2020: EUR 0.31), and
EUR 0.25 per Class B share (2020: EUR 0.13) have been calculated on the following basis:

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Adjusted Net Profit 323 191
Assumed coupon on perpetual bond (net of tax) (41) (49)
Total 282 142

The weighted average number of shares, net of own shares held, for calculating Adjusted Earnings per Share — unchanged from
the numbers of shares applied in the calculation of basic earnings per share:

2021 2020
Class A shares (in million) 369.7 378.4
Class B shares (in million) 189.2 191.7
Total 558.9 570.1
Adjusted Earnings per share 2021 2020
Class A shares 0.63 0.31
Class B shares 0.25 0.13

Free cash flow before dividend and treasury activities

Free cash flow before financing activities is defined as net cash generated by operating activities, adjusted for the net cash
absorbed by investing activities. In addition, free cash flow before dividend and treasury activities considers the effect of the
coupon paid on perpetual bond, interest paid on borrowings and lease payments on the computed free cash flow before financing
activities. The Group believes that the free cash flow before dividend and treasury activities is relevant to the investors, since it
gives an indication of the Group’s ability to generate cash after payment taxes and other committed financing charges.

In millions of euros 2021 2020
Net cash generated by operating activities 1,294 1,049
Net cash absorbed by investing activities (283) (217)
Free cash flow before financing activities 1,011 832
Interest paid on borrowings (121) (152)
Lease payments (14) (15)
Free cash flow before equity distributions and treasury activities 876 665
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Note 36 - Consolidated subsidiaries, associates

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Group’s subsidiaries and associates listed below:

Economic Economic Method of Method of
interest (%) interest (%) consolidation consolidation
2021 2020 2021 2020
SES ASTRA S.A., Luxembourg 100 100 Full Full
SES Global-Americas Inc., U.S.A. 100 100 Full Full
SES Global Americas Holdings General Partnership, U.S.A. 100 100 Full Full
SES Participations S.A., Luxembourg 100 100 Full Full
SES Finance S.ar.l., Luxembourg 100 100 Full Full
SES Holdings (Netherlands) B.V., Netherlands 100 100 Full Full
SES Astra Services Europe S.ar.l., Luxembourg® 100 100 Full Full
SES Latin America S.a r.l., Luxembourg® 100 100 Full Full
SES Belgium S.p.r.l, Belgium? - 100 - Full
SES Insurance International (Luxembourg) S.A., Luxembourg 100 100 Full Full
SES Insurance International Re (Luxembourg) S.A., Luxembourg 100 100 Full Full
SES Networks Lux S.a r.l., Luxembourg 100 100 Full Full
Ciel Satellite Holdings Inc., Canada?® - 100 - Full
Ciel Satellite Limited Partnership, Canada?® - 100 - Full
Northern Americas Satellite Ventures, Inc., Canada 100 100 Full Full
SES TechCom S.A., Luxembourg 100 100 Full Full
Redu Operations Services S.A., Belgium 48 48 Equity Equity
Redu Space Services S.A., Belgium 52 52 Full Full
HD Plus GmbH, Germany 100 100 Full Full
SES Germany GmbH, Germany 100 100 Full Full
SES Media Solutions GmbH, Germany 100 100 Full Full
MX1 (Thailand) Ltd, Thailand? 100 100 Full Full
PT MX1 Smartcast Indonesia, Indonesia 100 100 Full Full
ASTRA Deutschland GmbH, Germany 100 100 Full Full
SES ASTRA lberica S.A., Spain® - 100 - Full
ASTRA France S.A., France 100 100 Full Full
ASTRA (GB) Limited, United Kingdom 100 100 Full Full
ASTRA CEE Sp. z 0.0, Poland? 100 100 Full Full
SES ASTRA (Romania) S.r.l.,, Romania 100 100 Full Full
SES HD Plus Ghana Limited Company), Ghana 84.7 84.7 Full Full
SES ENGINEERING (Luxembourg) S.ar.l., Luxembourg 100 100 Full Full
SES ASTRA AB, Sweden 100 100 Full Full
Sirius Satellite Services SIA, Latvia 100 100 Full Full
SES SIRIUS Ukraina, Ukraine 100 100 Full Full
SES-10 S.ar.l., Luxembourg 100 100 Full Full
LuxGovSat S.A., Luxembourg 50 50 Full Full
SES Satellite Leasing Ltd, Isle of Man? 100 100 Full Full
Al Maisan Satellite Communications Company LLC, UAE 35 35 Full Full
Satellites Ventures (Bermuda) Ltd, Bermuda 50 50 Full Full
SES ASTRA Africa Proprietary Limited, South Africa 100 100 Full Full
SES AMERICOM Inc., U.S.A. 100 100 Full Full
SES Telecomunicacdes do Brasil Ltda., Brazil 100 100 Full Full
SES Government Solutions, Inc., U.S.A. 100 100 Full Full
Sistemas Satelitales de Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V., Mexico 100 100 Full Full
SES Telecommunicaciones de Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V., Mexico 100 100 Full Full
SES Satellites International, LLC, U.S.A. 100 100 Full Full
SES Satellites (Gibraltar) Ltd., Gibraltar 100 100 Full Full
SES AMERICOM (Asia 1A) LLC, U.S.A. 100 100 Full Full
AMERICOM Asia Pacific LLC, U.S.A. 100 100 Full Full
QuetzSat Directo S. de R.L. de C.V., Mexico 100 100 Full Full
SES Engineering (US) Inc., U.S.A. 100 100 Full Full
AOS Inc., U.S.A.2 - 100 - Full
QuetzSat S. de R.L. de C.V., Mexico 100 100 Full Full
Satelites Globales S. de R.L. de C.V., Mexico 100 100 Full Full
SES Satelites Directo Ltda, Brazil 100 100 Full Full
SES DTH do Brasil Ltda, Brazil 100 100 Full Full
SES Satélites Ibérica, S.L. (formerly SES Global South America Holding, 100 100 Full Full
S.L.), Spain
New Skies Satellites B.V., The Netherlands 100 100 Full Full
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SES Engineering (Netherlands) B.V., The Netherlands 100 100 Full Full
New Skies Satellites, LLC, U.S.A.* 100 100 Full Full
New Skies Satellites Mar B.V., The Netherlands 100 100 Full Full
New Skies Satellites Ltda, Brazil 100 100 Full Full
SES New Skies Marketing B.V., The Netherlands 100 100 Full Full
New Skies Satellites Argentina B.V., The Netherlands 100 100 Full Full
New Skies Satellites Australia Pty Ltd, Australia 100 100 Full Full
New Skies Satellites Licensee B.V., The Netherlands 100 100 Full Full
SES Asia S.ar.l., Luxembourg® 100 100 Full Full
SES Finance Services AG, Switzerland 100 100 Full Full
SES World Skies Singapore Pte Ltd, Singapore 100 100 Full Full
0O3b Networks Limited, Jersey, Channel Islands 100 100 Full Full
0O3b Limited, Jersey, Channel Islands 100 100 Full Full
0O3b Africa Limited, Mauritius? 100 100 Full Full
0O3b Sales B.V., The Netherlands 100 100 Full Full
0O3b Networks USA LLC, U.S.A. 100 100 Full Full
03b Teleport Services (Australia) Pty Limited, Australia 100 100 Full Full
0O3b Teleport Servicos (Brasil) Ltda, Brasil 100 100 Full Full
0O3b Networks (Brasil) Ltda, Brasil 100 100 Full Full
0O3b Services (Portugal) Ltda, Portugal 100 100 Full Full
0O3b Teleport Services (Peru) SAC, Peru 100 100 Full Full
SES mPOWER S.ar.l., Luxembourg 100 100 Full Full
SES Networks Satellites S.a r.l., Luxembourg 100 100 Full Full
West Africa Platform Services Ltd, Ghana 49 49 Full Full
MX1 Ltd, Israel 100 100 Full Full
MX1LLC, US.AA 100 100 Full Full
GSN GoSat Distribution Network Ltd, Cyprus? 100 100 Full Full
EMP Media Port Ltd, Cyprus? 100 100 Full Full
SES Services Romania S.R.L., Romania 100 100 Full Full
MX1 Korea Ltd., Korea?® - 100 - Full
SES-17 S.ar.l., Luxembourg 100 100 Full Full
SES Defence UK Ltd, United Kingdom 100 100 Full Full
SES Techcom Afrigue S.A. S.U., Burkina Faso 100 100 Full Full
SES Satellite Nigeria Limited, Nigeria 100 100 Full Full
SES Networks GmbH, Germany 100 100 Full Full
SES Satellites India Private Limited, India 100 100 Full Full
SES 5G Customer Services LLC, U.S.A. 100 100 Full Full
SES US Satellite Holdings LLC, U.S.A. 100 100 Full Full
SES Telecomunicaciones de Colombia S.A.S., Colombia 100 100 Full Full
SES Telecomunicaciones de Colombia Zona Franca S.A.S., Colombia? 100 100 Full Full
SES Telecomunicaciones de Chile SpA, Chile 100 100 Full Full
SES LU Satellite Holdings S.a r.l., Luxembourg 100 100 Full Full
Luxembourg Space Sector Development General Partner S.a r.l, Luxembourg* 100 - Full -
Luxembourg Space Sector Development SCSp, Luxembourg* 50 -- Full --
SES LU US Holdings S.ar.l, Luxembourg* 100 - Full -

1. Entity created in 2021

2. Entity sold, merged, liquidated, or merger or liquidation process initiated, in 2021
3. Change in legal form of entity in 2021 from S.A. to S.ar.l.

4. Change in legal form of entity in 2021 from Inc to LLC.
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Audit report

To the Shareholders of
SES S.A.

Report on the audit of the annual accounts

Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying annual accounts give a true and fair view of the financial position of
SES S.A. (the “Company”) as at 31 December 2021, and of the results of its operations for the year then
ended in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and
presentation of the annual accounts.

Our opinion is consistent with our additional report to the Audit and Risk Committee.
What we have audited
The Company’s annual accounts comprise:

o the balance sheet as at 31 December 2021,

¢ the profit and loss account for the year then ended;

¢ the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity as at 31 December 2021; and

¢ the notes to the annual accounts, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the EU Regulation No 537/2014, the Law of 23 July 2016
on the audit profession (Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
adopted for Luxembourg by the “Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier” (CSSF). Our
responsibilities under the EU Regulation No 537/2014, the Law of 23 July 2016 and ISAs as adopted
for Luxembourg by the CSSF are further described in the “Responsibilities of the “Réviseur d’entreprises
agréé” for the audit of the annual accounts” section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants, including International Independence Standards, issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the annual accounts. We have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that we have not provided non-audit services that
are prohibited under Article 5(1) of the EU Regulation No 537/2014.

The non-audit services that we have provided to the Company and its controlled undertakings, if
applicable, for the year then ended, are disclosed in Note 19 to the annual accounts.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Société coopérative, 2 rue Gerhard Mercator, B.P. 1443, L-1014 Luxembourg
T: +352 494848 1, F : +352 494848 2900, www.pwe.lu

Cabinet de révision agréé. Expert-comptable (autorisation gouvernementale n°10028256)
R.C.S. Luxembourg B 65 477 - TVA LU25482518
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the annual accounts of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the annual accounts as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of the shares in affiliated undertakings

The Company has investments in shares in affiliated undertakings in net amount of 5,032 million EUR
(see Note 3), which includes 2,187 million EUR of value adjustments recorded during the year then
ended.

Management’s assessment of the recoverable amount of investments in subsidiaries requires significant
judgement in the determination of the level at which the investments in affiliated undertakings are tested
for impairment taking into account the substance of the business activity, interdependency of the cash
flows between the different subsidiaries and their level of integration.

Moreover, the determination of the recoverable value requires significant estimates as it relates to the
estimation of the forecasted cash flows and of the discount rates and long-term growth rates.

We focused on this area due to the inherent complexity and judgement in the estimate for the
recoverable amount of the investments in affiliated undertakings and the materiality of the balance.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
o We tested the design and implementation of relevant internal controls;

e We evaluated Management’s methodology used to estimate the recoverable amount of the
investments in affiliated undertakings. To that effect, we noted that Management has grouped certain
undertakings together for the purposes of testing them for impairment in order to appropriately reflect
the substance of the activity, interdependency of cash flows and the level of integration of their
operations;

e We evaluated, where Management planned a divestiture/restructuring at undertaking level, the
impact on the recoverable amount determined at the individual affiliated undertaking level;

¢ When Management has grouped certain undertakings together for the purposes of testing them for
impairment, we involved valuation specialists and independently recalculated the weighted average
cost of capital based on the use of market date and challenged the long-term growth rate applied
based on market data;

e We agreed the forecasted cash flows used for the determination of the recoverable value to the
2022 Business Plan as approved by the Board of Directors;

e We evaluated the forecasted revenue and costs assumptions, considering our expectations in
terms of significant developments during the forecast period (significant new contracts or loss
thereof) and corroborated these with market data in respect of demand for satellite capacity and
pricing;
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¢ We evaluated the capital expenditure assumptions, considering our expectations in terms of
significant developments during the forecast period (capital expenditure programs, replacement of
satellites) and the expected capital expenditure level in terminal period in order to maintain the
current assets base;

e We performed sensitivity analysis of the models to changes in the key assumptions;

¢ When Management has undertaken the testing for impairment at individual affiliated undertaking
level, we have obtained the related independent valuation reports and evaluated the related value
adjustment calculations where required;

¢ We considered the appropriateness of the disclosures in Note 3 to the annual accounts.

Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information stated in the management report and the Corporate Governance Statement but does not
include the annual accounts and our audit report thereon.

Our opinion on the annual accounts does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the annual accounts, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the annual accounts or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and those charged with governance for the annual
accounts

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the annual accounts in
accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and
presentation of the annual accounts, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of annual accounts that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the annual accounts, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

The Board of Directors is responsible for presenting the annual accounts in compliance with the
requirements set out in the Delegated Regulation 2019/815 on European Single Electronic Format
(“ESEF Regulation”).
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Responsibilities of the “Réviseur d’entreprises agréé” for the audit of the annual accounts

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual accounts as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audit report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the EU Regulation No 537/2014, the Law of 23 July 2016
and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these annual accounts.

As part of an audit in accordance with the EU Regulation No 537/2014, the Law of 23 July 2016 and
with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual accounts, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control;

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors;

e conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our audit report to the related disclosures in the annual accounts or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern;

e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual accounts, including the
disclosures, and whether the annual accounts represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate to them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the annual accounts of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our audit report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter.

We assess whether the annual accounts have been prepared, in all material respects, in compliance
with the requirements laid down in the ESEF Regulation.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The management report is consistent with the annual accounts and has been prepared in accordance
with applicable legal requirements.

The Corporate Governance Statement is included in the management report. The information required
by Article 68ter Paragraph (1) Letters c) and d) of the Law of 19 December 2002 on the commercial and
companies register and on the accounting records and annual accounts of undertakings, as amended,
is consistent with the annual accounts and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

We have been appointed as “Réviseur d’Entreprises Agréé” by the General Meeting of the Shareholders
on 1 April 2021 and the duration of our uninterrupted engagement, including previous renewals and
reappointments, is 9 years.

We have checked the compliance of the annual accounts of the Company as at 31 December 2021 with
relevant statutory requirements set out in the ESEF Regulation that are applicable to annual accounts.

For the Company it relates to the requirement that annual accounts are prepared in a valid XHTML
format.

In our opinion, the annual accounts of the Company as at 31 December 2021, identified as "SES 2021
Annual report”, have been prepared, in all material respects, in compliance with the requirements laid
down in the ESEF Regulation.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Société cooperative Luxembourg, 2 March 2022
Represented by

Francois Mousel



SES
Société Anonyme
Balance sheet
As at 31 December 2021

Assets
Note 2021 2020
EUR million EUR million
Fixed Assets
Intangible assets 0.4 0.7
Payments on account and intangible assets under 221 4.1 -
development
Financial assets 222,3
Shares in affiliated undertakings 3a 5,032.0 7,171.0
Loans to affiliated undertakings 3b 3,252.7 3,430.5
8,289.2 10,602.2
Current Assets
Debtors 2.2.6
Amounts owed by affiliated undertakings
becoming due and payable within one year 4a 3,416.3 1,288.4
becoming due and payable after one year 4a 287.1 773.5
Other debtors
becoming due and payable within one year 4b 16.6 1.7
Investments
Own shares 2.2.3,5 54.0 35.1
Cash at bank and cash in hand 935.1 1,020.6
4,709.1 3,119.3
Prepayments 224 35.3 45.7
Total assets 13,033.6 13,767.2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts.



SES
Société Anonyme
Balance sheet
As at 31 December 2021

Liabilities Note 2021 2020
EUR million EUR million
Capital and reserves
Subscribed capital 6 719.0 719.0
Share premium account 1,890.2 1,890.2
Reserves
Legal reserve 71.9 71.9
Reserve for own shares 54.0 35.1
Profit brought forward 2,776.8 2,471.0
Profit for the financial year (428.7) 508.8
5,083.2 5,696.0
Creditors 2.2.8
Debenture loans — Non-convertible loans 9
becoming due and payable within one year 65.9 669.3
becoming due and payable after more than one year 4,639.4 4,512.4
Amounts owed to credit institutions 9
becoming due and payable within one year 40.2 40.7
becoming due and payable after more than one year - 40.2
Trade creditors
becoming due and payable within one year 1.0 0.7
Amounts owed to affiliated undertakings 9
becoming due and payable within one year 1,626.8 1,423.5
becoming due and payable after more than one year 587.3 614.7
Other creditors
Tax authorities 10 - 0.3
Social security authorities 0.4 0.5
Other creditors 11
becoming due and payable within one year 711.8 4.8
payable after more than one year 277.6 764.1
7,950.4 8,071.2
Total liabilities (Capital, Reserves, Liabilities) 13,033.6 13,767.2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts.



SES

Société Anonyme

Profit and loss account
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Profit and loss account

Other operating income

Raw material and consumables and other external expenses
Other external expenses

Staff costs
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
relating to pensions
other social security costs
Other staff costs

Other operating expenses

Income from participating interest
derived from affiliated undertakings

Income from other investments and loans forming part of fixed
assets

derived from affiliated undertakings

Other interest receivable and similar income
derived from affiliated undertakings
other interest and similar income

Value adjustment in respect of financial assets and of
investments held as current assets

Interest payable and similar expenses
concerning affiliated undertakings

other interest and similar expenses

Tax on profit or loss
Other tax not shown under the previous items

Profit or loss for the financial year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts.

-8-

Note 2021 2020

EUR million EUR million

12 27.3 18.5

12 (28.8) (34.0)
13

(15.6) (15.2)

@.7) (1.5)

(0.6) (0.2)

(0.2) (0.2)

(3.0 (6.0)

225,14 1,896.8 959.0

15 85.0 98.9

16 a 40.5 32.3

16 b 228.6 164.0

17 (2,252.2) (240.2)

18 a (29.5) (28.5)

18b (375.0) (437.9)

(0.4) -

- (0.2)

(428.7) 508.8




SES
Société Anonyme
Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
As at 31 December 2021

Subscribed Share Legal Other Result for
capital premium reserve reserves* the year Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
EUR million million million million million million
At 1 January 2020 719.0 1,890.2 71.9 2,180.4 509.8 5,371.3
Allocation of result - - - 509.8 (509.8) -
Distribution of dividends - - - (184.1) - (184.1)
Other movements - - - - - -
Profit for the financial year - - - - 508.8 508.8
At 31 December 2020 719.0 1,890.2 71.9 2,506.1 508.8 5,696.0
At 1 January 2021 719.0 1,890.2 71.9 2,506.1 508.8 5,696.0
Allocation of result - - - 508.8 (508.8) -
Distribution of dividends - - - (184.1) - (184.1)
Profit for the financial year - - - - (428.7) (428.7)
At 31 December 2021 719.0 1,890.2 71.9 2,830.8 (428.7) 5,083.2

* Including reserves for own shares, other non-available reserves and profit brought forward.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts.



SES
Société Anonyme
Notes to the annual accounts
As at 31 December 2021

Note 1 — General Information

SES S.A. (hereafter ‘SES’ or ‘the Company’) was incorporated on 16 March 2001 as a limited
liability company (Société Anonyme) under the laws of the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg for
an unlimited period.

The registered office of the Company is established at the Chéteau de Betzdorf,
L-6815 Betzdorf, Luxembourg.

The purpose of the Company is to take generally any interest whatsoever in electronic media
and to be active, more particularly, in the communications area via satellites and to invest,
directly or indirectly, in other companies that are actively involved in the satellite
communication industry.

The accounting period of the Company is from 1 January to 31 December.

The Company has a 99.94% interest in a partnership, SES Global Americas Holdings GP,
whose accounts are integrated into those of the Company to the level of its share in the
partnership.

The Company prepares consolidated financial statements for the SES Group which are drawn up
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as endorsed by the European
Union (‘IFRS’) and are published according to the provisions of the Luxembourg law.

Article 65, Paragraph (1) 2° of the Law of 19 December 2002 on the register of commerce and
companies and the accounting and annual accounts of undertakings (the “Law”) requires the
disclosure of the amount of capital and reserves and profit and loss for the last financial year
of each affiliated undertaking. In conformity with Art.67 (3) of the Law, these details have been
omitted as the Company prepares consolidated accounts and these consolidated accounts,
and the related consolidated management report and auditors' report thereon, have been
lodged with the Luxembourg Trade Registry.

The Company’s Fiduciary Deposit Receipts (‘FDRs’) have been listed on the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange since 1998 and on Euronext Paris since 2004 under the symbol SESG. FDRs
can be traded freely and are convertible into an equal number of Class A shares at any time,
and at no cost, at the option of the holder under the conditions applicable in the Company’s
articles of association, and in accordance with the terms of the FDRs.

Note 2 — Summary of significant accounting policies and valuation rules
2.1. Basis of preparation

The annual accounts are prepared in accordance with the Luxembourg legal and regulatory
requirements under the historical cost convention relating to the preparation and presentation
of the annual accounts.

Accounting policies and valuation rules are, besides the ones laid down by the amended Law
of 19 December 2002, determined and applied by the Board of Directors.

The preparation of annual accounts requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires the Board of Directors to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a significant impact on the annual
accounts in the period in which the assumptions are changed. Management believes that the
underlying assumptions are appropriate and that the annual accounts therefore present the
financial position and results fairly.

-10 -



SES
Société Anonyme
Notes to the annual accounts (continued)
As at 31 December 2021

Note 2 — Summary of significant accounting policies and valuation rules (continued)
2.1. Basis of preparation (continued)

Management makes estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities in the next financial year(s). Estimates and judgments are regularly re-
evaluated, and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

2.2. Significant accounting policies
The main accounting policies and valuation rules applied by the Company are the following:
2.2.1. Intangible assets

Amounts related to the development of software and other related expenses, are included in
the balance sheet when incurred. Development expenditure is capitalised when its future
recoverability can be regarded as assured. The expenditure is transferred to assets in use,
and depreciation commences, when the resulting asset is put into service.

2.2.2. Financial assets
Shares in affiliated undertakings held by the Company are recorded at acquisition cost.

In the case of a permanent diminution in the value of a financial fixed asset in the opinion of
the Board of Directors, a value adjustment is made such that the investment is valued at the
lower figure. Value adjustments are not maintained if the reasons for which they were made
have ceased to apply.

In some instances, where the Board of Directors believes that it is more appropriate under the
circumstances and better reflects the substance of the activity, the interdependency of cash
flows between SES subsidiaries, and their level of integration, have been considered in
assessing the carrying value of the financial assets.

However, as set out in Note 3, where a contractual disposal of an investment included in one
of the cash-generating units triggers the recognition of a book loss then this loss is recorded
by the Company in the result of the period when the transaction was approved and the
magnitude of the loss was ascertained.

In those instances, investments in certain undertakings have been grouped together for the
purposes of testing them for impairment - similarly to cash generating units (‘CGUs’) as defined
in IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” under IFRS.

Loans to affiliated undertakings are valued at their nominal value. Value adjustments are
recorded on loans which appear to be partly or wholly irrecoverable. These value adjustments
are not maintained if the reasons for which they were made have ceased to apply.

2.2.3. Investments — own shares

Own shares are recorded at acquisition cost, including expenses incidental thereto. At the
balance sheet date, own shares are valued at the lower of acquisition cost and a valuation
calculated based on weighted average cost or market value.

A value adjustment is recorded where the market value is lower than the acquisition cost.
These value adjustments are not maintained if the reasons for which the value adjustments
were made have ceased to apply.

-11 -



SES
Société Anonyme
Notes to the annual accounts (continued)
As at 31 December 2021

Note 2 — Summary of significant accounting policies and valuation rules (continued)
2.2.4. Prepayments

Prepayments represent expenditures incurred during the financial year but relating to a
subsequent financial year.

Loan origination costs are recorded at their nominal value, and are presented as prepayments.
These costs are amortised over the remaining estimated loan periods based on the Company’s
financing strategy.

2.2.5. Dividends paid and received

Dividends are declared after the annual accounts for the year have been approved.
Accordingly, dividends payable are recorded in the subsequent year’s annual accounts.
Dividends receivable on own shares are recorded as income in the year in which the dividend
is approved.

Dividends receivable from affiliated undertakings are recorded as income in the year in which
they are approved by the subsidiary.

2.2.6. Debtors

Debtors are recorded at their nominal value. They are subject to value adjustments where their
recovery is uncertain. These value adjustments are not continued if the reasons for which they
were made have ceased to apply.

2.2.7. Foreign currency translation

The Company maintains its books and records in euro (EUR). Transactions expressed in
currencies other than the euro are translated into euros at the exchange rates effective at the
time of the transaction.

Except for fixed assets, all assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
converted at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Realised and unrealised
gains and losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Fixed assets acquired in currencies other than euro, except for the loans to affiliated
undertakings, which are classified as fixed assets, are translated into euro at the exchange
rate effective at the time of the transaction. At the balance sheet date, these assets remain
translated at historical exchange rates.

The foreign exchange result for the year has been presented on a net basis.

2.2.8. Creditors
Debenture loans and amounts owed to credit institutions are recorded at their reimbursement
value. Where the amount repayable is greater than the amount received, then the difference

is shown as an asset and is written off over the period of the debt based on a straight-line
basis over the term of the borrowing.

-12 -



SES
Société Anonyme
Notes to the annual accounts (continued)
As at 31 December 2021

Note 2 — Summary of significant accounting policies and valuation rules (continued)
2.2.9. Share-based compensation
Employees of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based compensation
payments, whereby employees render services to the Company as consideration for equity

instruments.

Four share-based payment schemes have been established by the Company and are
available to members of the Company’s staff and to employees of the SES Group:

- Equity settled plans:

e The Stock Appreciation Rights Plan (‘STAR Plan’)
e Executive Incentive Compensation Plan (‘EICP’)
e Long-Term Incentive Programme (‘LTIP’)

- Cash settled plan:
¢ Simulated Restricted Stock Units plan (‘SRSU Plan’)

A charge, representing the difference between the acquisition cost of own shares and exercise
price is recognised in the profit and loss account on the exercising of share option/shares.

The SRSU Plan was inaugurated in 2017 and is replacing prospectively the Star Plan. SRSUs
are delivered on 1 June following a three-year vesting period. Delivery occurs through a gross
cash payment in the June payroll cycle instead of in SES FDR’s.

For the cash settled plan, a charge corresponding to the number of SRSUs outstanding at the
share price on 31 December 2021 is recognised in the profit and loss account on a pro-rata
basis over the vesting period and is presented as wages and salaries in the profit and loss
account. A corresponding liability is recorded and presented in the balance sheet as other
creditors.
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Note 3

a)
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Société Anonyme
Notes to the annual accounts (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

— Financial assets

Shares in affiliated undertakings

2021 2020

EUR million EUR million
Historic cost:
As at 1 January: 7,275.7 7,761.1
Increase 97.0 -
Decrease (49.3) (485.4)
As at 31 December 7,323.4 7,275.7
Accumulated value adjustments
As at 1 January (104.7) (104.7)
Increase (2,186.7) -
As at 31 December (2,291.4) (104.7)
Net book value:
As at 1 January 7,171.0 7.656.4
As at 31 December 5,032.0 7,171.0

In 2021, the increase in historic cost represents a share premium contribution to SES Holdings
(Netherlands) B.V. in the amount of EUR 76.5 million and a contribution in kind to SES Global —
Americas, Inc. of EUR 20.5 million. The decrease represents a share premium reduction in
SES Finance S.a r.l in the amount of EUR 28.8 million and in SES Holdings (Netherlands) B.V. of
EUR 20.5 million.

In 2021, the increase in accumulated value adjustments represents an impairment of investments
in SES Global — Americas, Inc. of EUR 578.9 million, in SES Finance S.a r.l of EUR 1,502.1 million,
in SES Participations S.A. of EUR 85.5 million and in SES Astra A.B. of EUR 20.2 million.

In 2020, the decrease in historic cost represents a share premium reduction in SES Holdings
(Netherlands) B.V. in the amount of EUR 418.8 million, and a share capital reduction in SES Astra
Services Europe in the amount of EUR 66.6 million.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company held the following investments:

Net book value 2021 2020

Incorporation in: EUR million EUR million
SES Global — Americas, Inc. United States 99.94% 2,919.2 3,477.6
SES Finance S.ar.l Luxembourg 100% 12.1 1,543.0
SES Holdings (Netherlands) B.V.?! Netherlands 100% 878.6 822.6
SES Astra S.A. Luxembourg 100% 1,046.8 1,046.8
SES Participations S.A. Luxembourg 100% 21.3 106.8
SES Insurance International Re (Luxembourg) S.A. | Luxembourg 100% 90.3 90.3
SES Astra A.B. Sweden 32.34% 29.9 50.1
SES Insurance International (Luxembourg) S.A. Luxembourg 100% 15.2 15.2
SES Latin America S.A. Luxembourg 100% 18.6 18.6
Total 5,032.0 7,171.0

1

SES Holdings (Netherlands) B.V. has a 100% direct ownership of the entity New Skies Satellites B.V. and 100% indirect ownership of the entity
O3b Networks Limited. Therefore for impairment testing purposes the investment is allocated between the SES GEO and SES MEO cash
generating units.
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Note 3 — Financial assets (continued)

a) Shares in affiliated undertakings (continued)

Management identified the following CGUs for the purpose of impairment testing:
e SES GEO operations (‘SES GEOQO’) and
e SES MEO operations (‘SES MEQO").

Compared to 2020, MX1 and other service businesses (‘Services’) have been integrated within
the ‘SES GEO’ CGU since MX1 as a business has been increasingly integrated with the
Video element of the Group’s ‘SES GEO operations’ over the last two years. Entities not
directly connected to a CGU have been considered out of scope: SES Participations S.A.,
SES Insurance International Re (Luxembourg) S.A. and SES Insurance International
(Luxembourg) S.A..

The investment in SES Holdings (Netherlands) B.V., amounting to EUR 878.6 million
(2020: EUR 822.6 million), includes both SES GEO and SES MEO operations and was
considered accordingly for impairment testing purposes.

Impairment testing for SES GEO

Affiliated undertakings listed under “SES GEO” form part of the “SES GEO operations” business
of the SES Group. They are aggregated into one CGU for the purpose of testing their carrying
values for impairment, considering the interdependency of their cash flows and their level of
integration (see Note 2). Loans to and from affiliated undertakings which are part of SES GEO are
added to the carrying values of the shares in affiliated undertakings for impairment testing.

The value-in-use of this CGU is determined based on a calculation using the most recent business
plan information approved by the Board of Directors which covers a period of five years.

The Company holds a 99.94% interest in a partnership, SES Global Americas Holdings GP
("the DGP”), whose accounts are integrated into those of the Company to the level of its share
in the partnership. The DGP is the 100% owner of the Company’s interest in SES Global —
Americas, Inc.. In 2021, management decided to convert the DGP from a partnership into a
separate U.S. corporate entity (“Inc.”). This transaction will likely occur with an effective date
in H1 2022 and an independent valuation of the DGP was performed in this respect.

Based on this valuation it is expected that the conversion of the DGP, and subsequent disposal of
the Company’s interest in the new corporate vehicle to an intermediate holding company, will
result in a value adjustment on the disposal of the interest being recorded by the Company. As
this transaction had been formally approved by SES management before the year end, and a
specific permanent impairment has been identified, management has recorded a corresponding
impairment charge as at 31 December 2021.

Whilst the interest is part of the Company’s portfolio of shareholdings included in the
SES GEO CGU, SES management believes that because this loss arises from an actual share
transaction, the loss should be recorded in the books of the Company, rather than the alternative
treatment of attributing the previous carrying value of the interest to the Company’s shareholding
in the new intermediate holding company.

As such EUR 578.9 million value adjustment was recorded against the Company’s interest in
SES Global-Americas Inc.. The independent valuation included a valuation of the DGP’s 32.34%
equity interest in SES Astra A.B, resulting in an additional EUR 20.2 million value adjustment being
recorded on the Company’s interest in that affiliated undertaking.

-15 -



SES
Société Anonyme
Notes to the annual accounts (continued)
As at 31 December 2021

Note 3 — Financial assets (continued)

Also in 2021, SES Satellite Leasing Limited, a subsidiary of SES Finance S.a r.l, transfered its
business from the Isle of Man to Luxembourg. Following the transfer, SES Satellite Leasing
Limited reduced its share premium and distributed it together with the gain on the sale of its
business in form of a dividend via SES Finance S.ar.l up to the Company (see Note 14).
Following the distribution, the investment in SES Finance S.a r.I was impaired in the amount
of EUR 1,502.1 million.

Impairment testing for SES MEO operations

SES MEO operations, representing the O3b Networks business acquired in 2016, is
considered a separate CGU, as the business currently generates cash inflows that are largely
independent from SES GEO operations.

For the SES MEO CGU, the impairment test period was extended beyond the five-year
business plan period, to 2034. This extension was deemed necessary to fully capture the
contracted capital expenditure and expected growth of the business in connection with the
0O3b mMPOWER constellation, which is scheduled to launch during the period 2022 - 2024, as
well as to properly reflect the timing of replacement capital expenditure.

The pre-tax discount rate applied for 2021 was 8.13% (2020: 7.97%) and was selected to
reflect market interest rates and commercial spreads; the capital structure of businesses in the
CGU’s business sector; and the specific risk profile of the businesses concerned. The terminal
growth rate used in the valuations was 2.0% (2020: 2.0%), which reflects the most recent long-
term planning assumptions approved by the Board of Directors and can be supported by
reference to the trading performance of the companies concerned over a longer period.

b) Loans to affiliated undertakings

Loans to affiliated undertakings as of 31 December 2021 consist of:

Principal and gccrued

interest

31 December 2021

Counterparty (EUR million) | Maturity Interest rate

SES Astra S.A. 800.0 | October-30 0.64%
SES-10S.ar.l. 60.0 | Jan-32 0.41%
SES Networks Lux S.ar.l. 874.9 | October-29 3.33%
SES Networks Satellites S.ar.l. 424.6 | October-29 3.33%
New Skies Satellites B.V. 199.5 | November-23 3.14%
New Skies Satellites B.V. 367.7 | November-23 3.14%
New Skies Satellites B.V. 4.9 | December-24 3.14%
New Skies Satellites B.V. 229.4 | December-32 3.14%
SES Holdings (Netherlands) B.V. 170.3 | October-24 3.14%
SES Holdings (Netherlands) B.V. 90.5 | December-24 3.14%
SES Holdings (Netherlands) B.V. 30.9 | December-24 3.14%

Total 3,252.7

The Company does not consider any balances on its loans to affiliates as being irrecoverable as at
31 December 2021.
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Note 3 — Financial assets (continued)

b) Loans to affiliated undertakings (continued)

Loans to affiliated undertakings as of 31 December 2020 consist of:

Principal and accrued

interest

31 December 2020

Counterparty (EUR million) | Maturity Interest rate

SES Astra S.A. ! 900.0 | October-30 0.64%
HD Plus GmbH 30.5 | October-22 4.50%
SES-10S.ar.l. 66.7 | November-22 0.41%
SES Americom Inc. 268.7 | June-22 2.93%
SES Networks Lux S.ar.l. 782.1 | October-29 3.33%
SES Networks Satellites S.ar.l. 379.6 | October-29 3.33%
New Skies Satellites B.V. 179.6 | November-23 3.87%
New Skies Satellites B.V. 331.0 | November-23 3.87%
New Skies Satellites B.V. 4.6 | December-24 3.87%
New Skies Satellites B.V. 214.5 | December-24 3.87%
SES Holdings (Netherlands) B.V. 156.3 | October-24 3.87%
SES Holdings (Netherlands) B.V. 84.4 | December-24 3.87%
SES Holdings (Netherlands) B.V. 28.6 | December-32 3.87%
SES DTH do Brasil Ltda 1.3 | May-23 5.77%
SES DTH do Brasil Ltda 0.3 | May-23 4.38%
SES DTH do Brasil Ltda 0.3 | May-22 4.10%
SES DTH do Brasil Ltda 0.6 | June-22 3.97%
SES DTH do Brasil Ltda 0.5 | September-22 4.23%
SES DTH do Brasil Ltda 0.3 | June-23 5.01%
SES DTH do Brasil Ltda 0.3 | August-23 5.32%
SES DTH do Brasil Ltda 0.3 | November-23 5.48%

Total 3,430.5

1 In the framework of a corporate restructuring exercise, ten Luxembourg satellite companies were merged into SES Astra S.A. on
1 October 2020. All loans between those satellite entities and the Company were settled and replaced on 1 October 2020 by a new loan
between the Company and SES Astra S.A., with a principal amount of EUR 1,000 million.
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Note 4 — Debtors

a) Amounts owed by affiliated undertakings

The SES Group operates a centralised treasury function at the level of the Company, including
a cash-pooling mechanism, which manages the Group’s liquidity and optimises its funding costs.

Amounts owed by affiliated undertakings as at 31 December 2021 consist of:

2021 2020

EUR million EUR million
Becoming due and payable within one year
Intercompany current accounts 2,381.2 1,153.5
Forward Sale Agreement with SES mPower S.ar.l. 704.2
Short term loan to Luxembourg satellite companies 6.7 6.7
Short term loan to SES Astra S.A. 101.5 101.7
Short term loan to SES Americom 262.3 -
Short term loan to MX1 Ltd - 4.3
Short term loan to HD Plus GmbH 30.2 30.0
Short term loan to SES Media Solutions GmbH 210.0 210.0
Value adjustments (279.8) (217.8)
Total 3,416.3 1,288.4
Becoming due and payable after one year
Forward Sale Agreement with SES mPower S.ar.l. 277.6 764.1
Long term advance to SES DTH do Brasil Ltda 9.5 9.4
Total 287.1 773.5

Intercompany current accounts represent short-term advances bearing interest at market
rates.

The Company performed an analysis of the amounts owed by affiliated undertakings and no
longer considers the following balances to be recoverable:

- Intercompany current account with SES ASTRA Services Europe of EUR 4.3 million
(2020: EUR 6.0 million);

- Intercompany current account with MX1 Limited of EUR 40.7 million (2020: EUR 28.6 million);

- Short-term loan to SES Media Solutions GmbH of EUR 210.0 million (2020: EUR 183.2
million) and intercompany current account with SES Media Solutions GmbH in the amount
of EUR 24.8 million (2020: EUR nil).

As at 31 December 2021 the Company recorded an overall value adjustment of
EUR 279.8 million (2020: EUR 217.8 million) in this respect (see also Note 17).

In 2018, SES entered into a forward sale agreement with SES mPower S.ar.l. (see Note 11)
in connection with the fleet of seven mPower satellites currently under construction, divided
into 2 sub-blocks (1A of four satellites and 1B three satellites). In August 2020 an option to
procure four additional satellites divided into 2 sub-blocks (2A and 2B, each of two satellites)
was exercised.

As at 31 December 2021, SES had a receivable from SES mPower S.ar.l. of
USD 1,112.0 million (EUR 981.8 million) in the framework of this agreement (divided by
Block 1A and 1B for USD 797.6 million (EUR 704.2 million) and Block 2A and 2B for
USD 314.4 million (EUR 277.6 million).
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Note 4 — Debtors (continued)
b) Other debtors

Other debtors as at 31 December 2021 consist of:

2021 2020
EUR million EUR million
Becoming due and payable within one year
Trade debtors 3.1 1.7
Other receivable related to VAT 4.2
Tax Authorities (see Note 10) 9.3
Total 16.6 1.7

Note 5 — Investments — own shares

Own shares refer to the Company’s own Fiduciary Deposit Receipts. All FDRs in respect of
Class A shares owned by the Company are for use in connection with the share-based
compensation plans for executives and staff of the SES Group. FDRs are valued at the lower of
the weighted average cost and the market price.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company owned FDRs 7,748,429 (2020: 4,559,818) representing
a carrying value of EUR 54.0 million (2020: EUR 35.1 million).

Note 6 — Subscribed capital

SES has a subscribed capital of EUR 719.0 million (2020: EUR 719.0 million), represented by
383,457,600 Class A shares (2020: 383,457,600) and 191,728,800 Class B shares
(2020: 191,728,800) with no par value. Although they constitute separate classes of shares,
Class A and Class B shares have the same rights except that Class B shares, which are held
by the State of Luxembourg and by two entities wholly-owned by the State of Luxembourg,
entitle their holders to only 40% of the dividend, or in case the Company is dissolved, to 40% of
the net liquidation proceeds paid to shareholders of Class A. Class B shares are not freely
traded. Each share, whether of Class A or Class B, is entitled to one vote.

The movement between the opening and closing number of shares issued per class of share can
be summarised as follows:

Class A shares  Class B shares Total shares
As at 1 January 2021 383,457,600 191,728,800 575,186,400
Shares issued during the year - - -
As at 31 December 2021 383,457,600 191,728,800 575,186,400

Class A shares  Class B shares Total shares
As at 1 January 2020 383,457,600 191,728,800 575,186,400
Shares issued during the year - - -
As at 31 December 2020 383,457,600 191,728,800 575,186,400

Note 7 — Legal reserve
In accordance with Luxembourg legal requirements, a minimum of 5% of the annual net profit is

transferred to a legal reserve. This requirement is satisfied when the reserve reaches 10% of the
issued share capital. This reserve may not be distributed.
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Note 8 — Reserve for own shares

In accordance with the Law, the Company has created a non-distributable “reserve for own shares’

for an amount of EUR 54.0 million (2020: EUR 35.1 million), corresponding to the balance of the

own shares held as of year end.

Acquisition of treasury shares

SES has historically, in agreement with its shareholders, purchased FDRs in connection with

executives’ and employees’ share-based payments plans, as well as for cancellation.

Note 9 — Creditors

a) Debenture loans - Non convertible loans

The maturity profile of notes and bonds is as follows as at 31 December 2021.

2021
Creditors - Financial liabilities Interest rate Maturity EUR million
a) Debenture loans - Non convertible loans
becoming due and payable within one year 65.9
Non-convertible bonds due >1 Y: Accrued interest 65.9
becoming due and payable between 2 and 5 years 1,712.2
144A Bond USD 750.0 million (2023) 3.60% April-23 662.2
German Bond issue of EUR 150.0 million (2024) Floating June-24 150.0
German Bond issue of EUR 250.0 million (2025) 1.71% December-25 250.0
EUR 650 million Eurobond (2026) 1.625% March-26 650.0
becoming due and payable after 5 years 2,927.2
EUR 140.0 million Private Placement (2027) 4.00% May-27 140.0
144A Bond USD 250.0 million (2043) 5.30% April-43 220.7
144A Bond USD 500.0 million (2044) 5.30% March-44 441.5
German Bond issue of EUR 50.0 million (2032) 4.00% November-32 50.0
EUR 550 million deeply subordinated fixed rate resettable securities 5.625% N/A 550.0
EUR 625 million deeply subordinated fixed rate resettable securities 2.875% N/A™ 625.0
EUR 500 million Eurobond (2027) 0.875% November-27 500.0
EUR 400 million Eurobond (2028) 2.00% July-28 400.0

* First reset date January — 24
** First reset date August — 26
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Note 9 — Creditors (continued)

a) Debenture loans - Non convertible loans (continued)

The maturity profile of notes and bonds is as follows as at 31 December 2020.

2020
Creditors - Financial liabilities Interest rate Maturity EUR million
a) Debenture loans - Non convertible loans
becoming due and payable within one year 669.3
EUR 650 million Eurobond (2021) 4.75% March-21 556.0
Non-convertible bonds due >1 Y: Accrued interest 113.3
becoming due and payable between 3 and 5 years 1,011.2
144A Bond USD 750.0 million (2023) 3.60% April-23 611.2
German Bond issue of EUR 150.0 million (2024) Floating June-24 150.0
German Bond issue of EUR 250.0 million (2025) 1.71% December-25 250.0
becoming due and payable after 5 years 3,501.2
EUR 140.0 million Private Placement (2027) 4.00% May-27 140.0
144A Bond USD 250.0 million (2043) 5.30% April-43 203.7
144A Bond USD 500.0 million (2044) 5.30% March-44 407.5
German Bond issue of EUR 50.0 million (2032) 4.00% November-32 50.0
EUR 750 million deeply subordinated fixed rate resettable securities 4.625% N/A” 750.0
EUR 550 million deeply subordinated fixed rate resettable securities 5.625% N/A™ 550.0
EUR 500 million Eurobond (2026) 1.625% March-26 500.0
EUR 500 million Eurobond (2027) 0.875% November-27 500.0
EUR 400 million Eurobond (2028) 2.00% July-2028 400.0

* First reset date January - 22
** First reset date January - 24

European Medium-Term Note Programme (‘EMTN Programme’)

SES has an EMTN Programme enabling SES, or SES Global Americas Holdings GP, to issue
as and when required notes up to a maximum aggregate amount of EUR 4,000 million. As at
31 December 2021, SES had issued 1,690 EUR million (2020: EUR 2,096 million) under the
EMTN Programme with maturities ranging from 2022 to 2028.
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Note 9 — Creditors (continued)

a) Debenture loans - Non convertible loans (continued)

EUR 650 million Eurobond (2021)
In 2021 SES fully repaid a EUR 650 million bond under the Company’s EMTN Programme.
EUR 750.0 million Deeply Subordinated Fixed Rate Resettable Securities (2022)

On 10 June 2016, SES issued EUR 750.0 million Deeply Subordinated Fixed Rate Resettable
Securities (‘perpetual bond’) at a coupon of 4.625% to the first call date, a price of 99.666%
and a yield of 4.7%. SES is entitled to call the securities on 2 January 2022 and on subsequent
coupon payment dates.

On 18 May 2021, SES announced a capped tender offer for its outstanding EUR 750 million
4.625% perpetual bond at a fixed purchase yield of -0.10% to refinance the existing perpetual
bond callable in January 2022 in advance of the first call date. The tender offer was accepted
by the required number of bondholders such that the Company was able to repurchase 84.5%
of the existing bonds on 28th May at a price representing 102.838% of nominal value, and the
remaining 15.5% at par, with a settlement date of 30 June 2021.

144A Bond USD 750 million (2023)

In 2013 SES completed a 144A offering in the US market issuing USD 750 million
10-year bond with a coupon of 3.60% and a final maturity date on 4 April 2023.

EUR 650 million Eurobond (2026)

In 2018, SES issued a EUR 500 million 8-year bond under the Company’s EMTN Programme.
On the 22 June 2021 SES announced the successful lunch and pricing of a tap of its 1.625%
Notes in which it has agreed to sell incremental senior unsecured fixed rate notes for a total
amount of EUR 150 million. The new notes were priced at 106.665% of their nominal value.
The bond bears interest at a fixed rate of 1.625% and has a final maturity date on
22 March 2026.

EUR 500 million Eurobond (2027)

On 4 November 2019, SES issued a EUR 500 million bond under the Company’s EMTN
Programme. The bond has an 8-year maturity and bears interest at a fixed rate of 0.875% and
has a final maturity date on 4 November 2027.

EUR 550.0 million Deeply Subordinated Fixed Rate Resettable Securities (2024)

In November 2016, SES issued a second perpetual bond of EUR 550.0 million at a coupon of

5.625% to the first call date, a price of 99.304% and a yield of 5.75%. SES is entitled to call
the second perpetual bond on 29 January 2024 and on subsequent coupon payment dates.
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Note 9 — Creditors (continued)

a) Debenture loans - Non convertible loans (continued)

EUR 140 million Private Placement (2027)

In 2012, SES issued three individual tranches of a total EUR 140 million Private Placement
under the Company’s EMTN Programme with ING Bank N.V.. The Private Placement has a
15-year maturity, beginning 31 May 2012, and bears interest at a fixed rate of 4.00%.

EUR 400 million Eurobond (2028)

On 2 July 2020, SES issued a EUR 400 million bond under the Company’s EMTN Programme.
The bond has an 8-year maturity and bears interest at a fixed rate of 2.00% and has a final
maturity date on 2 July 2028.

German bond issue of EUR 50 million (2032)

In 2012, the Group signed an agreement to issue EUR 50 million in the German bond
(‘Schuldschein’) market. The German bond bears a fixed interest rate of 4.00% and matures
on 12 November 2032.

144A Bond USD 250 million (2043)

In 2013, SES completed a 144A offering in the US market issuing USD 250 million
30-year bond with a coupon of 5.30% and a final maturity date on 4 April 2043.

144A Bond USD 500 million (2044)

In 2014, SES completed a 144A offering in the US market issuing USD 500 million
30-year bond with a coupon of 5.30% and a final maturity date of 25 March 2044.

German bond issue of EUR 400 million (2024/2025)

In 2018, the Group closed the issuance of an aggregated amount of EUR 400 million in the
German bond (‘Schuldschein’) market. The transaction consists of two individual tranches - a
EUR 150 million tranche with a floating interest rate of a six-month EURIBOR plus a margin
of 0.8% and a final maturity date on 18 June 2024 as well as a EUR 250 million tranche with
a fixed interest rate of 1.71% and a final maturity date on 18 December 2025.
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Note 9 — Creditors (continued)

b) Amounts owed to credit institutions

Amounts owed to credit institutions as of 31 December 2021 were:

Creditors - Financial liabilities 2021
Interest rate Maturity EUR million
b) amounts owed to credit institutions
becoming due and payable within one year 40.2
EURIBOR various in
COFACE facility 40.2
+1.70% 2022
Amounts owed to credit institutions as of 31 December 2020 were:
2020
Interest rate Maturity EUR million
b) amounts owed to credit institutions
becoming due and payable within one year 40.7
EURIBOR various in
COFACE facility 40.7
+1.70% 2020
becoming due and payable after more than one year 40.2
EURIBOR various from
COFACE facility 40.2
+1.70% 2021 to 2022

Syndicated loan 2019

The syndicated loan facility contracted in 2019 is being provided by 19 banks and has been
structured as a 5-year multi-currency revolving credit facility. In 2021 the Company extended
the Termination date from 26 June 2025 to 26 June 2026. The facility is for EUR 1,200.0 million
and the interest payable is linked to a ratings grid. At the current SES credit rating of BBB- /
BaaZ2, the interest rate is 45 basis points over EURIBOR/LIBOR. As at 31 December 2021 and
2020, no amount has been drawn under this facility.

EUR 522.9 million COFACE facility

In 2009 SES signed a financing agreement with Compagnie Frangaise d’Assurance pour le
Commerce Extérieur (‘Coface’) in respect of the investment in four geostationary satellites.
The facility is divided into five loans. The drawings under the facility were based on invoices
from the supplier of the satellites. The first drawing was done on 23 April 2010 and all loan
tranches became fully drawn in November 2014.

The Coface tranches outstanding as at 31 December 2021 have maturity dates as follows:
Coface A on 1 August 2022; Coface C and D on 3 October 2022.

The entire facility bears interest at a floating rate of six-month EURIBOR plus a margin

of 1.7%. During 2021, SES repaid floating rate obligations totalling EUR 40.7 million (2020:
EUR 41.2 million) related to various Coface instalments.
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Note 9 — Creditors (continued)

b) Amounts owed to credit institutions (continued)

European commercial paper programme

In 2012 SES incepted a joint EUR 1,000.0 million guaranteed European commercial paper
programme of SES S.A. and SES Global Americas Holdings GP. Issuances under the
programme represent senior unsecured obligations of the issuer and are guaranteed by the
non-issuing entity. The programme is rated by Moody’s Investors Services and is compliant with
the standards set out in the STEP Market Convention. On 9 July 2021, this programme was
updated and extended. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, no borrowings were outstanding
under this programme.

Negotiable European Commercial Paper “NEU CP” (previous French Commercial paper
programme)

In 2005 SES put in place a EUR 500.0 million ‘NEU CP’ programme in accordance with articles
L.213-1 to L213-4 of the French Monetary and Financial Code and article 6 of the order of
30 May 2016 and subsequent amendments. The maximum outstanding amount of ‘NEU CP’
issuable under the programme is EUR 500.0 million or its counter value at the date of issue in
any other authorised currency. On 21 May 2021, this programme was extended for one further
year. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, no borrowings were outstanding under this
programme.

Committed and uncommitted loan facilities

As at 31 December 2021, and as at 31 December 2020, the Company had no outstanding
balances under uncommitted loan facilities.

¢) Amounts owed to affiliated undertakings

Amounts owed to affiliated undertakings of 2,214.1 EUR million (2020: EUR 2,038.2 million)
include the following:

2021 2020

EUR million EUR million

Long term loans (maturity after five years) - 41.7
Long term loans (less than five years) 587.3 573.0
Current accounts 1,626.8 1,423.5
Total 2,214.1 2.038.2

“Current accounts” are linked to the daily cash pooling mechanism and represent short term
debts bearing interest at market rates. The daily cash pooling mechanism supports, among
others, the liquidity of the Group in order to optimize the funding costs.

During 2021 the Company repaid a long term loan for a total amount of USD 51.4 million
(EUR 45.3 million) from SES Satellites Gibraltar Ltd. with a maturity date of May 2025 and
bearing interest at a rate of 4.2%.

As at 31 December 2021, long term loans included:

e A loan for a total amount of USD 615.4 million (EUR 543.4 million) from SES Americom
Inc. with a maturity date of March 2024 and bearing interest at a rate of 3.7%;

¢ Aloan for a total amount of SEK 450.3 million (EUR 43.9 million) from SES Astra AB with
a maturity date of November 2023 and bearing interest at a rate of 0.72%.
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Note 10 — Other creditors - tax authorities

The Company is subject to the tax regulations in Luxembourg, in the U.S. for the partnership
and till October 2020 in Switzerland for the Swiss branch. In accordance with Article 164bis of
the Luxembourg income tax law, SES S.A. is the head of the Luxembourg tax unity with its
direct and indirect subsidiaries as follows:

- SES Astra S.A.

- SES Asia S.A.

- SES-10S.ar.l

- SES Participations S.A.

- SES Engineering S.ar.l.

- SES Astra Services Europe S.A.

- SES Lux Finance S.ar.l.

- SES Networks Lux S.ar.l.

- SES Techcom S.A.

- SES Latin America S.A.

- SES Insurance International (Luxembourg) S.A.
- SES Insurance International Re (Luxembourg) S.A.
- SES-17S.ar.l.

- SES mPower S.ar.l.

- SES Networks Satellites S.ar.l.

- SES LU Satellite Holdings S.ar.l.

The balance sheet tax position represents the net amount payable to, or receivable from, the
Luxembourg tax authorities by the Company in its role as head of the tax unity. The total net
tax receivable of EUR 9.3 million as at 31 December 2021 is recorded within caption
“Other debtors” and includes a payable for corporate income tax of EUR 7.4 million, municipal
business tax receivable of EUR 16.6 million and a Net Wealth Tax receivable of
EUR 0.1 million (2020: a net tax liability of EUR 0.3 million).

The respective tax charge/income of each subsidiary is computed on a stand-alone basis and
it is recorded for the entire Luxembourg tax unity by the Company.

Note 11 — Other creditors
Acquisition of SES mPower medium-Earth orbit constellation

In September 2017, the Company, jointly with O3b Networks Limited, entered as Procurement
Agents into a Master Procurement Agency and Option Agreement with a financial institution
in connection with the procurement by that financial institution of seven medium-Earth orbit
satellites from The Boeing Company.

Under the satellite Purchase and Sale agreement seven satellites were procured divided into
2 sub-blocks (Sub-Block 1 A consisting of four satellites and sub-block 1B consisting of three
satellites) currently under construction. At the end of the satellite construction period, which is
foreseen in 2022, the SES Group will have the right to acquire, or lease, the satellites from the
financial institution or to direct their sale to a third-party.
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Note 11 — Other creditors (continued)

SES has the right to nominate the entity within the SES Group which will acquire or lease
those assets shortly before the end of the construction period.

SES management expects that the satellites will be acquired or leased in due course by the
company SES mPower S.a r.l. in Luxembourg. To this end the Company entered into a forward
sale agreement with that entity as at 29 May 2018 whereby as the satellite construction
process proceeds, and the Procurement Agents confirm that construction milestones are
achieved, then the underlying asset-under-construction is transferred by the Company to that
entity against an intercompany receivable.

Since the underlying Satellite Purchase and Sale Agreement is directly between the financial
institution and The Boeing Company then there is no contractual obligation on the side of the
Procurement Agents during the satellite construction process.

However, SES management takes the view that there is a constructive obligation arising over
the construction period and hence the SES Group is accruing for the costs of this programme.

In August 2020 the priced option under the Purchase and Sale agreement to procure
4 additional satellites divided into 2 sub-blocks (Sub-block 2A consisting of two Satellites and
sub-block 2B consisting of 2 Satellites) was exercised. At the end of the satellite construction
period, foreseen in 2023 for sub-block 2A and 2024 for sub-block 2B, the SES Group will have
the right to acquire, or lease, the satellites from the financial institution or to direct their sale to
a third-party.

As at 31 December 2021 the total amount of EUR 981.8 million (USD 1,112.0 million)
[2020: EUR 764.1 million (USD 937.7 million)], corresponding to the constructive obligation by
the Company towards the financial institution procuring the satellites, was recorded under the
caption ‘Other creditors — becoming due and payable within one year’ for Bloc 1A and
1B in the amount of EUR 704.2 million (USD 797.6 million) and under the caption ‘Other
creditors - becoming due and payable after one year’ for Bloc 2A and 2B in the amount of
EUR 277.6 million (USD 314.4 million). Corresponding amount due to the Company from SES
mPower S.ar.l. under a forward purchase agreement, was disclosed on the balance sheet
under the caption ‘Amounts owed by affiliated undertakings — becoming due and payable
within one year’ for Bloc 1A and 1B in the amount of EUR 704.2 million (USD 797.6 million)
and ‘Amounts owed by affiliated undertakings — becoming due and payable after one year’ for
Bloc 2A and 2B in the amount of EUR 277.6 million (USD 314.4 million) (see also Note 4).

Other Creditors as at 31 December 2021 consist of:

2021 2020

EUR million EUR million
Becoming due and payable within one year
SES mPower acquisition 704.2
Personnel-related accruals 7.6 4.8
Total 711.8 4.8
Becoming due and payable after one year
SES mPower acquisition 277.6 764.1
Total 277.6 764.1
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Note 12 — Other operating income and other external expenses

Other operating income of EUR 27.3 million (2020: EUR 18.5 million) consists mainly of intra-group

recharge income from advisory support services rendered to various affiliates.

Other external expenses of EUR 28.8 million (2020: EUR 34.0 million) consists mainly of
intra-group recharge expenses for advisory support services rendered to the Company by

various affiliates.

Note 13 — Staff costs

As at 31 December 2021, the number of full-time equivalent employees was 102 (2020: 93)
and the average number of employees in the workforce for 2021 was 103 (2020: 86). Staff

costs can be analysed as follows:

2021 2020

EUR million EUR million

Wages and salaries 15.6 15.2
Social security costs relating to pension 17 15
Other social security costs 0.6 0.2
Other staff costs 0.1 0.2
Total 18.0 17.1

Note 14 — Income from participating interests

Income from participating interests concerning affiliated undertakings consists of the following:

2021 2020

EUR million EUR million

Dividends received SES Finance S.a r.| (see Note 3) 1,887.3 -
Dividends received SES Astra S.A. - 950.0
Dividends received SES Astra A.B. 6.4 7.0
Dividends received on own shares 3.1 2.0
Total 1,896.8 959.0

Note 15 — Income from other investments and loans
Income from other investments and loans forming part of fixed assets:

2021 2020

EUR million EUR million

Interest income from affiliated undertakings 85.0 98.9
Total 85.0 98.9
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Note 16 — Other interest receivable and similar income

a) Derived from affiliated undertakings

Other interest receivable and similar income derived from affiliated undertakings in the amount
of EUR 40.5 million (2020: EUR 32.3 million) represent interest income on intercompany
current accounts.

b) Other interest and similar income

2021 2020

EUR million EUR million

Interest income on bank accounts 0.1 0.6

Foreign exchange gain 228.1 163.4
Gain on disposal on own shares 0.4

Total 228.6 164.0

Note 17 — Value adjustments in respect of financial assets and investments held as current assets

Value adjustments of financial assets and investments held as current assets were recorded
in respect of:

2021 2020
EUR million EUR million

Shares in affiliated undertakings 2,186.7
Amounts owed by affiliated undertakings 62.0 217.8
Net loss on SES FDRs 35 22.4
Total 2,252.2 240.2

As at 31 December 2021 the Company recorded value adjustments in respect of shares in
affiliated undertakings of EUR 2,186.7 million (2020: EUR nil) (see also Note 3) and a value
adjustment of EUR 62.0 million in respect of amounts owed by affiliated undertakings
(2020: EUR 217.8 million) (see Note 4).

A net loss of EUR 3.5 million (2020: loss of EUR 22.4 million) was recorded on FDRs comprising
a loss on disposals of EUR 3.9 million (2020: loss of EUR 12.3 million) and a revaluation gain
on FDRs held as at 31 December 2021 of EUR 0.4 million (2020: EUR 10.1 million [loss])
to account for the FDRs at the lower of the weighted average cost and the market price.
The price of the SES FDR listed on Euronext in Paris was EUR 6.97 as at 31 December 2021
(2020: EUR 7.72).
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Note 18 — Interest payable and similar expenses

a)

b)

Concerning affiliated undertakings

Interest payable and similar expenses with affiliated undertakings in the amount of
EUR 29.5 million (2020: EUR 28.5 million) represent interest charges on intercompany current
accounts.

Other interest and similar expenses

Other interest and similar financial expenses include the following:

2021 2020

EUR million EUR million

Interest charges on loans and bank accounts 186.7 216.7
Loan fees and origination costs 31.0 154
Loss on disposal on own shares - 2.3
Foreign exchange loss 157.3 203.5
Total 375.0 437.9

Note 19 — Audit fees

Art. 65 Paragraph (1) 16° of the Law requires the disclosure of the independent auditor fees.

In conformity with the Law these details have been omitted as the Company prepares
consolidated accounts in which this information is disclosed, and these consolidated accounts
and the related consolidated management report and auditors' report thereon have been
lodged with the Luxembourg Trade Registry.

Fees incurred in connection with other assurance and non-audit services rendered to the
Company and its controlled undertakings as defined by the Regulation (EU) N°537/2014
amounted to EUR 88,000 (2020: EUR 35,000) and represented comfort letters issued in
connection to the Company’s treasury funding operations.

Note 20 — Board of Directors’ remuneration

Total payments to directors for attendance at board and committee meetings in 2021 amounted
to EUR 1.1 million (2020: EUR 1.1 million). These payments are computed on a fixed and
variable basis, the variable part being based upon attendance at board and committee meetings.

Note 21 — Off balance sheet commitments

Capital commitments

On 11 September 2017, SES S.A., jointly with O3b Networks Limited, entered as Procurement
Agents into a Master Procurement Agency and Option Agreement with a financial institution
in connection with the procurement by that financial institution of seven medium-Earth orbit
satellites from The Boeing Company. In August 2020 the company procured additional
4 satellites. The outstanding commitments of the Company in respect of the related
contracted capital expenditure as at 31 December 2021 amounting to USD 62.3 million
(EUR 55.0 million).
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Note 21 — Off balance sheet commitments (continued)
Guarantees
On 31 December 2021 the Company had outstanding bank guarantees provided for an
amount of EUR 66.8 million (2020: EUR 89.1 million) with respect to performance and warranty
guarantees for services of satellite operations.
Parental guarantees
SES S.A. issued a letter of guarantee to one of its subsidiaries to provide sufficient financial
support to meet its obligations in full for at least two years after the issuance date of the
31 December 2021 standalone financial statements of the subsidiary.
Litigation
SES S.A. is not currently subject to any material legal proceedings or litigation arising in the
normal course of business.
Note 22 — Subsequent events
There were no other significant events between the balance sheet date and the approval of
the annual accounts which would have influenced the results of the Company as at

31 December 2021.

As set out in more detail in Note 3, management has decided to convert the DGP from a
partnership into a separate U.S. corporate entity (“Inc.”) in H1 2022.
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Annual General Meeting

7  Approval of the balance sheet as of 31 December 2021 and of the 2021 profit and loss
accounts

Draft resolution

The Board of Directors proposes to the Meeting to approve the annual accounts and the
consolidated annual accounts as shown under agenda item 6 “Presentation of the audit report”.

8 Decision on allocation of 2021 profits and transfer between reserve accounts

Draft resolution

The Board of Directors proposes to the Meeting to approve the allocation of the 2021 statutory
net income of SES S.A. in accordance with enclosed tables entitled “Allocation of 2021 net
income” and “Transfer between reserve accounts”.

SES S.A., Chateau de Betzdorf, L-6815 Betzdorf Annual General Meeting 7 April 2022
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Assemblée Générale Ordinaire

7  Approbation du bilan au 31 décembre 2021 et du compte de profits et pertes pour
I'exercice 2021

Projet de résolution

Le Conseil d’administration propose a I’Assemblée d’approuver les comptes annuels et les
comptes consolidés comme indiqués sous le point 6 de I'ordre du jour « Présentation du rapport
du réviseur d’entreprises ».

8 Décision sur I'affectation du résultat net de I'exercice 2021 et transferts entre comptes
de réserves

Projet de résolution

Le Conseil d’administration propose a I’Assemblée d’approuver I'affectation du résultat net de
I’exercice 2021 conformément aux indications figurant dans les tableau ci-joint, intitulés
« Affectation du résultat net de I'exercice 2021 » and « Transfert entre comptes de réserves ».
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A
Agenda item 8 i SES
Allocation of 2021 net income / Affectation du resultat net de I’exercice 2021

EUR
2021 statutory net loss of SES 5.A. (unconsolidated) available for dividend -428,671,275.85
Statutory release (to) / from Legal Reserve ' 0.00
Available for distribution after transfer from Legal Reserve -428,671,275.85
Payment of a dividend under Article 31: Shares Dividend
Ordinary A shares 383,457,600 0.500 -191,728,800.00
Ordinary B shares 191,728,800 0.200 -38,345,760.00
Total -230,074,560.00
Transfer to / (from) "Other Reserves™ -658,745,835.85
Undistributed 2021 0.00

In accordance with Lurembourg legal requirements, a minimum of 52 of the yearly net profit is transferred to a Legal Reserve from which distribution is restricted. This
requirement is satisfied when the reserve reaches 102 of the issued share capital.

A
Agenda item 8 , SES
Transfer between reserve accounts / Transfert entre comptes de reserves

EUR
Movement on "Other Reserves" ('Free Reserves’)
“Other Reserves” before proposed transfer 2,830,908,863.42
Transfer to / (from) 'Other reserves' -658,745,835.85
"Other Reserves" after proposed transfer 2,172,163,027.57
Shareholders are specifically asked to note and confirm that a cumulative amount of EUR 54.0 million has been transferred to a non-
distributable reserve within "Other reserves” in connection with holdings of own shares (2020: EUR 35.2 million)
2021 Consolidated net income available for the shareholders of SES S.A. 452,925,283.36
Movement on "Legal Reserve"
“Legal Reserves" before proposed transfer 71,898,300.00
Transfer to / (from) "Legal reserves” (2018) 0.00
"Legal Reserves" after proposed transfer - 10% of Subscribed Capital 71,898,300.00
Mote: Subscribed Capital of SES S.A.is 71£,983,000.00
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Annual General Meeting

9 Discharge of the members of the Board of Directors

Draft resolution

According to article 27 of the Articles of Association, the Board of Directors proposes to the
Meeting to give discharge to the members of the Board.

Assemblée Générale Ordinaire

9  Décharge a donner aux administrateurs

Projet de résolution

Conformément a l'article 27 des statuts, le Conseil d’administration propose a I’Assemblée de
donner décharge aux administrateurs.
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Annual General Meeting
10 Determination of the number of Board members

Draft resolution

The Board of Directors proposes to maintain the size of the Board at 11 directors (7 representing
the shareholders of class A and 4 representing the shareholders of class B), it being understood
that an extraordinary general meeting of the shareholders called, if appropriate, at any time
before the next ordinary general meeting, may vote on the increase of the size of the Board and
proceed with the election of a new director.

Assemblée Générale Ordinaire

10 Fixation du nombre d’administrateurs

Projet de résolution

Le Conseil d’administration propose a I'Assemblée de maintenir la taille du Conseil
d’administration a 11 administrateurs (7 représentant les actionnaires A et 4 représentant les
actionnaires B), étant entendu qu’une assemblée générale extraordinaire appelée a tout
moment avant la tenue de la prochaine assemblée générale ordinaire, pourra au besoin voter
sur une augmentation de la taille du Conseil d’administration et procéder a I’élection d’un nouvel
administrateur.
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Annual General Meeting
11 Confirmation of the co-optation of a Director and determination of his mandate

Draft resolution

At its meeting of 2 December 2021, the Board of Directors decided to co-opt Mr. Jacques Thill in
lieu of Mr. Paul Konsbruck. The Shareholders are asked to confirm the co-optation of Mr. Thill
and elect him for a one-year mandate.

Assemblée Générale Ordinaire

11 Confirmation de la co-optation d’un administrateur et fixation de son mandat

Projet de résolution

Dans sa réunion du 2 décembre 2021, le Conseil d’administration a décidé de co-opter M.
Jacques Thill en lieu et place de M. Paul Konsbruck. Il est proposé a I’Assemblée de confirmer la
co-optation de M. Thill et de I'élire pour un mandat d’un an.
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Short bio of the candidate proposed for co-optation:
Jacques Thill (B-shareholders)

Mr. Thill was co-opted as director of SES on 2 December 2021. Mr. Thill currently serves as First
Government Advisor to the Prime Minister and Coordinator at the Luxembourg Prime Minister’s
Office. Since 2018 he is also the Government Delegate to the State Intelligence Service. Mr. Thill
joined the Luxembourg diplomatic service in 2004. His diplomatic career includes postings to the
Luxembourg Permanent Representation to the United Nations in New York and to the
Luxembourg Embassy in Moscow, as well as to the EU High Representative for the Common
Foreign and Security Policy at the Council of the European Union in Brussels. From 2009 to 2013,
Mr. Thill served as diplomatic advisor to the Prime Minister. In 2013, he was appointed Deputy
Secretary General of the Luxembourg Government, before becoming Secretary General of the
Luxembourg Government until June 2020.

Mr. Thill holds a Masters in European and International Law from the Paris 1 Panthéon-Sorbonne
University and an M.A. in European Political and Administrative Studies from the College of
Europe in Bruges where he specialized in European Competition Law and European Foreign
Policy. From 2015 until 2021, Mr. Thill has been a member of the Board of Directors of LuxGovSat
S.A.

Mr. Thill is a Luxembourg national. He is not an independent director because he represents an
important shareholder.
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Annual General Meeting

12 Election of two Directors for a two-year term and three Directors for a three-year term

Draft resolutions

The Board of Directors proposes to the Meeting that the following candidates should be elected
as Directors for a two-year term:

Carlo Fassbinder
Jennifer Coyle Byrne
The Board of Directors proposes to the Meeting that that the following candidates should be re-

elected as Directors for a three-year term:

Béatrice de Clermont-Tonnerre
Peter Van Bommel
Frangoise Thoma

Based on the proposal from the Board of Directors, the SES Board would be composed of the
following 11 Directors (six men and five women):

For the A-shareholders (all of them independent): Béatrice de Clermont-Tonnerre, Jennifer Coyle
Byrne, Frank Esser, Ramu Potarazu, Kaj-Erik Relander, Peter van Bommel, Katrin Wehr-Seiter.

For the B-shareholders: Carlo Fassbinder, Anne-Catherine Ries, Jacques Thill, Francoise Thoma.
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Assemblée Générale Ordinaire

12 Nomination de deux Administrateurs pour une durée de deux ans et de trois
Administrateurs pour une durée de trois ans

Projet de résolutions

Le Conseil d’Administration propose a I’Assemblée d’élire les Administrateurs suivants pour une
durée de deux ans :

Carlo Fassbinder
Jennifer Coyle Byrne

Le Conseil d’Administration propose a I’Assemblée d’élire les Administrateurs suivants pour une
durée de trois ans :

Béatrice de Clermont-Tonnerre
Peter Van Bommel
Frangoise Thoma

Basé sur la proposition du Conseil d’administration, le Conseil de SES serait composé des 11
administrateurs suivants (six hommes et cinq femmes) :

Pour les actionnaires A (tous indépendants): Béatrice de Clermont-Tonnerre, Dr Jennifer Coyle
Byrne, Frank Esser, Ramu Potarazu, Kaj-Erik Relander, Peter van Bommel, Katrin Wehr-Seiter.

Pour les actionnaires B: Carlo Fassbinder, Anne-Catherine Ries, Jacques Thill, Francoise Thoma.
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Short bios of the candidates proposed for election:

Carlo Fassbinder (B-shareholders)

Mr. Carlo Fassbinder has 25 years of experience in the field of taxation, finance and accounting
and is Director of tax at the Ministry of Finance since 2017. He advises the finance minister on
tax policies and tax treaties, and assists in the preparation of the Council meeting (ECOFIN). From
1997 to 2017 he worked in the tax department of BGL BNP Paribas where he was Head of Tax
Retail & Corporate Banking since 2011. Mr. Fassbinder is also a board member of Société
Electrique de I'Our.

He holds a Maitrise en droit des affaires from Robert Schuman University in Strasbourg and a
Magister Legum (LL.M.) in tax law from Ludwig Maximilians University in Munich.

Mr. Fassbinder is a Luxembourg national. He would not be an independent director as he
represents an important shareholder.

Dr. Jennifer Coyle Byrne (A-shareholders)

Dr. Jennifer Coyle Byrne enjoyed a successful 25-year career at Lockheed Martin from 1993 to
2018. In her final role with Lockheed Martin as VP, Space and Missile Systems, she managed a
team of 8,000 people. She had responsibility for leading the design, development, operation and
sustainment of Civil Space, Military Space, Commercial Space, Strategic Missile Defence and
Special Programs platforms. Dr. Jennifer Coyle Byrne moved to London in 2018 to take up her
current role as COO of G-Research, which is a quantitative research and technology business.

She has a B.S. in Mathematics and Biochemistry from the University of Dallas, an M.S.E. in
Computer Applications in Systems Engineering from Temple University and holds a Ph.D. in
Systems Engineering from George Washington University.

Dr. Jennifer Coyle Byrne is a US national. She would be an independent director.

Béatrice de Clermont-Tonnerre (A-shareholders)

Mrs. Béatrice de Clermont-Tonnerre has held several executive positions at Google including
Director Al Partnerships EMEA and Southern Europe Monetisation Director for six years until Q3
2019. Before that, Mrs. de Clermont-Tonnerre worked 15 years for Groupe Lagardeére in different
Executive roles including Senior VP for Corporate Development. She previously worked at Groupe
Canal Plus, having started her career with Matra Marconi Space. She is the Lead Director of Grupo
Prisa (Spain) and a member of the Board of Directors of Klépierre (France). She is an Investor and
Executive Committee Member of Kayrros, a climate-tech pioneering pollutant emissions
guantification throughout the energy supply chain.

SES S.A., Chateau de Betzdorf, L-6815 Betzdorf | Annual General Meeting | 7 April 2022



SES”

Mrs. de Clermont-Tonnerre holds a Masters in Politics and Economics from the Institut d’Etudes
Politiques in Paris and an MBA from ESSEC Business School, France. Mrs. de Clermont-Tonnerre
is a member of the Nomination Committee and of the Strategy Committees of SES.

Mrs. de Clermont-Tonnerre is a French national. She is an independent director.

Peter van Bommel (A-shareholders)

Mr. van Bommel became a director on 2 April 2020. He was Chief Financial Officer and member
of the Board of Management of ASM International from August 2010 until May 2021. He has
more than twenty years of experience in the electronics and semiconductor industry. Mr. van
Bommel spent most of his career at Philips, which he joined in 1979. He sits on the Board of
Aalberts, Nedap, Bernhoven Foundation and the Amsterdam Business School, where he is the
Chair of the EMFC Curatorium. In the past he was also a director of several other listed companies
among others KPN.

Mr. van Bommel holds an MSc in Economics from Erasmus University in Rotterdam. Mr. van
Bommel is the Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee, a member of the Remuneration
Committee and of the Strategy Committee of SES.

Mr van Bommel is a Dutch national. He is an independent director.

Frangoise Thoma (B-shareholders)

Ms. Thoma became a director on 16 June 2016. Ms. Thoma is President and Chief Executive
Officer of Banque et Caisse d’Epargne de I'Etat, and a member of the Boards of Directors of
Cargolux International Airlines S.A., Luxair S.A., the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and Enovos
Luxembourg S.A. She was a member of the Luxembourg Council of State from 2000-2015.

Ms. Thoma holds a PhD in Law from the Université de Paris Il Panthéon-Assas and an LL.M. from
Harvard Law School. Ms. Thoma is the Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee and a

member of the Audit and Risk Committee of SES.

Ms. Thoma is a Luxembourg national. She is not an independent director because she represents
an important shareholder.
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Annual General Meeting

13 Approval of the Remuneration Policy

Draft resolution

The Board of Directors proposes to the Meeting to approve the following Remuneration Policy
which has been drawn up and approved by the Board.

Assemblée Générale Ordinaire

13 Approbation de la Politique de Rémunération

Projet de résolution

Le Conseil d’Administration propose a I’Assemblée d’approuver la Politique de Rémunération
établie et approuvée par la Conseil.
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SES Remuneration Policy

as last amended by the Board of Directors on

23 February 2022
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1.

Purpose and scope of the Policy

The purpose of the present Policy is to describe the remuneration paid by the Company to the
Directors and to the members of its Executive Committee (SLT members).

It describes:

2.

how it contributes to the Company’s objectives relating to its business strategy and long-
term interests and sustainability;

the different components of remuneration, including all bonuses and other benefits in
whatever form, if any, awarded to Directors and SLT members and indicates their
relative proportion;

the duration of the contracts or arrangements with the Directors and SLT members, the
applicable notice periods, the main characteristics of supplementary pension or early
retirement schemes and the terms of, and payments linked to, termination;

the decision-making process followed for the determination, review and
implementation of the Policy, including measures to avoid or manage conflicts of
interests and, where applicable, the role of the Remuneration Committee and the
Board;

the procedural conditions under which any derogation from the Policy can be applied
as well as the elements of the Policy from which a derogation is possible.

The Policy

The Company must attract suitable Directors and SLT members to operate successfully and
remuneration is one of the enablers to fulfil this goal.

Remuneration must reflect the degree of required qualifications and experience of the Directors
and SLT members, the risks that they take personally, and honour the dedication and efforts
that the Directors and SLT members put into the Company. The Remuneration must also be
consistent when compared to remunerations for similar roles in other companies and be relative
to the pay and employment conditions of the employees of the Company.

2.1

Remuneration of the Directors

The remuneration granted to Directors consists of:

a fixed annual fee and
a fee per Board or committee meeting attended as described below

All these fees are net of any Luxembourgish withholding taxes on directors’ fees. Board
members do not receive any stock options, nor do they receive any bonus.
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2.1.1 Fixed remuneration per year

The fixed component of the remuneration amounts to €40,000 per year whereas the Vice
Chairpersons each receive an annual fixed fee of €48,000 and the Chairperson receives a fee of
€100,000 per year.

Any Director chairing one of the committees set up by the Board (if not the Chairperson of the
Board) receives an annual fee of €8,000. The Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee (if not the
Chairperson of the Board) receives an annual fee of €9,600.

2.1.2. Remuneration per meeting

Directors receive €1,600 for each Board meeting or Board committee meeting they attend,
except for the Audit and Risk Committee for which a fee of €1,920 per meeting is paid.

It is important to note that a Director participating in more than one committee meeting on the
same day will receive the attendance fee for one meeting only. Half of the attendance fee is
paid if the Director participates in the meeting via telephone or videoconference. However, as
an exceptional measure during the application of the COVID-19 restrictions, directors
participating in meetings via Videoconference are paid full attendance fees.

2.1.3. The terms of the Directors

In general, the Company’s directors are elected for terms of three years. If a Director leaves the
Board during his/her term, the Company may co-opt a Director to finish that mandate.

A Director can be revoked at any moment by the shareholders. There is no notice period for a
Director.

The maximum tenure on the Board is limited to 12 years (generally four terms of 3 years each).
The age limit of the Directors is set at 72 years. Any Director who reaches this age during his/her
mandate will resign at the Annual General Assembly (AGM) following this date.

2.2 Remuneration of SLT members

The remuneration of SLT members comprises the following two major components:

- the compensation package which consists of a:

o yearly base salary (“YBS”),
o annual bonus (“AB”), and
o long-term equity (“LTE”), and

- the benefits including, but not limited to:

o) company car or car allowance,
o) pension and health care plans, and
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o) death and disability insurance

In line with the Charter of the Remuneration Committee of the Company, remuneration matters
of the SLT members are decided by the Board after review and recommendations from the
Remuneration Committee.

2.2.1 Yearly Base Salary (“YBS”)

The base salary of the CEO as well as of other SLT members is reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee in its first ordinary meeting of the year. The Board has the sole authority, besides
the legally required cost of living adjustments (i.e. Luxemburg index), to adjust the YBS of the
CEO and other SLT members.

For all new nominations as SLT member, remunerations are validated by the SES Board, upon
recommendations from the Remuneration Committee. They are made on the basis of external
benchmarks provided by compensation consultants while also considering degree of
qualification and experience required as well as employment conditions of employees at the
time of the offer.

2.2.2  Annual Bonus (“AB”)

The main objective of the bonus plan for the CEO and other SLT members is to create a
performance reward scheme, that links annual variable compensation to the Company’s
financial results and its performance against specific business objectives which include
sustainability targets. Through this plan, the Company ensures alignment and focus on the
company’s core objectives.

The AB of SLT members is based on the annual performance during the relevant calendar year,
is assessed by the Remuneration Committee and validated by the Board in February and paid in
March of the following year.

AB achievements (financial results and performance against business objectives) are reported
in the annual Remuneration Report.
The AB target for SLT members ranges from 50% of the YBS to 100% of YBS for the CEO.

The minimum pay-out can be as low as 0% of the AB (in other words no bonus payment), with a
maximum pay-out capped at 150% of the bonus target.

The AB of each SLT member is composed of two parts:

a) Financial performance (accounting for 70% of the AB)

The financial performance measures the actual achievement vs. budget for the following set of
metrics with their respective weights: Revenue (40%), EBITDA (40%) and net operating cash flow
(20%). The budget targets for those measures are set during the annual budget process and
finally approved by the Board.

The financial performance payout is capped at 150% of the bonus target (for a 107% target
achievement and for each of the three metrics separately) and with a performance threshold,
below which no compensation is paid, set at 88% achievement and as shown below:
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b) Business objectives (accounting for 30% of the AB)

The business objectives are set annually by the SES Board at the beginning of each year. They
are related to the strategic roadmap of the Company and include ESG goals.

Achievement is measured at the end of each performance year by the Board, based on
recommendations provided by the Remuneration Committee. The pay-out for business
objectives can be as low as 0% and is capped at 150% of the bonus target.

2.2.3 Long-Term Equity (“LTE")
The LTE is regulated by the Equity Based Compensation Plan (EBCP).

The objective of the EBCP is to enhance the competitiveness of the Company and its affiliates in
attracting and retaining the best global leadership talent, and to position the Company as a
global employer of choice. Moreover, the EBCP is designed to ensure that SLT members become
shareholders of the Company, feel a sense of ownership, and benefit from their contribution to
increasing shareholder value.

To this end, the EBCP provides a framework for the grant or award of equity-based incentive
compensation in the form of:

a) restricted shares, representing one sixth of the LTE grant,

b) performance shares, representing one half of the LTE grant and with a vesting
which is subject to financial criteria and

c) stock options, representing one third of the total LTE grant.

The annual grant is approved by the Board in its April meeting based on a recommendation from
the Remuneration Committee.

For SLT members, the annual LTE grant value ranges from 58% of their YBS to 105% of the YBS
for the CEO.

a) Restricted Shares
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The restricted shares are FDRs granted with the sole condition that at the day the restricted
shares vest, the SLT member is employed by the Company. The restricted shares vest on 1 June
of the third year following the year of the grant.

The number of restricted shares granted is determined by multiplying the relevant YBS with the
applicable percentage and divided by an average of 15 days closing prices of the Company’s
FDRs at the Paris stock exchange, which is reviewed by the Remuneration Committee for each
grant year.

b) Performance Shares

Performance shares are FDRs granted to SLT members with vesting subject to achievement of
financial criteria. The performance shares vest on 1 June of the third year following the year of
the grant.

The number of performance shares granted is determined by multiplying the relevant YBS with
the applicable percentage and divided by the average 15 days measured share price.

Starting with 2021 grant, Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”) is the metric retained to assess
financial performance. It is measured on a relative basis to the median TSR performance of a
panel of comparable companies during the vesting period with:

* Share price at the end to be based on the average share price in the 3-month period
February — April preceding the vesting date i.e., from 1 February 2024 to 30 April 2024
for 2021 grant, and retaining dealing days only

*  With share price at the beginning to be based on the average share price during a 3-
month period February — April of the grant year i.e., from 1 February 2021 to 30 April
2021 for 2021 grant and retaining dealing days only

* Measurement is based on Volume Weighted Average Price

*  Outcome will be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee prior to the Share Vesting
Date

The comparator group is reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee and is determined
based on multiple factors such as company size, business mix, geographic mix and TSR
correlation.

Unless otherwise specified by the Remuneration Committee, the Performance Shares will vest
on the Share Vesting Date, subject to the Participant’s continued employment with the Company
or an Affiliate and to the following ratchet table which will apply to determine the proportion of
Performance Shares that will vest:
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c) Stock Options

The stock option is a standard call option with a maturity of 10 years from the date of the option
grant.

The final strike price corresponds to the average of 15 days closing prices of the Company’s FDRs
at the Paris stock exchange after the allocation of options by the Board.

The grant value is determined by the multiplication of the YBS with the applicable percentage.

The number of stock option units is derived directly by dividing the grant value by the value of
the stock option which is computed by an external and independent valuation firm and using a
Binomial or Black-Scholes valuation. The final stock option valuation of each grant is then
approved by the Board.

The stock options must vest before they can be exercised. Starting with 2021 grant, the vesting
period of stock options is a three-year cliff vesting schedule for closer alignment with best
market practices. As an example, if 100 stock options are granted in 2021, all units vest and can
be exercised as of 1 June 2024.

The SLT members must, when exercising their vested stock options and their vested shares, do
this in accordance with the regulations of the French stock market authorities AMF and the SES
Code of dealing securities (i.e. require the prior authorization from the Deputy Corporate
Secretary and/or Chief Financial Officer, outside closed periods). As for the members of the
Board, the exercises by the SLT members are reported on the Company’s website under About
Us -> ESG -> Corporate Governance -> Management Disclosures.

2.2.4 Benefits

The following key benefits are provided to SLT members, the amount of which is aligned with
local practices:
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. Pensions and health care plans: in Luxembourg, pension contributions of 7% up to the
Social Security Ceiling (SSC) and 19% for the portion of salary above the SSC. The
complementary pension scheme is a defined contribution scheme. In the US, restoration
plans are in place to provide retirement benefits that supplement the tax-qualified,
defined-contribution pension account defined in subsection 401(k) of the United States
Internal Revenue Code; in the Netherlands, pension contributions are age-related and
employer contribution is capped at 20.2% of the maximum pensionable salary;

° Health check-up;
. Death and disability insurances;
. Company car or car allowances.

In addition to the above, several SLT members benefit from tax support and reimbursement of
education fees for dependent children.

2.2.5 Employment, Resignation and Termination

SLT members are hired on a permanent basis and employment contracts are drafted according
to local regulations:

e One SLT member has an employment contract with an American subsidiary of the
Company

e One SLT member has an employment contract with a Dutch subsidiary of the Company

e All other SLT members have employment contracts with the Company or a Luxembourg
subsidiary of the Company.

In case of resignation or termination, any unvested portion of outstanding stock options,
restricted and performance shares is immediately forfeited. This excludes members leaving the
Company due to disability or for retirement, benefitting from an immediate vesting of all
unvested equity.

The Company and the SLT member can terminate the employment contract respecting the legal
notice period. For the SLT member with an employment contract with an American subsidiary
of the Company the employment contract stipulates a notice period of 30 days in case of
termination or resignation.

With exception of one member, all members of the SLT are entitled to two years of YBS in case
of termination without cause. The indemnity includes statutory severance payment, if any.

2.2.6 SLT members share ownership program

This program aims at assuring that SLT members become shareholders of the Company, feel a
sense of ownership, and focus on creating shareholder value.

The SLT members have an obligation to invest in the Company’s equity under the form of
registered shares and / or FDR’s. Over a period of five years (with equal yearly investment), the
SLT members have to hold in total one time their YBS and the CEO two times his YBS.
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3. Shareholder Vote

The present Policy will be submitted to a shareholder’s vote at the next Annual General Meeting.
The policy will be submitted to the shareholders at a minimum every three years or sooner in
case of material changes.

While the vote by the shareholders at the general meeting is advisory only, the Company will
pay its Directors and SLT members only in accordance with a remuneration policy that has been
submitted to a vote at the general meeting. If the general meeting rejects the proposed
remuneration policy, the Company will submit a revised policy to a vote at the following general
meeting.

4, Disclosure
After the vote of the shareholders this Policy together with the date and the results of the vote

shall be made available on the website of the Company where it will remain publicly available,
free of charge, as long as it will be applicable.

5. Periodic review
This Policy shall be reviewed on a regular basis, but at least every three years.
The Remuneration Committee shall be responsible for advising the Board on any concrete

amendment suggestions to this Policy. The final version that will be submitted to the
shareholders will be approved by the Board.

10
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Appendix

List of the Identified Directors as of 23 February 2022

Name Job Title
Frank Esser Director
Serge Allegrezza Director
Peter van Bommel Director
Béatrice de Clermont Tonnerre Director
Tsega Gebreyes Director
Ramu Potarazu Director
Kaj-Erik Relander Director
Anne-Catherine Ries Director
Jacques Thill Director
Francoise Thoma Director
Katrin Wehr-Seiter Director

List of the Identified SLT members as of 23 February 2022

Name

Job Title

Steve Collar

Chief Executive Officer

John Baughn

Chief Services Officer

Christophe De Hauwer

Chief Development Officer

John-Paul Hemingway

Chief Strategy and Product Officer

Sandeep Jalan

Chief Financial Officer

Ruy Pinto Chief Technology Officer
Evie Roos Chief Human Resources Officer
Thai Rubin Chief Legal Officer
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Annual General Meeting

14 Determination of the remuneration of Board members

Draft resolution

The Board of Directors proposes to the Meeting that the remuneration of the Directors shall be
determined as follows:

For the attendance at a meeting of the Board of Directors or of a committee set up by the Board,
other than the Audit and Risk Committee, the Directors shall receive a remuneration of EUR
1,600 for that meeting. This remuneration is the same for the attendance by the Vice-
Chairpersons and the Chairman.

A Director participating by telephone at a meeting of the Board or of a committee set up by the
Board, other than the Audit and Risk Committee, shall receive a remuneration of EUR 800 for
that meeting. As an exception, during the application of the sanitary and social distancing
measures linked to the COVID-19 pandemic, a Director participating by telephone or
videoconference at a meeting of the Board or of a committee set up by the Board other than the
Audit and Risk Committee, shall receive a remuneration of EUR 1,600 for that meeting.

A Director participating at a meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee shall receive a
remuneration of EUR 1,920 for that meeting, or, if the Director participates by telephone, EUR
960 for that meeting. This remuneration is the same for the attendance by the Vice-Chairpersons
and the Chairman. As an exception, during the application of the sanitary and social distancing
measures linked to the COVID-19 pandemic, a Director participating by telephone or
videoconference at a meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee, shall receive a remuneration of
EUR 1,920 for that meeting.

A Director participating in more than one committee meeting on the same day shall receive the
remuneration for one meeting only.

Each Director shall receive a remuneration of EUR 40,000 each year, regardless of the number
of attendances at meetings. The Vice-Chairpersons shall receive EUR 48,000 each year and the
Chairman of the Board shall receive EUR 100,000 each year.

A Director, other than the Chairman of the Board of Directors, chairing one of the committees
set up by the Board, shall receive an additional remuneration of EUR 8,000 each year. A Director,
other than the Chairman of the Board of Directors, chairing the Audit and Risk Committee, shall
receive an additional remuneration of EUR 9,600 each year.

All the amounts contained in the present resolution will be net of any Luxembourgish
withholding tax on directors’ fees.

SES S.A,, Chateau de Betzdorf, L-6815 Betzdorf Annual General Meeting 7 April 2022
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Assemblée Générale Ordinaire

14 Fixation de la rémunération des membres du Conseil d’administration

Projet de résolution

Le Conseil d’administration propose a I’Assemblée que la rémunération des membres du Conseil
soit fixée comme suit :

Pour chaque assistance a une séance du Conseil d’administration ou d’un des comités que le
Conseil instituera, autre que le Comité d’Audit et des Risques, les administrateurs recevront une
indemnité de 1.600 EUR par séance. Cette indemnité est la méme pour les Vice-Présidents et le
Président.

Un administrateur qui participera par téléphone a une séance du Conseil d’administration ou
d’un comité, que le Conseil instituera, autre que le Comité d’Audit et des Risques, touchera une
indemnité de 800 EUR pour cette séance. Exceptionnellement, pendant l'application des
mesures sanitaires liées a COVID-19, un administrateur qui participe a une séance du Conseil
d’administration ou d’'un comité par téléphone ou par vidéoconférence, autre que le Comité
d’Audit et des Risques, touchera une indemnité de 1.600 EUR pour cette séance.

Un administrateur qui participera a une séance du Comité d’Audit et des Risques touchera une
indemnité de 1.920 EUR par séance, respectivement de 960 EUR par séance s'il participe par
téléphone a cette séance. Cette indemnité est la méme pour les Vice-Présidents et le Président.
Exceptionnellement, pendant l'application des mesures sanitaires liées a COVID-19, un
administrateur qui participe a une séance du Comité d’Audit et des Risques par téléphone ou par
vidéoconférence, touchera une indemnité de 1.920 EUR pour cette séance.

Un administrateur qui participera a plus d’'une séance d’un comité le méme jour, ne touchera
une indemnité que pour une séance.

Chaque membre du Conseil d’administration aura droit a une indemnité fixe de 40.000 EUR par
an, indépendamment du nombre de présences aux séances. Cette indemnité est de 48.000 EUR
par an pour les Vice-Présidents et de 100.000 EUR par an pour le Président.

Un administrateur, autre que le Président du Conseil d’administration, qui sera Président d’un
comité instauré par le Conseil touchera une indemnité supplémentaire de 8.000 EUR par an. Un
administrateur, autre que le Président du Conseil d’administration, qui sera Président du Comité
d’Audit et des Risques, touchera une indemnité supplémentaire de 9.600 EUR.

Tous les montants contenus dans la présente résolution s’entendent net de retenue a la source
luxembourgeoise sur la rémunération des administrateurs.

SES S.A,, Chateau de Betzdorf, L-6815 Betzdorf Annual General Meeting 7 April 2022



SES*

Annual General Meeting
15 Approval of Remuneration Report

Draft resolution

The Board of Directors proposes to the Meeting to approve the Remuneration Report for 2021.

Assemblée Générale Ordinaire

15 Approbation du Rapport de Rémunération

Projet de résolution

Le Conseil d’administration propose a I’Assemblée d’approuver le Rapport de Rémunération
pour 2021.

SES S.A,, Chateau de Betzdorf, L-6815 Betzdorf Annual General Meeting 7 April 2022
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REMUNERATION REPORT

PURPOSE AND SCOPE OF THE
REMUNERATION POLICY

The purpose of the present Policy is to describe the remuneration
paid by the Company to the Directors and to the members of its Exec-
utive Committee (SLT members). It describes:

» How it contributes to the Company’s objectives relating to its busi-
ness strategy and long-term interests and sustainability;

» The different components of remuneration, including all bonuses
and other benefits in whatever form, if any, awarded to Directors
and SLT members and indicates their relative proportion;

» The duration of the contracts or arrangements with the Directors
and SLT members, the applicable notice periods, the main charac-
teristics of supplementary pension or early retirement schemes and
the terms of, and payments linked to, termination;

= The decision-making process followed for the determination, review
and implementation of the Policy, including measures to avoid or
manage conflicts of interests and, where applicable, the role of the
Remuneration Committee and the Board;

» The procedural conditions under which any derogation from the
Policy can be applied as well as the elements of the Policy from
which a derogation is possible.

THE REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company must attract suitable Directors and SLT members to
continue its success and remuneration is one of the enablers to fulfil
this goal.

Remuneration must reflect the degree of required qualifications and
experience of the Directors and SLT members, the risks that they take
personally, and honour the dedication and efforts that the Directors
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and SLT members put into the Company. The Remuneration must
also be consistent when compared to remunerations for similar roles
in other companies and be relative to the pay and employment con-
ditions of the employees of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration granted to Directors consists of a fixed annual fee,
and a fee per Board or committee meeting attended as described
below.

All these fees are net of any Luxembourgish withholding taxes on
directors’ fees. Board members do not receive any stock options, nor
do they receive any bonus.

Fixed remuneration per year

The fixed component of the remuneration amounts to €40,000 per
year whereas the Vice Chairpersons each receive an annual fixed fee
of €48,000 and the Chairperson receives a fee of €100,000 per year.

Any Director chairing one of the committees set up by the Board (if
not the Chairperson of the Board) receives an annual fee of €8,000.
The Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee (if not the Chairperson of
the Board) receives an annual fee of €9,600.

Remuneration per meeting

Directors receive €1,600 for each Board meeting or Board committee
meeting they attend, except for the Audit and Risk Committee for
which a fee of €1920 per meeting is paid.

It is important to note that a Director participating in more than one
committee meeting on the same day will receive the attendance fee
for one meeting only. Half of the attendance fee is paid if the Director
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participates in the meeting via telephone or videoconference. How-
ever, as an exceptional measure during the application of the COVID-
19 restrictions, directors participating in meetings via Videoconfer-
ence are paid full attendance fees.

The terms of the Directors

In general, the Company’s directors are elected for terms of three
years. If a Director leaves the Board during his/her term, the Company
may co-opt a Director to finish that mandate.

A Director can be revoked at any moment by the shareholders. There
is no notice period for a Director.

The maximum tenure on the Board is limited to 12 years (generally
four terms of 3 years each).

The age limit of the Directors is set at 72 years. Any Director who
reaches this age during his/her mandate will resign at the Annual
General Assembly (AGM) following this date.

REMUNERATION OF SLT MEMBERS

The remuneration of SLT members comprises the following two major
components:

» The compensation package which consists of a Yearly base salary
(“YBS"), Annual bonus (“AB”), and Long-term equity (“LTE");

» The benefits including, but not limited to, company car or car allow-
ance, pension and health care plans, and death and disability insur-
ance.
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In line with the Charter of the Remuneration Committee of the Com-
pany, remuneration matters of the SLT members are decided by the
Board after review and recommendations from the Remuneration
Committee.

Yearly Base Salary (“YBS”)

The base salary of the CEO as well as of other SLT members is
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee in its first ordinary meet-
ing of the year. The Board has the sole authority, besides the legally
required cost of living adjustments (i.e. Luxemburg index), to adjust
the YBS of the CEO and other SLT members.

For all new nominations as SLT member, remunerations are validated
by the SES Board, on recommendations from the Remuneration Com-
mittee. They are made on the basis of external benchmarks provided
by compensation consultants while also considering degree of qual-
ification and experience required as well as employment conditions
of employees at the time of the offer.

Annual Bonus (“AB”)

The main objective of the bonus plan for the CEO and other SLT mem-
bers is to create a performance reward scheme, that links annual var-
iable compensation to the Company’s financial results and its perfor-
mance against specific business objectives which include
sustainability targets. Through this plan, the Company ensures align-

ment and focus on the company’s core objectives.

The AB of SLT members is based on the annual performance during
the relevant calendar year, is assessed by the Remuneration Commit-
tee and validated by the Board in February and paid in March of the
following year.

AB achievements (financial results and performance against business
objectives) are reported in the annual Remuneration Report.

The AB target for SLT members ranges from 50% of the YBS to 100%
of the YBS for the CEO.
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The minimum pay-out can be as low as 0% of the AB (in other words
no bonus payment), with a maximum pay-out capped at 150% of the
bonus target.

The AB of each SLT member is composed of two parts:

» Financial performance (70% of the AB); and
» Business objectives (30% of the AB).

The financial performance measures the actual achievement com-
pared with budget for the following set of metrics with their respec-
tive weights: Revenue (40%), EBITDA (40%) and net operating cash
flow (20%). The budget targets for those measures are set during the
annual budget process and finally approved by the Board.

The financial performance pay-out is capped at 150% of the bonus
target (for a 107% target achievement and for each of the three met-
rics separately) and with a performance threshold, below which no
compensation is paid, set at 88% achievement and as shown below:

Finance performance pay-out table
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The business objectives are set annually by the SES Board at the
beginning of each year. They are related to the strategic roadmap of
the company and include ESG goals.

Achievement is measured at the end of each performance year by the
Board, based on recommendations provided by the Remuneration
Committee.

The pay-out for business objectives can be as low as 0% and is capped
at 150% of the bonus target.

Long-Term Equity (“LTE”)
The LTE is regulated by the Equity Based Compensation Plan (EBCP).

The objective of the EBCP is to enhance the competitiveness of the
Company and its affiliates in attracting and retaining the best global
leadership talent, and to position the Company as a global employer
of choice. Moreover, the EBCP is designed to ensure that SLT mem-
bers become shareholders of the Company, feel a sense of ownership,
and benefit from their contribution to increasing shareholder value.

To this end, the EBCP provides a framework for the grant or award of
equity-based incentive compensation in the form of:

» Restricted shares, representing one sixth of the LTE grant,

» Performance shares, representing one half of the LTE grant and
with a vesting which is subject to financial criteria and

» Stock options, representing one third of the total LTE grant.

The annual grant is approved by the Board in its April meeting based
on a recommendation from the Remuneration Committee.

For SLT members, the annual LTE grant value ranges from 58% of
their YBS to 105% of the YBS for the CEO.
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Restricted Shares

The restricted shares are FDRs granted with the sole condition that
at the day the restricted shares vest, the SLT member is employed
by the Company. The restricted shares vest on 1 June of the third
year following the year of the grant.

The number of restricted shares granted is determined by multiply-
ing the relevant YBS with the applicable percentage and divided by
an average of 15 days closing prices of the Company’s FDRs at the
Paris stock exchange, which is reviewed by the Remuneration Com-
mittee for each grant year.

Performance Shares

Performance shares are FDRs granted to SLT members with vesting
subject to achievement of financial criteria. The performance shares
vest on 1 June of the third year following the year of the grant.

The number of performance shares granted is determined by multi-
plying the relevant YBS with the applicable percentage and divided
by the average 15 days measured share price.

Starting with 2021 grant, Total Shareholder Return (“TSR") is the met-
ric retained to assess financial performance. It is measured on a rel-
ative basis to the median TSR performance of a panel of comparable
companies during the vesting period with:

= Share price at the end to be based on the average share price in
the 3-month period February - April preceding the vesting date i.e.,
from 1 February 2024 to 30 April 2024 for 2021 grant, and retaining
dealing days only

» With share price at the beginning to be based on the average share
price during a 3-month period February — April of the grant year
i.e., from 1 February 2021 to 30 April 2021 for 2021 grant and retain-
ing dealing days only

» Measurement is based on Volume Weighted Average Price

» Outcome will be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee prior to
the Share Vesting Date
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The comparator group is reviewed on a regular basis by the Remu-
neration Committee and is determined based on multiple factors such
as company size, business mix, geographic mix and TSR correlation.

Unless otherwise specified by the Remuneration Committee, the Per-
formance Shares will vest on the Share Vesting Date, subject to the
Participant’s continued employment with the Company or an Affiliate
and to the following ratchet table which will apply to determine the
proportion of Performance Shares that will vest:

Performance Shares ratchet table
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Stock Options

The stock option is a standard call option with a maturity of 10 years
from the date of the option grant.

The final strike price corresponds to the average of 15 days closing
prices of the Company’s FDRs at the Paris stock exchange after the
allocation of options by the Board.

The grant value is determined by the multiplication of the YBS with
the applicable percentage.

The number of stock option units is derived directly by dividing the
grant value by the value of the stock option which is computed by an
external and independent valuation firm and using a Binomial or
Black-Scholes valuation. The final stock option valuation of each grant
is then approved by the Board.

The stock options must vest before they can be exercised. Starting
with 2021 grant, the vesting period of stock options is a three-year
cliff vesting schedule for closer alignment with best market practices.
As an example, if 100 stock options are granted in 2021, all units vest
and can be exercised as of 1 June 2024.

The SLT members must, when exercising their vested stock options
and their vested shares, do this in accordance with the regulations of
the French stock market authorities AMF and the SES Code of deal-
ing securities (i.e. require the prior authorization from the Deputy
Corporate Secretary and/or Chief Financial Officer, outside closed
periods). As for the members of the Board, the exercises by the SLT
members are reported on the Company’s website under @ Company
> About Us > ESG > Corporate Governance > Management Disclosures.
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Benefits

The following key benefits are provided to SLT members, the amount
of which is aligned with local practices:

» Pensions and health care plans: in Luxembourg, pension contribu-
tions of 7% up to the Social Security Ceiling (SSC) and 19% for the
portion of salary above the SSC. The complementary pension
scheme is a defined contribution scheme. In the US, restoration
plans are in place to provide retirement benefits that supplement
the tax-qualified, defined-contribution pension account defined in
subsection 401(k) of the United States Internal Revenue Code; in
the Netherlands, pension contributions are age-related and
employer contribution is capped at 20.2% of the maximum pension-
able salary;

» Health check-up;

» Death and disability insurances; and

« Company car or car allowances.

In addition to the above, several SLT members benefit from tax sup-
port and reimbursement of education fees for dependent children.

Employment, Resignation and Termination
SLT members are hired on a permanent basis and employment con-
tracts are drafted according to local regulations:

» One SLT member has an employment contract with an American
subsidiary of the Company.

» One SLT member has an employment contract with a Dutch sub-
sidiary of the Company.

« All other SLT members have employment contracts with the Com-
pany or a Luxembourg subsidiary of the Company.

In case of resignation or termination, any unvested portion of out-
standing stock options, restricted and performance shares is imme-
diately forfeited. This excludes members leaving the Company due to
disability or for retirement, benefitting from an immediate vesting of
all unvested equity.
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The Company and the SLT member can terminate the employment
contract respecting the legal notice period. For the SLT member with
an employment contract with an American subsidiary of the Company
the employment contract stipulates a notice period of 30 days in case
of termination or resignation.

With exception of one member, all members of the SLT are entitled
to two years of YBS in case of termination without cause. The indem-
nity includes statutory severance payment, if any.

SLT SHARE OWNERSHIP PROGRAM

This program aims at assuring that SLT members become sharehold-
ers of the Company, feel a sense of ownership, and focus on creating
shareholder value.

The SLT members have an obligation to invest in the Company’s
equity under the form of registered shares and/or FDR’s. Over a period
of five years (with equal yearly investment), the SLT members have
to hold in total one time their YBS and the CEO two times his YBS.

SHAREHOLDER VOTE

The present Policy will be submitted to a shareholder vote at the next
Annual General Meeting. The policy will be submitted to the share-
holders at a minimum every three years or sooner in case of material
changes.

While the vote by the shareholders at the general meeting is advisory
only, the Company will pay its Directors and SLT members only in
accordance with a remuneration policy that has been submitted to a
vote at the general meeting. If the general meeting rejects the pro-
posed remuneration policy, the Company will submit a revised policy
to a vote at the following general meeting.
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DISCLOSURE

After the vote of the shareholders this Policy together with the date
and the results of the vote shall be made available on the website of
the Company where it will remain publicly available, free of charge, as
long as it will be applicable.

PERIODIC REVIEW

This Policy shall be reviewed on a regular basis, but at least every
three years.

The Remuneration Committee shall be responsible for advising the
Board on any concrete amendment suggestions to this Policy. The
final version that will be submitted to the shareholders will be
approved by the Board.

In line with the Shareholder Rights Law of 1 August 2019, the SES
Board adopted a Remuneration Policy that was formally submitted to
the shareholders at the annual general meeting on 1 April 2021. An
updated Remuneration Policy will be submitted to the Board on 23
February 2022 prior to its submission to the shareholders at the
annual general meeting on 7 April 2022.

The remuneration report here below describes the remuneration of
the Board of Directors, the CEO and of the other SLT members. It has
been drafted in accordance with the above-mentioned Remuneration
Policy and will also be submitted to the shareholders at the same
meeting.
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

In 2021, the Annual General Meeting of shareholders has approved
the remuneration of the Members of the Board of Directors through
approving a resolution that has been submitted by the Board of Direc-
tors.

The shareholders decided to maintain the fees paid to the directors
at the previous year’s level with a majority of 99.31%. The fees paid to
the Board have not been increased since 2008, except for the fees
paid to the Chair and the members of the Audit and Risk Committee
which have been increased in 2015 in line with best practices.

Directors each received a fixed fee of €40,000 per year, whereas each
of the Vice Chairs received an annual fixed fee of €48,000 and the
Chair received a fee of €100,000 per year.

The directors chairing one of the committees set up by the Board, if
not the Chair of the Board of Directors, received an additional remu-
neration of €8,000 per year. The director chairing the Audit and Risk
Committee received an additional remuneration of €9,600 per year.

Attendance fees for each Board or Board Committee meeting
amounted to €1,600, except for the meetings of the Audit and Risk
Committee for which directors received €1920 per meeting. A direc-
tor participating in more than one committee meeting on the same
day received the attendance fee for one meeting only.

As an exceptional measure during the application of the COVID-19
restrictions, directors participating in meetings via Videoconference

were paid full attendance fees instead of half.

All fees are net of any Luxembourg withholding taxes.
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The total net remuneration fees expensed for the year 2021 to the
members of the Board of Directors (net of the Luxembourg withhold-
ing tax) amounted to €904,853 of which €550,933 represented the
fixed part of the Board fees, with the remaining €353,920 being vari-
able fees. The gross overall figure (including withholding taxes) for
the year 2021 was €1,131,067. This compares to a gross remuneration
of €993,633 in 2020. This increase is exclusively driven by a higher
number of meetings.

The 2021 remunerations cover the fees paid for ten Board meetings
as well as for the meetings of the Board Committees described in the
table below. The amounts relate to the Board fees expensed during
the year 2021.

During 2021, the Board and the Committees of the Board were com-
posed as follows:

e Frank Esser, Chair

» Tsega Gebreyes, Vice-Chair

» Anne-Catherine Ries, Vice-Chair

» Serge Allegrezza

» Peter van Bommel

= Béatrice de Clermont Tonnerre
 Paul Konsbruck (until December 21)
» Ramu Potarazu

» Kaj-Erik Relander

» Francoise Thoma

e Katrin Wehr-Seiter

= Jacques Thill (from December 21)

The composition of the committees, chairs and members is provided
as follows:
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Committee Membership and Meetings

Audit and Nomination Remuneration Strategy

Risk Committee Committee Committee Committee
Chair

Katrin Wehr-Seiter Anne-Catherine  Francoise Thoma Frank Esser

(until August) Ries

Peter van Bommel

(as of August)

Members

Béatrice de Peter van Bommel

Clermont Tonnerre

Serge Allegrezza Serge Allegrezza

Peter van Bommel Béatrice de
Clermont-Tonnerre

Francoise Thoma Frank Esser

Kaj-Erik Relander Tsega Gebreyes  Frank Esser Ramu Potarazu

Paul Konsbruck
(until December)

Paul Konsbruck ~ Ramu Potarazu

(until December)

Kaj-Erik Relander Katrin Wehr-Seiter Jacques Thill
(as of December)

Jacques Thill
(as of December)

Number of Meetings

2 Hyprid Call- 2 Hyprid 2 Hyprid 9 Calls
meetings and Meetings and Meetings and

3 Calls 2 Calls 4 Calls

100% 100% 100% 98%
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The detailed overview of the individual remunerations expensed in
2021 and 2020 to each Director is provided as follows.
Directors Remuneration
2021 (for Meetings Q12021 to Q4 2021)’ 2020 (for Meetings Q12020 to Q4 2020)"
Directors Directors
Remu- Attendance Remu- Attendance
IN € neration Fees Taxes Total neration Fees Taxes Total
Serge Allegrezza 40.000 31680 17.920 89600 40.000 22.560 15.640 78.200
Romain Bausch - - - - 35.000 14.400 12.350 61.750
Peter van Bommel 47200 44480 22920 114.600 30.000 10.880 10.220 51100
Victor Casier - - - - 10.000 2.560 3140 15.700
Beatrice de Clermont-Tonnerre 40.000 33.600 18.400 92.000 30.000 9600 9.900 49,500
Frank Esser 100.000 36.800 34.200 171.000 81.667 15.200 24217 121.083
Tsega Gebreyes 54.000 27520 20.380 101.900 48.000 15.200 15.800 79.000
Paul Konsbruck 40.000 32.000 18.000 90.000 40.000 16.000 14.000 70.000
Hadelin de Liederkerke Beaufort - - - - 10.000 800 2.700 13.500
Ramu Potarazu 40.000 35.200 18.800 94.000 40.000 17.920 14.480 72.400
Kaj-Erik Relander 40.000 30.080 17.520 87600 40.000 18.400 14600 73.000
Anne-Catherine Ries 56.000 20.800 19.200 96.000 56.000 19.200 18.800 94.000
Marc Serres - - - = 10.000 4000 3.500 17.500
Francois Tesch - - - - 10.000 5,600 3.900 19.500
Francoise Thoma 48.000 28.480 19120 95600 48.000 24160 18.040 90.200
Katrin Wehr-Seiter 42400 31680 18.520 92600 49600 20160 17.440 87.200
Jacques Thill 3.333 1600 1.233 6.167 - - - -
Total 550.933 353.920 226.213 1131.067 578.267 216.640 198.727 993.633

7 Board and Board Committee meetings held during the COVID-19 pandemic are considered as held physically.
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REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE SLT

The remuneration of the members of the SLT is determined by the
Board and is based on recommendations from the Remuneration
Committee.

The remuneration of the SLT members comprises two major compo-
nents:

» Compensation package composed of the yearly base salary; an
annual bonus; and long-term equity (LTE); and
» Benefits package which is aligned with local and market practices

The average to highest compensation ratio (comprising annual base
salary, bonus and equity at target) for all employees at the level of
SES S.A.is at 1to 14 which remains below market benchmarks and
ratios which can be observed in CAC 40 or FTSE 100 companies.

Eight members were active in the SLT for the full year 2021:

» Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Steve Collar

» Chief Development Officer, Christophe De Hauwer

» Chief Executive Officer of SES Networks, John-Paul Hemingway
(Chief Strategy and Product Officer as from 1 January 2022)

» Chief Human Resources Officer, Evie Roos

» Chief Technology Officer, Ruy Pinto

» Chief Services Officer, John Baughn

» Chief Legal Officer, Thai Rubin

» Chief Financial Officer, Sandeep Jalan
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The total remuneration of the CEO and other SLT members follows
the principles set out in the Remuneration policy and is provided in
the tables below.
2021 Remunerations
Average to
highest
compensation
Annual Annual Long Term Pension Other Benefits ratio at the
IN € Base Salary Bonus' Equity? Expenses and Payments® Total level of SES SA*
Chief Executive Officer 735.438 1.038.732 655129 125.428 53114 2.607.840 14x
Other SLT Members 2520613 2544115 1.467.869 286.416 367.373 7186.387 6x
Total 2021 3.256.051 3.582.847 2.122.998 411.844 420.488 9.794.227 -
2020 Remunerations
Annual Annual Long Term Pension Other Benefits
IN € Base Salary Bonus' Equity? Expenses and Payments® Total
Chief Executive Officer 735.438 367.719 718.844 125.865 53112 2.000.977
Other SLT Members 2.584.984 934.957 1407047 376.857 737247 6.041.091
Total 2020 3.320.421 1.302.675 2.125.891 502.721 790.359 8.042.068

1 2021 bonuses are calculated with a 1.5x multiplier to recognize the successful collection of the first tranche of accelerated payments from the C-Band trans-
action. 2020 bonuses include a 50% reduction in bonuses for SLT members, as part of a series of cost savings measures implemented to mitigate the impact

of the pandemic crisis.
Amortization of Long Term Equity grants.

INEANNY

Yearly Base Salary
The yearly base salary is reviewed annually by the Remuneration
Committee.

For new nominations, base salaries are set based on external bench-
marks while also considering the degree of qualification and experi-
ence required as well as the employment conditions at the time of the
offer.

Other benefits and payments include health care plans, death and disability insurance, company cars or car allowances and other payments.
Average to highest compensation ratio (comprising annual base salary, bonus and equity at target) for all employees at the level of SES S.A.

Except for the Chief Executive Officer, yearly base salaries of SLT
members based in Luxembourg were adjusted in October 2021
following the legally required cost of living adjustment (Luxembourg
Index).
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Annual Bonus

The main objective of the annual bonus plan is to create a perfor-
mance reward scheme that links annual variable compensation to the
company'’s financial results and the performance of the SLT against
specific business objectives.

The annual bonus of SLT members is composed of two parts: (i) the
financial performance of the company; and (i) the performance
against business objectives, accounting for 70% and 30% of the bonus
respectively.

The financial performance measures group actual achievement vs.
budget for three elements, revenue (accounting for 40%), EBITDA
(accounting for 40%), complemented by net operating cash flow
(accounting for 20%). The Board of Directors sets annual targets dur-
ing the annual budget process and confirms annual achievement level.
In 2021, the Group financial performance payout was confirmed at
956% based on the weighted results for the three metrics.

The business objectives are set annually by the Board at the start of
each performance year and relate to the strategic roadmap of the
Company. For confidentiality reasons, budget targets as well as con-
tent of strategic business objectives will not be disclosed publicly.
Two of the important business objectives for 2021 were to (i) execute
on C-Band clearing and (ii) establish strong ESG practices. The SES
Board confirmed an achievement for 2021 of 90.8% which applies
equally to each SLT member including the CEO.

As an exception for 2021, bonus payout of each employee including
SLT members was multiplied by a factor 1.5x as part of a special incen-
tive to meet C-Band clearing deadline ahead of schedule and for the
collection of the first tranche of accelerated payments.

The 2021 annual bonus relates to the 2021 performance year and will
be paid in March 2022.
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The overview of the 2021 annual bonus of the CEO and other SLT
members is provided in the table below:
Bonus SLT expense
Bonus Bonus at target Maximum Bonus Amount
at target (% of Base award limit Percentage Bonus after 1.5x
IN € (Abs.) Salary) (150%) achievement Amount multiplier'
Chief Executive Officer - Annual Bonus 2021
performance year 735.438 100% 1.103.156 94,2% 692.488 1.038.732
- Financial Performance (70%) 514.806 772.209 95,6% 492155 738.232
- Busines Objectives (30%) 220631 330.947 90,8% 200.333 300.500
Other SLT Members - Annual Bonus 2021
performance year 1.843.263 [50-801% 2.764.894 92,0% 1.696.077 2,544.115
- Financial Performance (70%)? 1.290.284 1.935.426 92,5% 1193.972 1.790.958
- Busines Objectives (30%) 552979 829.468 90,8% 502105 753157

1 As an exception for 2021, bonus payouts of all employees including SLT members were multiplied by a factor of 1.5x as an incentive measure for meeting C-band clearing deadline

ahead of schedule and the collection of the first tranche of accelerated payments.

2 Financial performance of SLT members determined by outcome of group financial performance vs. Budget as well as the financial performance vs. Budget of business units (CEO

Networks).

Long Term Equity Incentives

The third element of the compensation package relates to the long-
term equity granted by the Company. The plan, administered by the
Remuneration Committee, permits the grant of three equity types: (i)
stock options; (ii) restricted shares; and (iii) performance shares. The
2021 total grant value was divided into one-third of stock options,
one-sixth of restricted shares, and one half of performance shares.

The stock option is a standard call option with a maturity of 10 years.
The final strike price is determined as the fair market value with an
average of 15 days closing prices at the Paris stock exchange after
the numbers of options have been determined by the Board. Stock
option grants prior to year 2021 have a vesting period of four years
with a yearly vesting of 25% on 1 January of each year following the
grant. For closer alignment with market practices, stock option grants
from year 2021 on have a three-year cliff vesting of 100% on 1 June
of the third year following the grant year.

The Restricted Shares are FDRs granted with the sole condition that,
at vesting, the SLT member must be employed by SES. The Restricted
Shares vest on 1June of the third year following the year of their grant.

Performance Shares are FDRs granted to SLT members and vest on
1June of the third year following the year of their grant. Performance
shares granted prior to year 2021 are subject to the outcome of the
compounded three years adjusted Economic Value Added (adjusted
EVA). From grant 2021 onwards, vesting is subject to outcome of Total
Shareholder Return (TSR), measured on a relative basis to the median
TSR performance of a panel of comparable companies during a three-
year period and with a maximum vesting of 150%. In 2021, the com-
parator group determined by the Remuneration Committee comprises
11 companies including satellite operators and European telcos,
selected based on multiple factors such as company size, business
mix, geographic mix and TSR correlation.
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During 2021, the members of the SLT were awarded a combined total
of 953,598 options to acquire company FDRs at an exercise price of
€6.395 as well as 60,372 restricted shares as part of the company’s
long-term incentive plan and 181,116 performance shares. The CEO
was awarded 269,375 stock options, 17,054 restricted shares and
51162 performance shares.

The detailed overview of the 2021 equity grant and vesting for the
CEO and other SLT members is provided as follows:



SES ANNUAL REPORT 2021

99

1 2 3 &
OPERATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL, CORPORATE CONSOLIDATED
& STRATEGIC SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE GOVERNANCE & FINANCIAL
REPORT (ESG) REPORT REMUNERATION STATEMENTS
Long Term Equity 2021
Long Term Equity Plan - 2021 Grant Equity Vesting in 2021
IN € Components Grant Year Vesting Year'  Units granted Grant Year Units vested
Chief Executive Officer Stock Options 2021 2024 269.375 2017 to 2020 294454
Performance Shares 2021 2024 51162 2018 13.788
Restricted Shares 2021 2024 17.054 2018 9192
Other SLT Members Stock Options 2021 2024 684.223 2017 to 2020 472640
Performance Shares 2021 2024 129.954 2018 40.335
Restricted Shares 2021 2024 43318 2018 26.890

1 Stock Options: for grants prior to 2021, vesting period over four years with a yearly vesting of 25% on 1 January of each year following the grant.

Cliff vesting of three years from 2021 grant year onward

Performance and Restricted Shares: vesting on 1 June of the third year following the year of the grant

Long Term Equity 2020
Long Term Equity Plan - 2020 Grant Equity Vesting in 2020
IN € Components Grant Year Vesting Year'  Units granted Grant Year Units vested
Chief Executive Officer Stock Options 2020 2021to 2024 302.827 2017 to 2019 218.747
Performance Shares 2020 2023 48.528 2017 8.719
Restricted Shares 2020 2023 16176 2017 2990
Other SLT Members Stock Options 2020 2021to 2024 867616 2016 to 2019 319.873
Performance Shares 2020 2023 145164 2017 26.247
Restricted Shares 2020 2023 48.388 2017 9.001

1 Stock Options: for grants prior to 2021, vesting period over four years with a yearly vesting of 25% on 1 January of each year following the grant.

Cliff vesting of three years from 2021 grant year onward

Performance and Restricted Shares: vesting on 1 June of the third year following the year of the grant
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When exercising their vested stock options and their vested shares,
the SLT members must do this in accordance with the SES Dealing
Code (including requiring the prior authorization from the Deputy
Corporate Secretary and/or Chief Financial Officer and provide selling
orders outside of a closed period).

During 2021, Christophe De Hauwer had sold all performance and
restricted shares that vested on 1June 2021. Evie Roos and Thai Rubin
sold some of the restricted and performance shares that vested on
1June 2021. Steve Collar, Ruy Pinto, John Baughn and John-Paul
Hemingway kept all their restricted and performance shares that
vested on 1June 2021. Sandeep Jalan has purchased 15,000 stock
options from 2020 Stock option grant at the price of 5,973 per share.
John Baughn bought additional 3,500 shares during year 2021.

As for the members of the Board, all transactions are reported on the
SES website: @ Company > About Us > ESG > Corporate Governance
> Management Disclosures

Benefits package
As for the benefits provided to members of the SLT, they are aligned
with local and market practices and include pensions, health care
plans, death and disability insurances, company cars or car allowances
and other payments.
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16 Appointment of the auditor for the year 2022 and determination of its remuneration

Draft resolution

The Board proposes to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as external auditors for the year
2022.

In its meeting on 22 February 2022, the Audit and Risk Committee approved a budget of EUR
1,947,858 for the external auditor’s fees.

Assemblée Générale Ordinaire

16 Election statutaire du réviseur d'entreprises pour I’année 2022 et fixation de sa
rémunération

Projet de résolution

Le Conseil d’administration propose de réélire PricewaterhouseCoopers comme réviseur
d’entreprises pour 'année 2022.

Dans sa réunion du 22 février 2022, le Comité d’Audit et des Risques a approuvé un budget de
1,947,858 EUR couvrant les frais et honoraires pour le réviseur d’entreprises.

SES S.A., Chateau de Betzdorf, L-6815 Betzdorf Annual General Meeting 7 April 2022
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17 Resolution on Company acquiring own FDRs and/or own A-, or B-shares

Draft resolution

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the Board of Directors, with full power of
delegation to the Executive Committee, to purchase a maximum of 20,000,000 A-, and/or a
maximum of 10,000,000 B-shares issued by the Company in accordance with the conditions set
forth by the law of 10 August 1915, as amended, on commercial companies (the “Companies’
Act”) regarding the repurchase of own shares by a société anonyme, in accordance with article
430-15 of the Companies’ Act, or to have them purchased by other companies of the Group
according to the definition of article 430-23 of the Companies’ Act. The A-shares and/or the FDRs
shall be purchased either on the stock exchange, or by block trade or by mutual agreement at
the then current market price or lower. The B-shares shall be purchased by mutual agreement
for a price equivalent to 40% of the then current market price of FDRs. The authorization to
repurchase A-shares also covers the repurchase of FDRs issued by BCEE with respect to A-shares
of the Company.

The FDRs repurchased by the Company may or may not be converted into A-shares and, as the
case may be, be kept or sold or cancelled or used for such legitimate purposes as the Board
deems advisable. The A-shares repurchased by the Company may or may not be converted into
FDRs and, as the case may be, be kept or sold or cancelled or used for such legitimate purposes
as the Board deems advisable. The B-shares repurchased by the Company shall be subsequently
cancelled, kept, sold or used for such legitimate purposes as the Board deems advisable. Any
cancellation of shares shall be subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company taken in
an Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders to be convened by the Board.

The authorization is valid for the longer of (a) a period of eighteen months from the date of this
resolution or (b) the duration of such further period beyond those eighteen months for which it
is renewed or extended by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

The Company shall respect the restrictions imposed by the Companies’ Act regarding the
repurchase of own shares.

The purchase price of the A-shares and/or FDRs shall not be lower than EUR 5 or higher than

EUR 25 per FDR or A-share. The purchase price of the B-shares shall not be lower than EUR 2 or
higher than EUR 10 per B-share.
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The Company may decide to purchase only shares of one or two of the existing categories, but
will need to conform to the principle of equal treatment of shareholders within each category
of these shares.

All powers are granted to the Board of Directors, with full power of delegation to the Executive
Committee, to execute the present authorization.

Assemblée Générale Ordinaire

17 Résolution permettant a la société I'acquisition de ses propres FDRs et/ou actions de la
catégorie AouB

Projet de résolution

L'assemblée générale des actionnaires autorise le Conseil d'administration, avec faculté de
délégation au Comité Exécutif, a acquérir un nombre maximal de 20.000.000 actions de la
catégorie A, et/ou un maximum de 10.000.000 actions de la catégorie B émises par la Société en
respectant les conditions fixées par la loi du 10 ao(t 1915, telle que modifiée, concernant les
sociétés commerciales ("LSC") relatives au rachat d'actions propres par une société anonyme
conformément a I’article 430-15 LSC ou a en faire acquérir par d'autres sociétés du groupe telles
gue visées par l'article 430-23 LSC. L'autorisation de rachat d’actions de la catégorie A couvre
également le rachat de FDRs émis par la BCEE sur base d’actions de la catégorie A de la Société.
Les actions de la catégorie A et/ou les FDRs pourront étre acquis soit par des achats en bourse,
soit en bloc, soit de gré a gré au prix du marché en vigueur a ce moment-la ou a un prix inférieur.
Les actions de la catégorie B pourront étre acquises de gré a gré a un prix équivalent a 40% du
prix du marché en vigueur des FDRs.

Les FDRs acquis par la Société pourront ou ne pourront pas étre ultérieurement convertis en
actions de la catégorie A et pourront étre conservés ou cédés ou annulés ou utilisés a toutes
autres fins utiles que le Conseil d'administration estime recommandables pour la Société. Les
actions de la catégorie A acquises par la Société pourront ou ne pourront pas étre ultérieurement
converties en FDRs et pourront étre conservées ou cédées ou annulées ou utilisées a toutes
autres fins utiles que le Conseil d'administration estime recommandables pour la Société. Les
actions acquises de la catégorie B pourront étre annulées, conservées, cédées ou utilisées a
toutes autres fins utiles que le Conseil d'administration estime recommandables pour la Société.
Toute annulation d’actions est sujette a une résolution des actionnaires de la Société dans une
réunion de I’Assemblée Générale Extraordinaire a convoquer par le Conseil d’administration.
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L'autorisation est valable (a) pour une période de dix-huit mois a compter de la date de la
présente résolution ou (b) jusqu'a la date de son renouvellement ou de son extension par
I'assemblée générale des actionnaires si la date d’expiration de cette période est postérieure.

La Société respectera les restrictions prévues par la LSC concernant le rachat d'actions propres.

La contre-valeur d'acquisition des actions de la catégorie A, et/ou des FDRs ne pourra pas étre
inférieure a 5 EUR ni supérieure a 25 EUR par action de la catégorie A, et/ou par FDR. La contre-
valeur d'acquisition des actions de la catégorie B ne pourra pas étre inférieure a 2 EUR ni
supérieure a 10 EUR par action de la catégorie B.

La Société pourra décider d’acquérir uniguement des titres d’'une ou de deux des catégories
d’actions, mais devra respecter le principe de I'égalité de traitement des actionnaires a

I'intérieur de chacune de ces catégories d’actions.

Tous pouvoirs sont conférés au Conseil d'administration, avec faculté de délégation au Comité
Exécutif, en vue d'assurer I'exécution de la présente autorisation.
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